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Financial Highlights

Trinity
Leeds

2015

2014*

Change

£74.5m

£59.8m

+25%

£9.4m

£9.0m

+4%

£83.9m

£68.8m

+22%

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
amortisation and exceptional items (EBITDA)

£3.4m

£1.9m

+79%

Profit before tax

£2.4m

£0.8m

+200%

Adjusted profit before tax**

£2.7m

£1.4m

+93%

Basic earnings per share

4.4p

0.6p

+633%

Adjusted earnings per share***

5.4p

2.0p

+170%

Proposed total dividend per share

2.0p

1.0p

+100%

£3.8m

£1.6m

+138%

Revenue - UK
- International
- Group

Net funds

• Solid order book of £130m (FY2014: £120m) driven by strong UK demand.
• Staff numbers increased by 14% to 1,259 during the last twelve months to service
the growth in the UK market.
• Return on Capital Employed***(ROCE) increased to 30.3% (FY 2014: 11.4%),
exceeding our published strategic target to achieve 20% by June 2016.

*

Previously reported results exclude the effects of discontinued operations.

** Adjusted for amortisation of acquired intangible assets and exceptional items.
*** Return on Capital Employed is calculated as adjusted operating profit divided by average capital employed where capital employed is equity
less goodwill less net funds.
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Chairman’s Statement
This is my first annual statement to Waterman shareholders since
my appointment as Chairman.
Overview
I am very pleased to announce that Waterman is performing
ahead of its three year strategic plan which runs to 30 June
2016. The Group is delivering a significant improvement
in its financial performance and increased returns to our
shareholders.
The success of this strategy is demonstrated by the
continuing progression in the Group’s adjusted profit before
tax, which has increased substantially to £2.7m (2014:
£1.4m, 2013: £1.1m).
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The Group’s continued focus on stable economic markets in
the UK, Australia and Ireland has established firm foundations
for the future. Waterman generated 89% (2014: 87%) of its
revenue from the UK with revenue growing by a total of 48%
over the last two years, including 25% in 2015 (2014: 19%).
Waterman’s premium brand and its long established client
relationships have contributed to the delivery of strong
results, with an improved cash flow and a further increase
in our Return on Capital Employed. Positively, net funds
have improved by £2.2m to £3.8m (2014: £1.6m). This was
after investing £0.8m in April 2015 to increase the Group’s
ownership of its Australian businesses. Most encouragingly,

the Group’s Return on Capital Employed hit 30.3% (2014:
11.4%, 2013: 7.6%) which is ahead of our previously stated
target of achieving a 20% Return on Capital Employed by
June 2016.
As a result of the improved performance noted above and the
outlook for the Group, the Board is pleased to recommend to
shareholders a significant increase in the dividend. We have
proposed a final dividend of 1.2p (2014: 0.6p) making a total
dividend for the year of 2.0p (2014: 1.0p), an increase of
100% on last year.

Operational Performance
Waterman is now experiencing the benefits from the strategic
decisions taken in earlier years to return focus to the UK and
to simplify its management structure. The result is a more
focused business that is operating in buoyant markets. Over
the last three years, Waterman has withdrawn from China,
UAE and Russia as these were markets which the Board
decided could not provide adequate sustainable returns. The

one-time financial impact of these decisions has been fully
recognised in previous years.
Revenue grew by 22% to £83.9m (2014: £68.8m). The
Group now generates 89% of its revenue from the UK and
11% from its overseas operations, with 8% from Australia and
3% from Ireland and Poland.
We have continued to recruit engineers and environmental
consultants in order to provide the necessary resource to
service our clients’ increasing workload. Staff numbers grew
by 151 (14%) during the year to 1,259 employees (2014:
1,108). Our staff is the key resource for the Group’s future
success and we need to continue to nurture our talent and
improve and expand their career prospects, especially given
the Board’s plans for future growth. I am delighted with the
strong culture that the Group has developed that enables us
to attract and retain high quality staff.
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Investment in many of our offices has been made to improve
the working environment and to provide greater capacity
for future expansion. City centre locations for our design
teams give greater connectivity with our clients and other
professional colleagues; over the last twelve months we have
relocated into city centre offices in Birmingham, Leeds and
Sydney.
Management actions to improve the performance of our
UK Civil and Transportation Consulting business have
shown good results. Although revenue in the period fell
from £13.3m to £11.8m, operating losses were reduced by
£1.7m to £1.2m this year from £2.9m in 2014. This year’s
performance continued to be adversely impacted by low staff
utilisation and legacy issues on historic projects, which were
substantially resolved by the period end.
Looking ahead, our UK Civil and Transportation’s business
should benefit from both improved market conditions and
our stronger position in Public sector frameworks. The Board
fully recognises the importance of this business returning to
profitability in the future.

Order book and Market Prospects
New commissions have resulted in an increased order book
which has grown by 8% to £130m (2014: £120m). This
growth has been generated through our leading position in
the UK Property and Highways sectors where demand for our
quality services is increasing. Over the last year we have
won several important long term frameworks in the Public
sector.
Following the outcome of the recent General Election our
Property clients have focused on their future direction
and investment strategies for the UK. This should provide
enhanced opportunities for Waterman, further improved by
its Highways and Transportation Outsourcing business where
revenue grew by 36% to £19.8m (2014: £14.6m).

Strategic initiatives in Australia
Our Australian businesses are based in Melbourne and
Sydney, where our teams primarily provide building services
consultancy advice to the healthcare, education, residential,
technology and financial markets. The original stakes in
Sydney and Melbourne were acquired in 2002 and 2006
respectively.
Over the last two years these businesses have been through a
period of planned transition which has seen the appointment
of the next generation of Directors in both Melbourne

06

and Sydney. This process has enabled us to build on the
established positions of each operation and develop a
strategy to create a stronger Waterman Australia.
As previously announced, on 1 April 2015, the Group
invested AUD 1.6 million (equivalent to approximately
£0.82 million at 1.94 AUD: GBP) before transaction costs
to increase its ownership of the Sydney business to 100%
(previously: 80%) and of the Melbourne business to 51%
(previously: 41%). The purchase was funded by a four year
AUD 1.6 million term loan from HSBC Bank plc. Interest on
the loan will be charged at 2.5% per annum over AUD LIBOR.
Further information is included in note 15 to the financial
statements.

New Long Term Incentive plan
A new incentive scheme for senior management was
approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
in December 2014. This Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
provides senior management with an award of shares which
vest in part when the share price, which was 52 pence at the
time of shareholder approval, achieves certain trigger values
above 100 pence for a period of 25 consecutive dealing days
during the five year period from 9 December 2014. The LTIP
share awards will vest in full if the share price achieves the
trigger value of 150 pence for a period of 25 consecutive
dealing days.
Full details of the LTIP scheme were included in the
Chairman’s letter to shareholders issued prior to the Annual
General Meeting held on 5 December 2014. Further
information is included in note 23 to the financial statement.

Dividend
In line with the Group’s strategy to increase shareholder
returns, the Board is recommending a significant increase in
the dividend. This year we are proposing a doubling of the
dividend we are paying to our shareholders.
The Board is proposing to pay a final dividend of 1.2p per
share (2014: 0.6p). Subject to approval by the shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting, the final dividend will be
payable on 8 January 2016 to shareholders on the register
on 11 December 2015. The final dividend together with
the interim dividend of 0.8p paid on 17 April 2015 makes a
total dividend for the year of 2.0p (2014: 1.0p), an increase
of 100%. The full year dividend is covered 2.7 times by
adjusted earnings per share.

Over the last two years, the Board has delivered a doubling
of dividends year on year (2013: 0.5p, 2014 1.0p, 2015:
2.0p), reflecting its confidence in the strategy, financial
performance and future prospects of the Group.

Board and Staff
Roger Fidgen retired at the end of the Annual General
Meeting on 5 December 2014 after ten years on the Board,
including nine years as Chairman.
The Board thanks Roger for his guidance and leadership
to the Group throughout his tenure, especially during the
difficult times of the recent recession, and wishes him a long
and happy retirement.
Following Roger’s retirement I was appointed to the Board as
non-executive Director and Chairman.
As reported at the time of my appointment, I am a Chartered
Surveyor with over 40 years’ experience in the London
property market across several economic cycles. I was
previously Chief Executive of Baker Harris Saunders
Plc, which was the first surveying firm to float on the
London Stock Exchange. I have been Chairman of several
committees of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
and also the Master of the Chartered Surveyors Livery
Company.

aware of the full range of services we offer throughout
the Group and to increase our share of Public sector
opportunities.
The availability of skilled resources is a constraining factor.
Accordingly, our strategy is not to drive the maximum
revenue growth, but rather it is to improve Group profitability
through our long term relationships in the markets in which
we operate and to become the “Go to Consultant” for our
clients and employees.
It is in this context that the Board has created an aspiration
for the four years to June 2019, to increase the Group’s
adjusted operating profit margin towards 6% from the current
level of 3.3%. We anticipate that this aspiration will drive
a continued improvement in our financial performance and
will enable us to continue to create significant value for our
shareholders.
In conclusion, the Group is in excellent shape and
accordingly, the Board looks forward to the current year with
excitement and confidence.

Michael Baker
Chairman
30 October 2015

Since my appointment I have spent time in getting to know
many of our directors and staff and understanding how the
various elements of the business work together to maintain
and improve our position as a niche consultant. I am greatly
encouraged by what I have seen and I congratulate our staff
and colleagues for delivering a successful year.

Outlook
The Board has recently completed a review of the Group’s
progress against the previously published three year strategic
target to triple adjusted annual profits before tax to £3.3m
over the three year period to 30 June 2016, with a Return on
Capital Employed (ROCE) of 20%. Given the recent strong
performance, the Board now expects the Group to exceed the
profit target during this financial year and we have already
exceeded our ROCE target, a year early.
Waterman will continue to focus on the core markets in the
UK, Australia and Ireland where clients and revenue are more
secure and we see plentiful opportunity. Two important
initiatives have begun that will ensure our clients are fully
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Strategic Report

Business Model

A review of the Group’s activities and performance for the year is presented in the Business Review on pages 12 to 44. This was approved by the board on 30
October 2015.

Waterman provides engineering and environmental consultancy advice to the property and infrastructure markets.
The group operates in two business segments, Property and Infrastructure & Environment.

Waterman has completed the second year of its strategy to drive shareholder value through profitable growth.
In the 2013 Annual Report, Waterman confirmed the following strategic objectives:-

Property

Strategic objectives

Outcomes during FY15

To be consultant of choice to our employees, clients
and shareholders

Employee numbers: Up 14% to 1,259
Long term order book: Up 8% to £130m
Structures

To focus primarliy on the growing UK market

To drive shareholder value

UK Revenue as % of Group Revenue: Up 2% to 89%

Annual Dividend: Doubled to 2 pence per share

Civil &
Transportation Consulting

Highways &
Transportation Outsourcing

Waterman’s group revenue is well balanced across all five core disciplines.
If a client requires a single or multi discipline service, Waterman has the expertise to deliver.
The comprehensive balance of disciplines provides diversity so that Waterman is not solely reliant on any one sector or any one business to deliver
the group strategy.

Highways &
Transportation Outsourcing
24%

Structures
26%

Civil &
Transportation Consultancy
15%
30%

Target £3.3m

£3m

20%

s
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Building Services
23%

Environmental
12%
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Share price: Up 37% to 72.5 pence (30 June 15)

Good progress has been made towards Waterman’s strategic financial targets.

£2m

Building Services

UK Revenue: Up 25% to £75m

Progress Against Strategy
£4m

Infrastructure & Environment

1y

£1m

£0m

0%
FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

To triple adjusted profit before tax over the
three years to £3.3m (FY16)*

FY13

FY14

FY15

FY16

Waterman’s continued focus on stable economic markets in the UK, Australia and Ireland has established firm foundations for the future. The proportion of revenue
generated from the UK has increased to 89% (FY14: 87%). All the regions are anticipated to continue to grow in the future.

To achieve a Return on Capital Employed
(ROCE) of at least 20%**

* Adjusted for amortisation of acquired intangible assets (note 2) and exceptional items (note 5).
** ROCE is calculated as adjusted operating profit divided by average capital employed. Capital employed is total equity less goodwill and net funds.

89%

8%

3%

Waterman continuously manages it’s risks and exposures. It’s principal risks, potential impacts and mitigation strategies are set out on pages 47 to 50.
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Staff & Management

Future Outlook

The Human Resources report on page 55 to 56 sets out how the company seeks to recruit, engage, invest in and reward our staff.

Waterman is over achieving against it’s current strategy and the board has carried out a review of the groups future potential.

Waterman aspires to be the

The Board’s aspiration over the next four
years to June 2019 is to increase the Groups
adjusted operating profit margin towards 6%
from the current level of 3.3%

GO TO CONSULTANT
Waterman’s success now and in the future provides opportunities for all of the groups stakeholders.
Our employees benefit from a long term career with Waterman and working in a thriving and enjoyable environment.
Our Clients benefit from established relationships with individuals who they can trust to provide high quality and timely advice
Our investors and shareholders benefit from the increased success of Waterman and return on their investment.

Two Chief Operating Officers are responsible for our business segments of Property and Infrastructure & Environment and they report to the Plc Board.

Targets for the Future
• Increase focus on major markets in the UK, Australia and Ireland
• Diversify further with a greater balance of Public/Private sector work
• In the UK double the size of our Building Services teams to generate £20m revenue by 2019
• Increase cross selling of services – provide more than one service on a project
• Develop a“Stronger Australia” with greater connectivity between offices and national marketing initiatives

Property Chief Operating Officer
Craig Beresford

Infrastructure & Environment Chief Operating Officer
Neil Humphrey

• Work on International projects from our design hubs in the UK and Australia
• Leverage resources and client relationships

UK Building Services
28%

UK Structures
49%

Civil &
Transportation Consultancy
28%

Highways &
Transportation Outsourcing
47%

• Win awards for design excellence

Awards
Property

Infrastructure &
Environment

© Ben Ghibaldan – Chapman Taylor

Australia
16%
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Europe
(Ireland &
Poland)
7%

Environmental
25%

© Philip Vile

© Hufton + Crow

Image Courtesy of AHR Architects

Trinity, Leeds

Everyman Theatre

NEO Bankside

Keynsham Civic Centre

Winner of 2015 VIVA
‘Best of the Best’ Design
and Development Award

2014 Stirling Prize Winner

2015 Stirling Prize Nominee

BCO Awards 2015
Best Corporate Workplace
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Business Review
The Group has made excellent progress with our strategy to have a greater
focus on the UK where 89% of our revenue is now generated.
We have experienced outstanding growth in our UK Structures
and Building Services property businesses and also in our
Highways and Transportation Outsourcing business. Overall,
our UK operations grew by 25%, significantly ahead of
the published 7% growth in output of the UK construction
industry in 2014. This success has been generated through
our niche position in several markets and our ability to cross
sell our services. Our clients remain very loyal and we have
increased our share of their workload and opportunities.
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In Australia we continue to deliver a consistent financial
performance, even though the slowdown of China’s growth
has impacted on the local economy. Our office in Dublin has
reported improving trading conditions as the requirement for
new office space and residential properties increases.

This recruitment has impacted on our operational costs
and margins in several of our businesses as it has proved
necessary to recruit through agencies involving one off
recruitment fees. However, we are not anticipating that
revenue and demand for our services in future years will
continue to grow at over 20% per annum which has been the
average over the last two years. Our investment in resources
should benefit future profitability following the initial
recruitment cost outlay.

Whilst fee levels currently remain competitive, there are
some signs of improvement particularly in the Highways and
in the private development sectors. During the year we have
recruited an additional 151 staff, an increase of 14%.

The majority of our revenue is generated from London based
clients, comprising major development companies, banks,
pension and property investment funds. As previously
anticipated, we are experiencing an increase in retail sector

activity, with 160,000 m2 of development designed by
Waterman currently under construction on sites in Leeds,
Newport and Oxford.
Following actions taken, the performance of our Civil and
Transportation Consultancy business has improved, with the
underlying performance moving towards a profit in the future.
Overall, the Group is expecting to exceed the previously
published financial target to triple the adjusted profits
before tax of £1.1m for FY 2013 during the three years to
30 June 2016.
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Property
2015

2014

£42.1m

£32.6m

Operating profit*

£2.6m

£3.1m

Operating margin

6.2%

9.5%

Revenue

The Property segment encompasses the UK Structures and Building Services businesses which are
involved in development projects both in the public and private sectors. In addition, this segment
includes our overseas business in Australia (which is partly owned by the Group), Ireland and Poland
which are solely involved in the engineering design of buildings.
Revenue for this segment has increased by 29% to £42.1m, with the majority of this growth in the
UK. The operating profit and margin has reduced during the year as we have needed to invest in the
recruitment of additional technical resources to service our greater workload and salary costs have been
increased in line with market conditions.

*Operating profit is stated before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

All our markets remain strong and we are currently utilising our staff in Ireland, Poland and Australia
to service some work in the UK. We also operate an outsourcing office in India which solely provides
draughting services for our UK structures team.

One Angel
Court
London

Image courtesy of Fletcher Priest Architects
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Two Fifty One
London

Structures
2015

2014

£20.9m

£15.4m

Operating profit*

£1.1m

£1.5m

Operating margin

5.3%

9.7%

Revenue

*Operating profit is stated before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

Waterman’s Structures business has expanded during the year with revenue increasing
by 36% to £20.9m. It has been necessary to increase our headcount during the period
to meet our clients’ requirements and this has resulted in additional costs being
incurred for one off agency recruitment fees which has reduced the operating profit and
margins. The enhanced capacity within the structures team will be available to service
our increasing workload and therefore the investment in staff will lead to higher margins
in the future years.
Waterman continues to win awards for the structural design of buildings in all markets
such as offices, retail and residential. One of our residential projects, NEO Bankside
situated next to the Tate Modern Gallery in London, was shortlisted for the prestigious
Royal Institute of British Architects 2015 Stirling prize.

RIBA Stirling Prize

600,000m2

“NEO Bankside next to the Tate Modern Gallery in
London, was shortlisted for the prestigious Royal
Institute of British Architects 2015 Stirling prize.”

“Waterman is currently providing advice on over
600,000m2 of retail development

CGI’s created by www.arc-media.co.uk - A development by Oakmayne
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One Angel
Court
London

Building Services
2015

2014

£11.8m

£8.1m

Operating profit*

£0.5m

£0.6m

Operating margin

4.2%

7.4%

Revenue

*Operating profit is stated before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

The Group strategy is to target significant growth in our Building Services group over
the next four years. Potential clients requiring building services consultancy advice are
synonymous with our structural clients and we will aim to leverage these established
relationships to cross sell our services, either as a single commission or part of a
multidiscipline appointment.
This engineering segment is an area of investment and opportunity for Waterman and
we are currently focusing on building a team capable of delivering design excellence
for our clients.
In October 2014, the Everyman Theatre in Liverpool won the Royal Institute of British
Architects Stirling prize for the ingenious use of natural ventilation to provide cooling
to the theatre. This innovative design by Waterman involved the development of
sophisticated computerised thermal modelling to predict the future temperatures within
the auditorium, thereby enabling the building services design to be finalised.

Six Schools

46,000m2

“In the North West we are appointed to provide detailed
design of six schools within the Priority Schools Building
Programme North West Batch.”

“Consultancy services on 10 Fenchurch Avenue which is
a 46,000m2 mixed use office development located
in the centre of London’s insurance district.”

Image Courtesy of Fletcher Priest Architects
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Business Review
Property

1 New
Street Square
London

Commercial

Residential

Tenant demand continues to drive forward commercial
development, particularly in the City of London where projects
have provided a high proportion of our revenue this year. We are
also experiencing increased demand for our services in regional
cities such as Birmingham and Manchester, where developments
are moving forward to tender and construction.

Demand for prime and super prime residential in London shows
little signs of slowing and our teams of structural and building
services engineers are busy delivering a variety of projects.

Waterman provided multidisciplinary services on the Land
Securities development at 1 and 2 New Ludgate in London,
which comprises 35,000m2 of grade A office space located
above retail units at ground floor level. Following the successful
completion of this project, Waterman has been retained by
Land Securities on 1 New Street Square, London which is a
27,000m2 development pre-let to Deloitte.
An unusual commission which is progressing on site, is Angel
Court in London developed by Mitsui Fudosan UK and Stanhope.
This 27,000 m2 project has involved the retention of significant
parts of the existing core structure which is enclosed with a new
steel superstructure incorporating an efficient building services
system.
Our Building Services team have been appointed by Generali to
provide consultancy services on 10 Fenchurch Avenue which
is a 46,000m2 mixed use office development located in the
centre of London’s insurance district. The 17 storey building has
been designed by Waterman to have an energy efficient façade to
reduce solar gain while maximising useful daylight.
In Birmingham, Waterman has recently been appointed by Legal
and General on their 15,000m2 Temple Court development.

The Clarges development by British Land opposite the Ritz
Hotel in London where Waterman is providing a multidiscipline
service, includes a new headquarters for the Kennel Club of
Great Britain. This 18,000m2 residential project provides 34
apartments arranged over ten floors, ranging in size from one to
five bedrooms.

Property

Commercial & Residential

Two Fifty One, formally known as Eileen House, is located at
Elephant & Castle in London. This whole district is undergoing
an extensive redevelopment and Waterman originally provided
environmental planning advice on the regeneration of the area.
Two Fifty One is a 41 storey residential tower designed by
Waterman in conjunction with Laing O’Rourke using their DfMA
prefabricated system for the structure and building services
systems.
Another project under construction is Tribeca Square at
Elephant & Castle, London which comprises 40,000 m2 of
high quality residential homes for developers Delancey and
Oakmayne.
Waterman is appointed to provide structural engineering
design services to Barratt London on the redevelopment of the
Sainsbury Nine Elms site. On completion, this site will deliver
over 700 new residential units in the Vauxhall area of London.
Recent completions include Buildings P1 and T1 for Argent at
Kings Cross which provide over 300 luxury apartments.

Image courtesy of Land Securities
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Business Review
Property

Retail and Urban
Regeneration
Several of our clients’ town centre retail led developments
designed by Waterman have progressed onto the construction
phase. Waterman is currently providing advice on over
600,000m2 of future retail development, of which over
160,000m2 is currently on site.
Large retail developments can often take many years to proceed
through planning to completion and these projects provide great
opportunities for Waterman to provide consultancy services at
all stages. We are currently moving into a period where retail
commissions will be providing an increasing proportion of the
Group’s revenue. Waterman has an extensive track record over
many years of successfully delivering large schemes such as
Bluewater, Bullring, Liverpool One and Westfield London and this
has enabled us to secure commissions on the next series of large
retail centres moving through the planning system such as Brent
Cross in London and Whitgift Centre in Croydon.
Projects designed by Waterman include Friars Walk, Newport,
a 38,000m2 retail led town centre development for Queensbury
Real Estate which is opening in the autumn of 2015. The 42,000
m2 first phase of Victoria Gate in Leeds commenced on site in
2014 and involves the construction of a John Lewis store and
retail units. Waterman has been involved with this project for over
ten years providing planning and pre-construction services to
the developer, Hammerson, for the comprehensive 100,000m2
development. We are currently providing detailed design services
for structures and building services to Sir Robert McAlpine who
are appointed for the construction of the first phase of the project
with completion in 2016.

In London, the West End continues to reinvent itself and
Waterman has provided consultancy services to The Crown
Estate on their many historic projects in Regent Street. The latest
development is St. James Market which provides 31,000m2
of mixed use retail and commercial space in two significant
buildings between Haymarket and Lower Regent Street.

Leisure
Waterman is providing building services designs to Reignwood
Group on the redevelopment of Ten Trinity Square in London.
The original building constructed in 1922 was previously the
Headquarters of the Port of London Authority, is Grade II* listed
and overlooks the Tower of London World Heritage site. The
building is being retained and sympathetically transformed into
a luxury Four Seasons hotel with 100 guest rooms and suites. At
the upper levels, 41 fully serviced luxury apartments are being
incorporated into the development. The complex routing and
access requirements of the building’s services has been carefully
considered by Waterman to limit damage to any of the heritage
areas and particularly the ceilings.
Waterman has been appointed by the British Museum to carry out
a full energy review of their prestigious Bloomsbury site which
extends over 75,000m2 and is visited by over 6 million people a
year. This review will evaluate and propose means of significantly
reducing the carbon emissions from the buildings.

Education

Energy & Industrial

Education has remained a major sector for our regional offices
with commissions for primary and secondary schools plus
further and higher education schools.

Waterman’s regional involvement in industrial projects is
increasing. We are currently providing design advice to Rolls
Royce on their jet engine casing production facility in
Hucknall, Nottinghamshire and Siemens have appointed
Waterman to design their new wind turbine factory in Hull.

As part of the Education Funding Agency Priority School Building
Programme, Waterman has been appointed as designers for
the Harris Academy for 1,150 students and the Stratford
Academy for 1,500 students in London.
Waterman is currently designing the Holywell primary
and secondary school as part of the North Wales Schools
Framework. Construction is progressing and the schools are
programmed for delivery in the summer of 2016.

In the Midlands at Nuneaton, we continue to provide
multidisciplinary consultancy services on the Motor Industry
Research Association (MIRA) complex. The redevelopment
of this site will provide the perfect location for the European
research and development of motor vehicles and associated
components. It is expected that development will be phased over
the next ten years.

In the North West we have been appointed to provide detailed
design of six schools within the Priority Schools Building
Programme North West Batch. These schools are of
significant importance as they represent the first series of
schools designed to the new Education Funding Agency design
guidelines.

As part of the ongoing framework with the Manufacturing
Technology Centre (MTC), Waterman have designed a third
technology building for our client at Ansty Park, Coventry. This
advanced Manufacturing Technology Centre will showcase the
cutting edge of British technology and will provide teaching
facilities for research and development engineering.

There is a greater emphasis on computer simulation based
design techniques and strict energy targets for all aspects of the
building energy use.

Waterman has been appointed by Vinci UK to provide
multidisciplinary design services for the construction of Allerton
Waste Recovery Park. This project is a 13,500m2 multitreatment development on 5.1 hectares of land in North Yorkshire
comprising an energy from waste facility, a mechanical treatment
facility and an aerobic digestion unit. The park will produce
220,000 MWh of renewable electricity per annum and is due for
completion and operation in 2018.

The third development designed by Waterman, which has
recently commenced on site, is the 80,000m2 extension to the
Westgate Centre in Oxford for Land Securities and The Crown
Estate. This project is due for completion in autumn 2017 and is
anchored by a 14,000m2 John Lewis store with retail and leisure
units along a mall leading onto the existing shopping centre,
which is also being refurbished.
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Australia
2015

2014

Revenue

£6.6m

£6.9m

Operating profit*

£1.0m

£0.9m

Operating margin

15.2%

13.0%

Operating profit due to non-controlling Interests

£0.5m

£0.5m

Operating profit due to Waterman shareholders

£0.5m

£0.4m

*Operating profit is stated before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

Melbourne

Sydney

Justice, healthcare, residential, sports and recreational markets
have continued to provide a base workload for the Melbourne
office.

Waterman’s Sydney operation is mainly focused on the
residential, education, bank fit out and telecommunications
markets where demand remains strong.

During the year Waterman has designed and documented the
AUD 130m Royal Victorian Eye and Ear Hospital and the
Monash Children’s Hospital with a construction value of
AUD 260m. We have recently been appointed designers for
the AUD 200m Sunshine Hospital Women’s and Children’s
Centre and this will generate fee income over the next two years.
Another appointment is the Technical Advisory role on the AUD
100m expansion of Casey Hospital in Victoria.

We have been appointed to provide building services design on
the AUD 100m Northpoint retail and hotel development in
North Sydney where our client wishes to utilise our 3D design
and draughting capability on this exciting project.

In Australia, we have businesses in Melbourne and Sydney. In April 2015, we
increased our ownership of the Melbourne business to 51% (previously 41%) and the
Sydney business to 100% (previously 80%).

In the sports and recreation market, we have completed the
design of the Eltham Leisure Centre and Aquanation Aquatic
Centre in Ringwood. We are currently designers for Franksten
Stadium and Bendigo Stadium.

Our Australian operation primarily provides building services consultancy advice to
the public and private sectors where demand has remained constant and resilient,
notwithstanding the slowdown of China and their reduced requirement for mineral
resources from Australia. The majority of our revenue is generated from healthcare,
education, prisons, residential, technology and bank fit out markets where demand
remains high.

We have completed building services designs for the new AUD
40m Robert Bosch Headquarters on the Clayton Campus in
Melbourne.
New appointments include a Technical Advisory role at St.
James Cook University in Cairns and building services designs
for a AUD 150m residential development in St. Kilda Road
which is near our offices in Melbourne.

Whilst revenue in Australia has slightly reduced over the year, operating profit has
increased with margins at a healthy 15.2% (2014: 13.0%). This performance reflects
the business’s niche position in several key markets.
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AUD $200m

101 Apartments

“We have recently been appointed designers for
the AUD 200m Sunshine Hospital Women’s and
Children’s Centre and this will generate fee income
over the next two years.”

“Airlie Beach resort development providing 101
apartments in Queensland has recommenced and
Waterman is appointed for both the building services
and structural design.”

In the residential market, Airlie Beach resort development
providing 101 apartments in Queensland has recommenced
and Waterman is appointed for both the building services and
structural design.
Universities have continued to generate revenue as they expand
their campuses to attract and accommodate overseas students.
Waterman is currently working on projects at UTS, Sydney
University, University of New South Wales, Wollongong
University and Macquarie University.
The financial services sector is experiencing a roll out of
upgrades in the retail outlets of many high street banks.
Waterman has been appointed to provide building services
designs for the upgrades for Commonwealth Bank, Westpac
Bank and St. George Bank across Australia. These are ongoing
commissions and we have completed one hundred branches
to date with an additional three hundred branch refurbishments
expected to continue to generate revenue over the next three
years.
We relocated our offices from the outskirts of Sydney into a more
central City location in February 2015. The new office provides
better connections with our clients, thereby reducing travel time.
In addition, we are aiming to recruit additional staff to service
the increasing workload and the City centre location provides a
greater access to the available resource pool in Sydney.

Robert Bosch Headquarters
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Europe (Ireland & Poland)
2015

2014

£2.8m

£2.1m

Operating profit*

£48k

£1k

Operating margin

1.7%

0%

Revenue

*Operating profit is stated before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

Waterman’s European operations, which are based in Ireland and Poland, have
experienced strong growth in the last year, with revenue up 33% to £2.8m. The
business has now returned to profitability after a number of very challenging years.
The Irish economy recorded the strongest growth figures in the Eurozone in 2014.
Investment in commercial property in Dublin has increased significantly, as the effect
of the stagnation of the last six years has resulted in a shortage of high quality office
space. The residential sector is also growing with a drive towards properties for lease
rather than traditional housing for sale. Retail, hotel, industrial and logistics sectors are
expected to become more active in the future.
The property sector in Poland remains more subdued, though with some signs of
increasing investment. Our Warsaw team has continued to provide technical support on
London and Dublin projects.

Ireland
Our Dublin office has seen considerable growth in its residential
workload in the year as projects start to move from planning
stage to construction. New commissions secured include
the 200 unit Marrsfield apartment scheme and projects
at Waterside Swords, Station Road Portmarnock, Oldcourt in
Firhouse and at Kilternan. Planning for Phase 3 of the Clancy
Quay development has also commenced. Construction is now
underway at Royal Canal Park for Ballymore, Oldtown and
Clongriffin for Gannon and at Clancy Quay (Phase 2) and Central
Park for Kennedy Wilson.
Waterman has been appointed by Green REIT to provide
structural design services for an eight storey 13,000m2 office
scheme at Central Park, and by state agency IDA Ireland, for an
office development at Tralee Technology Park, County Kerry.
Construction of a major refurbishment and extension to Baggot
Court in Dublin has commenced and will provide 18,000m2 of
Grade A office space on completion. Planning stage services
have also been completed for 35,000m2 of new development as
part of the Capital Dock scheme.
The retail sector remains more subdued, although there are signs
of activity levels starting to pick up. Planning stage services
have been provided for a major upgrade to Stillorgan Shopping
Centre, where Waterman are appointed to provide structural and
building services engineering. Construction of Aldi’s Terenure
store in Dublin, which incorporated elements of a historic tram
terminus building, has recently been completed and is due to
open for business in autumn 2015. We have subsequently been
appointed for the design of several new Aldi stores.
Waterman continues to be one of the leading consultancies in the
education sector in Ireland. Several significant new commissions
have been secured, including the thirty two classroom Harcourt
Urban primary school, which is to be developed as an
exemplar project for the Irish Department of Education, a six

26

18,000m2

35,000m2

“Construction of a major refurbishment and extension
to Baggot Court has commenced and will provide
18,000m2 of Grade A office space on completion.”

“Planning stage services have also been completed
for 35,000m2 of new development as part of the
Capital Dock scheme.”

hundred pupil secondary school at Clifden, County Galway,
and the Rapid Build Schools Framework for 2015. For this
latter appointment, Waterman has already provided all civil and
structural work required to obtain planning and to procure design
and build contractors for new schools at thirteen sites. Detailed
design has commenced for the one thousand pupil Kingswood
exemplar secondary school, South Dublin, while construction
of several primary school projects has been completed in the
year.
We have successfully strengthened our teams through
recruitment of additional senior and support staff. Our building
services team, only established in 2014, has made better than
expected progress and an increasing number of projects are now
being awarded on a multi-discipline basis. As a result Waterman
is well positioned to benefit from the continued recovery in the
Irish economy.

Poland
In Warsaw, the Waterman team has completed a number of
fit-out commissions for tenants of the Pramerica Tower in
Krakow, following completion of refurbishment work at the
building in early 2015. Structural design work for a 34,000m2
office in Domaniewska, Warsaw, has also been completed, with
construction due to commence in the coming months.
Waterman has been appointed to provide multi-discipline
engineering services for Palace Park, a new leisure and
residential community development south of Warsaw and
feasibility work for a retail refurbishment and extension scheme at
Zielona Gora.
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Infrastructure & Environment
Revenue
Operating profit/(loss)*
Operating margin
*Operating profit/(loss) is stated before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

2015

2014

£41.8m

£36.3m

£0.2m

(£1.6m)

0.5%

(4.4%)

The Infrastructure & Environment segment comprises Waterman’s Civil and Transportation Consulting,
Highways and Transportation Outsourcing and Environmental Consulting businesses.
Overall performance has resulted in an operating profit of £0.2m being delivered this year compared to
2014’s operating loss of £1.6m. Revenue has increased by 15% to £41.8m, primarily from the growth
of our Highways and Transportation Outsourcing business which has experienced a continuing strong
demand for our services.
The actions taken in 2014 to restructure the management of our Civil and Transportation Consulting
business and to reduce costs and increase utilisation has very significantly reduced the losses in this
business to £1.2m from £2.9m in the previous year. The current year loss in this business is in part due
to one off provisions on legacy projects, with the underlying performance moving towards a profit in the
future.
Several senior recruits have been made to focus on public sector frameworks and transportation planning
and therefore we anticipate that these sectors will generate additional revenue in the near future.

Battersea
Power Station
London

Image courtesy of Cityscape
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Civil and
Transportation Consulting

Noss Head
Wick

2015

2014

Revenue

£11.8m

£13.3m

Operating (loss)*

(£1.2m)

(£2.9m)

Operating margin

(10.2%)

(21.8%)

*Operating (loss) is stated before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

Revenue reduced by 11% to £11.8m and operating losses have reduced by £1.7m
to £1.2m. Included in this loss are legacy issues from historic projects which have
been protracted and a one off provision of £0.5m on two projects where final account
settlements have been reached with our clients.
Following the restructuring of the Civil and Transportation Consulting business in 2014,
significant improvements in the underlying performance have been achieved. The
business has now been streamlined and the forward order book continues to improve
giving confidence that it remains on course to deliver the Board’s strategic objective in
its return to profitability.
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£18m

200,000m3

“Bedford Western Bypass, the team is now retained
through the £18million construction phase by
J Breheny Contractors.”

“A twin 275KV substation at Farigaig, which involves the
blasting of rock and conventional mechanical extraction
of over 200,000 m3 of material.”
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Transport Planning

Transport Infrastructure

In the South, the residential sector has provided a good revenue
stream through the delivery of immediate supply sites as well
as promotion of strategic land through Local Plans for clients
including Linden Homes, Barratts, Crest Nicolson, Coca Cola
Enterprises, Countryside, Cala Homes, Network Housing
and Hyde Group. Key commissions included providing the
transport planning advice for a major mixed use and residential
development at Sampson House, Blackfriars, in addition to
on-going work advising the redevelopment of Cringle Dock
adjacent to Battersea Power Station to provide a new waste
transfer station, with 450 residential units above.

Highways

Marine

IIn London and the South East, having successfully completed
the design of Bedford Western Bypass on behalf of Bedford
Borough Council, our team is now retained for the £18million
construction phase by J Breheny Contractors. The team have also
been providing transportation advice and associated support to a
number of proposed allocations in Local Development Plans that
are being formulated throughout the UK.

In the marine sector, the team provided engineering input and
ground contamination advice to support the planning application
for a new cruise liner berth at Dun Laoghaire harbour in
Ireland, supporting the wider services being provided by our
Dublin office.

We continue to provide transportation and highways advice
to the States of Jersey Development Corporation for the six
building finance centre on the St Helier sea front. Following
planning consent we are also working with the new owner of
the site adjacent to Hampton Court Station to further optimise
the site layout and junction works for this residential led mixed
use scheme. In Milton Keynes we have provided transportation
advice to Hermes, the owners of the main retail centre, on their
emerging development plans and have recently helped secure
planning consent for a major new multi storey car park.
The Manchester transportation team has continued to grow
and provide technical support to our teams across the north of
England and Scotland. Notable commissions included assisting
Peel Energy with the expansion of their Scout Moor on-shore
wind farm, and delivering numerous transport assessments for
Scottish school projects commissioned through the HubWest
Framework.

We continue to provide transportation and
highways advice to the States of Jersey
Development Corporation for the six building
finance centre on the St Helier sea front.
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In the South West, the team was appointed on a number of
significant sized infrastructure schemes including a new link road
and enabling works in Abbeymeads; Swindon, Crosshands and
South Sebastopol near Cwmbran.
Rail
In the rail sector, the team has been engaged on the National
Station Improvement Programme designing upgrades at
Clapham Junction, Farnborough, Crystal Palace, Faversham,
Rainham, Portsmouth and Southsea, Putney, Virginia Water,
Walton-on-Thames and Hatfield Stations. Waterman are also
currently providing the Network Rail role of Contractor’s
Engineering Manager for a number of sizeable developments.
One involves the redevelopment around Twickenham Station
and another the 32 storey ‘Atlas’ development adjacent to the
railway viaduct at Vauxhall.
Aviation
In the aviation sector Waterman have provided support to British
Airways at Heathrow with maintenance projects and recent
new commissions relating to aprons, carparks, fire mains and
hydrants. Work at London City Airport has also been growing
with Waterman providing civil, structural and building services
support for the extension to the West Pier and civil engineering
support on a number of maintenance projects.

Power, Energy & Waste
In Scotland, the team has continued to be very active in the
Energy Sector, providing design services to a number of
Distribution Network Operation Companies (DNOs) in the
upgrading of the national grid infrastructure, on projects of
National significance, such as the Moray to Caithness Highvoltage, Direct Current (HVDC) project and the Foyers to
Knochnagale upgrade. Waterman have undertaken the design
role for a number of major substations in the Highlands including
a twin 275KV substation at Farigaig, which involves the
blasting of rock and conventional mechanical extraction of over
200,000 m3 of material in some of the remotest country in the
UK. Waterman were fortunate enough to be shortlisted for their
innovative approach on one such project at Noss Head HVDC
landing site, culminating in being a finalist at a national award.
More significantly, Waterman, in conjunction with SSE and Shell,
have had the privilege of providing geotechnical assistance for
the Horizontal Directional Drilling FEED study on the world’s
first full-scale gas carbon capture and storage (CCS) project at
Peterhead power station.
Our Energy team has continued to support Vinci UK in
constructing the Energy from Waste plant in Allerton and in
design of the Cringle Dock Project in London.

33

Business Review
Infrastructure
& Environment

Civil Structures and
Infrastructure
The London infrastructure teams continue to provide urban
regeneration services to many blue chip clients including
Hammerson, Land Securities and Hermes. In Brent Cross
and Canada Water, we are providing strategic infrastructure
advice on drainage and services within the site perimeter.
Other retail and residential projects include schemes in
Didcot Orchard Centre, Exeter Bus Station and Nine
Elms, Battersea. Within Greater London the drainage team are
working on the refurbishment and extension of several office,
retail and residential blocks including the redevelopment of St
Bart’s Hospital and several sites around Covent Garden and
Southampton Street.
The Civils teams in the south have been engaged on a number
of Waterman Property Group projects including Marble
Arch, Westgate, Sloane Street, Canada Water, Clarges,
Farringdon Road, Alderman House, Clearings, Star &
Garter and Ludgate/Sampson House as well as supporting
Berkeley Homes on their Riverside development in Woolwich,
St James Street on Peter’s Village project and Ringway
Island Roads. The services provided include ground movement
analysis, bridge assessments & design, independent design
checks of sub-structural work as well as obtaining approvals for
development over or adjacent to third party assets namely LUL,
Network Rail, RMG, Thames Water and London Overground. We
also continue to provide temporary works design and checking
for major contractors including Laing O’Rourke, O’Keefe, Volker
Fitzpatrick, ISG and Vinci.
In Bristol, the team were appointed to provide civil and substructure design advice on Cody Park, a data centre for Ark
Continuity, which follows similar on-going work at Spring Park,
Corsham for the same client. Pre-planning flood risk
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Public Sector
assessments and water resources assessments have been
completed for St James Group for the redevelopment of Southall
Gasworks, which has led to the provision of design advice.
Our Civils and infrastructure team in Manchester continues
to work on projects commissioned through the Merseytravel
framework, which is the integrated transport authority for
Merseyside. Work also continues for Metrolink RATP, and
M-Pact Thales (MPT) in relation to the Manchester tram system.
Schemes in Leeds and Oxford city centres are nearing design
completion and are on site encompassing drainage, S278 and
streetscape improvements for major shopping centres

We have been working in long term partnerships with many
public sector clients for nearly 20 years and have recently
secured significant extensions to some of our major frameworks.
In the London Borough of Bexley, Waterman has held
frameworks with the Council since 1996 providing a range of
engineering consultancy services. Earlier this year our contract
was extended for up to 4 years and includes provision of traffic
and transportation engineering services over and above the
current scope of civil, highway, bridgeworks, drainage, CDM-C
and staff secondment. The framework is an important part of
the long-term regeneration framework of the Borough’s growth
strategy for its economic, environmental and social regeneration.
The programme aims to strengthen Bexley’s reputation as a
desirable location to live in and do business, with plans to
expand its transport infrastructure and education programmes
while encouraging high aspirations and entrepreneurship.

More recently the business was appointment to the North
Lincolnshire Council Framework. The framework is for an
initial two years, with the option of further extensions. Services
include highway design/engineering, bridge engineering,
traffic and transportation, drainage design and surface water
management.
Following on from previous successful frameworks, Waterman
has been appointed to a new four year framework with
Merseytravel, the Executive body that provides professional,
strategic and operational transport advice to the Liverpool City
Region Combined Authority, to provide multidisciplinary
engineering consultancy services covering expertise across
rail, civil & structural, transport, highways infrastructure and
business case development. The framework can also be used by
the constituent councils of the Liverpool City Region Combined
Authority and the Liverpool City Region Local Enterprise
Partnership (LEP).

In Crawley, West Sussex, Waterman has secured a two year
extension of three partnering contracts with Crawley Borough
Council, providing civil engineering, flood alleviation, drainage
and structural engineering services. The extended contracts are a
continued co-operation with the Council to achieve the aims and
objectives of their Sustainable Community Strategy in delivering
a range of environmental improvements as part of their Capital
and Revenue Programmes.

We have been working in long term partnerships
with many public sector clients for nearly 20
years and have recently secured significant
extensions to some of our major frameworks.
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Highways and
Transportation Outsourcing
2015

2014

£19.8m

£14.6m

Operating profit*

£0.8m

£0.7m

Operating margin

4.0%

4.8%

Revenue

*Operating profit is stated before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles

This financial year has seen continued strong demand for Waterman’s specialist
secondment services in the highways and transportation markets. In response to this,
staff numbers have increased from 311 to 414, up 33%. This has necessitated an
enhanced overhead support structure to co-ordinate and manage the larger number of
engineers on secondment and support plans for further growth in staff numbers.
Government investment in the highways programme and on major infrastructure
projects has created a skills shortage. The requirement for Waterman’s services has
increased and margins are likely to trend upwards in future years as skilled resources
become sought after by local authorities, consultants and contractors.

Secondment
The Group’s specialist secondment business trades as Waterman
Aspen, which has built a strong track record by seconding
engineers to a range of clients in the highways and transportation
sector. In the last year the significant increase in employee
numbers has been achieved by incremental growth in all parts
of the UK, underpinned by strong performance in servicing three
major local authority frameworks:-

• The Hampshire County Council Strategic Partner
Contract, also in association with Atkins, was awarded
in April 2014 and we have 30 seconded staff in place. With
satisfactory performance this initial 4 year contract which ends
in 2018 has the potential to be extended to 2022. Waterman is
also supporting Atkins with a further 30 staff working
throughout the UK.

• The Midlands Highway Alliance Professional Services
Partnership 2 contract was re-awarded to an AECOM/
Waterman partnership in April 2015. This framework is now
in its 7th year and has expanded to serve 20 local authorities,
representing 15% of all UK highways authorities. This
framework extends to 2018 with the additional potential for a
one year extension. Demand has remained strong and at 30
June 2015 we had 76 staff working within these authorities
under this framework. Waterman is also supporting AECOM
with a further 18 staff on its other local authority
commissions.

These major framework wins have been captured by collaborating
with partner consultants and we continue to secure further
opportunities on future bids and frameworks.

• The West Midlands Highways Alliance is the
corresponding framework in the West Midlands area. This
contract was awarded in May 2013 to an Atkins/Waterman
partnership. Over the course of the year, the number of
seconded staff working within the three main participants,
Warwickshire County Council, Coventry City Council and
Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council, has increased to 82.
This framework extends to 2017.

The client facing management team has been strengthened in
all parts of the UK, especially in London and the South East
where we have the greatest potential to attract staff and generate
opportunities to support new Clients. Diversification into new
sectors including water, utilities and rail is being targeted.
Our business model remains robust and we continue to maintain
our USP and differentiate ourselves from recruitment agencies
by employing a majority of our secondees. Employees receive
varied experience and effective training and development, all
important factors in staff retention.

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Midlands Highway Alliance
(AECOM/Waterman)
West Midlands Highways Alliance
(Atkins/Waterman)
Hampshire County Council
(Atkins/Waterman)
London Borough of Bexley
(Waterman)
note: the dotted lines show the potential extensions to the current frameworks
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Elephant
& Castle

Environmental

London

2015

2014

£10.2m

£8.3m

Operating profit*

£0.6m

£0.6m

Operating margin

5.9%

7.2%

Revenue

*Operating profit is stated before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

Waterman’s Environmental business continued to build on the success in prior years,
delivering 23% growth in revenue to £10.2m and improving its market position,
especially in its pre-planning services.
The focus of the business has been maintained with respect to delivering value added
strategic advice to clients, and minimising their environmental related commercial risks
either through acquisition, or the planning process. Positive progress was also made
with respect to the strategic objective of diversifying the business into the infrastructure
market to create a more adaptive business. Prospects for the forthcoming financial year
remain positive with good levels of forward orders.
The business continues to focus on maintaining long term relationships with clients,
and developing services and products which provide pragmatic, commercial advice and
added value.

2.43 hectare

£850m

“Ballymore’s 2.43 hectare residential scheme in the
docklands, located directly to the south of their 1000
home City Island development .”

“The team have provided detailed support to TH Real
Estate on the detailed design and application process for
the £850m Edinburgh St James project.”

Images courtesy of Lend Lease

38
18

39

Business Review
Infrastructure
& Environment

Due Diligence and
Environment Management
It has been a further excellent period for Waterman’s due
diligence service. The team cemented its position as a leading
advisor to the real estate sector, supporting numerous clients
across the UK and internationally, and was awarded Property
Due Diligence Firm of the Year 2015 for the second year in a
row by Acquisitions International. In the UK, the team advised
Blackstone on the refinancing of the large and recently acquired
Max Property Group, whilst in Europe we supported BMO Real
Estate Partners (formerly F&C Reit) on their first European
acquisition involving properties in Germany, Belgium and
Netherlands.

in addition to data security. This year, the team developed a new
Hazard Register function, initially for Tata Steel, but with a view to
expanding the function to further clients. This tool allows clients
to document, assess and control their occupational health and
safety hazards. There has also been growth internationally and
Greenspace is now operational in Sweden, Holland, Australia,
China, Russia, Malaysia and USA.
The Health & Safety team has positioned itself at the forefront of
the transition to CDM 2015, offering high quality and commercial
Principal Designer and client advisor services, having been
appointed as advisor on a large number of high profile projects.

In the infrastructure sector, the team supported the acquisition of
Glasgow, Aberdeen and Southampton Airports by Macquarie
and Ferrovial, Toulouse Airport, Green Highlands Renewables Ltd
(a hydroelectric business) and Wightlink Ferries. Transactional
work in the Mergers and Acquisitions field also experienced
growth, with particular emphasis on the leisure sector. Waterman
also advised on a number of corporate deals, including the
acquisition of Away Resorts and Bridge Leisure.
As the business continues to diversify its service offering,
Waterman has established itself as a leading adviser in
Responsible Investment, developing a series of tools and
services and was awarded Best ESG Strategy Advisor of the
Year 2015 by Acquisitions International.
Waterman’s environmental management advisory system,
Greenspace, was expanded further to cover corporate
environmental, health, safety and carbon management services

St James
Centre
Edinburgh
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In Scotland, the team have provided detailed
support to TH Real Estate on the detailed design
and application process for the £850m Edinburgh
St James project.

Pre-Planning Services,
Sustainability &
Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA)
Waterman continued to strengthen its position as a leading
provider of pre-planning EIA services for urban regeneration
projects. Notable large scale commissions in London included
continuing to support proposals at Brent Cross Cricklewood
for Hammerson and Standard Life Investments, Phase 4A of
Battersea Power Station for the Battersea Power Station
Development Company, British Land’s masterplan for Canada
Water encompassing Harmsworth Quays, Surrey Quays
Shopping Centre Site and the Surrey Quays Leisure Park
Site; Ballymore’s 2.43 hectare residential scheme in the
docklands, located directly to the south of their 1,000 home City
Island development and advising on the Car Giant and London &
Regional Properties’ masterplan for their 46 acre site at Old Oak
Park, part of the Old Oak Park & Park Royal development area
adjacent to the Old Oak Common proposed HS2 interchange.
In the South West the team provided pre-planning services to a
host of schemes across the residential, commercial, industrial,
leisure and retail sectors. In the residential sector, the team
supported Taylor Wimpey on three schemes in Wales at Rhoose
(350 homes), Penllergaer (250 homes) and South Sebastopol
(1200 homes), in addition to advising on a major residential
development on the outskirts of Hereford. For the past two years
the team has also been advising on environmental issues and
designing the infrastructure and highway improvements for
the Graven Hill New Urban Village, Bicester, Oxfordshire,
a 207 hectare operational MOD site that has been purchased
by Cherwell District Council /Graven Hill Village Development
Company.
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In the North and Midlands, the team began the year advising on
major residential-led developments proposed in Lincolnshire
and Cambridgeshire. As the year progressed, an outline planning
application was submitted for a 90 hectare strategic greenfield
site in the Midlands for a residential led scheme providing up to
1,700 units along with a retirement village, commercial units,
community facilities, a primary school and an energy centre.
During the year a new masterplan was also developed for the
Hungate site, the residential led scheme for Lend Lease/Evans
Property joint venture in York.
In Scotland, the team have provided detailed support to TH Real
Estate on the detailed design and application process for the
£850m Edinburgh St James project, involving key inputs to
support two successful planning committee hearings, including
the high profile central hotel design. The team are also finalising
the EIA, together with specialist marine consultancy Fugro EMU,
for the £350m Aberdeen Harbour Expansion Project; one
of Scotland’s key national infrastructure projects. Elsewhere,
specialist technical support has been provided on a wide range
and scale of residential, retail, education and healthcare projects;
the latter of which as part of a multi-disciplinary Waterman
offering to the HUB framework.
Ecological services continued to build on the growth witnessed
in previous years, with the team being expanded nationally,
and advising on numerous projects including Land South of
Newark for Catesby Property Group, Land South of Clovelly Road,
Bideford for Linden Homes, Leybourne Grange for Taylor Wimpey

and a portfolio of sites for Aldi across Scotland. Of particular
note is the addition of specialist aquatic ecology services to
the national skill set, via the Glasgow office. Complimenting
this service line, the Landscape and Heritage teams also grew
nationally, providing a holistic approach and an integrated design
solution.
Sustainability support services continue to thrive with support
being provided to Weston College, Data Centres in Corsham
and Farnham, Esplanade Quarter Jersey, 21 Glass House
Street and the US Embassy in London, in addition to the
Manufacturing Technology Centre in Coventry where we are
providing wider Group engineering services.
Waterman’s Acoustics team has continued to enjoy a period of
growth in both the property and non-property sectors. The team
has recently completed acoustics assessments for Hampden
Park Stadium in Glasgow together with providing acoustic
support from pre-planning to completion for major developments
throughout the UK. Key commissions include St James
Quarter, Edinburgh and One Angel Court in London, whilst
work continues on a number of high profile projects including
Two Fifty One, a residential development located in Elephant
and Castle, Clarges Estate a high end residential development
in Mayfair, and 10 Trinity Square, the conversion of an existing
Grade II listed building to provide residential and a hotel
development.
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Business Review
Infrastructure
& Environment

Geo-environmental
Watterman’s land quality and brownfield regeneration team
experienced significant growth in workload during the year,
advising on a number of complex projects.
In London, works progressed at the Old Gasworks in Sutton,
with the demolition of two gas holders and an 11 storey tower
block and the on-site remediation works are nearing completion.
The team has also been supporting Royal Mail in the flagship
redevelopment of the South London Mail Centre at Vauxhall,
itself a former gas works. This site is one of the largest
remediation projects in London at the moment.
Our understanding of the development process and our ability to
offer pragmatic commercial environmental solutions continues
to ensure we are involved in numerous large multidisciplinary
schemes. Detailed geotechnical and environmental investigations
have been completed on a number of projects where the
interaction of London Underground infrastructure has been
carefully modelled and where foundation solutions for high rise
towers have been designed without impacting the neighbouring
buildings.
Outside of London, our Bristol team has had a very busy year
delivering a wide range of assessments on a number of different
mixed use and commercial schemes for Kier Property and
residential led developments for Taylor Wimpey. They have
also completed a large ground investigation for the Esplanade
Quarter, Jersey and continue to support the Client on delivering
the first phase of development, as part of the overall Group
engineering services.
The Leeds and Manchester teams are continuing to assist with
the John Lewis anchored Victoria Gate scheme in Leeds,
supporting Sir Robert McAlpine with site enabling works. The
team is also continuing to provide support to Vinci UK with
the geotechnical design of an Energy from Waste plant in
Allerton, North Yorkshire. The team’s remediation specialists are
also assisting with the ground remediation of a former RAF base
in Cambridgeshire
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Group Outlook
The foundations of Waterman’s current success were established
two years ago when we withdrew from several overseas countries
to focus on the mature markets in the UK, Australia and Ireland,
where we have strong positions in our chosen sectors.
A restructure and streamlining of the management and reporting
structure has more fully integrated our international business with
the UK which has created opportunities for sharing of clients,
resources and technical support.
Significant progress has been made to focus the Group on strong
and growing markets where Waterman has established client
relationships. Waterman’s order book has grown by 8% to £130m
(2014: £120m) and the range of future work is more diverse than
in previous years.
In the immediate short term, Waterman is focused on improving
the performance of our Civil and Transportation Consulting
business. The Board is confident of meeting our stated targets
for 2016. Looking further ahead, we have set a new aspiration to
increase the Group operating profit margins from the current level
of 3.3% towards 6% by 2019.
Nick Taylor
Chief Executive
30 October 2015
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Key Performance Indicators

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board set annual objectives, which focus on deliverables in support of both short-term results and the overall longer term strategy.
A number of metrics are used to monitor performance; these include UK revenue growth, Profit before tax, Earnings per share, Net Cash,
Return on Average Capital Employed and Dividend per share.

Waterman is a risk-conscious organisation; but not risk averse.

UK Revenue Growth
£m

The Group has a number of potential risks and uncertainties which could have a material impact on its long-term performance. Many of these are
common to other businesses operating in the Group’s chosen markets. The Board recognises that effective risk management is fundamental to
helping achieve the Group’s strategic objectives. Effective risk management continues to be embedded in our annual budgeting and strategic
planning processes. The risk management framework influences the Board’s risk appetite when assessing the nature and extent of risk which it will
accept in order to deliver its strategic and operational objectives

74.6
59.3
49.9

Profit before tax *

Earnings per share **

(Continuing Operations)

(Continuing Operations)

£m

Pence
2.7

25%
Increase

5.4

93%
Increase
1.1

170%
Increase

1.4
1.4

2013

2014

2015

2013**

2014

2015

2013*

2.0

2014

2015

Definition/Relevance
UK Revenue Growth is the percentage change in
revenue from UK operations in the current year
(89% of Group Revenue in 2015) from the prior
years. This KPI measures our strategy to focus
on UK Revenue Growth.

Definition/Relevance
The level of adjusted profit before tax represents
the results of the basic operating elements of the
Group’s performance.

Definition/Relevance
Adjusted Earnings per share is a measure of the
return generated for each holder of an ordinary
share. It is a key metric used by our investors in
assessing whether we are delivering a suitable
return.

Progress
The improving UK economy in many of our areas
of operation gave us opportunities to increase our
market share and penetrate sectors more deeply.

Progress
We plan to exceed our former target of tripling
the adjusted profit before tax (as reported in
2013) to £3.3m by 30 June 2016.

Progress
170% increase in Earnings per share as the
Groups financial performance continues to
improve.

* Before amortisation of acquired intangibles
and exceptional administrative expenses.

* Before amortisation of acquired intangibles and
exceptional administrative expenses.

** As previously reported in the 2013 Annual
Report and Financial Statement; includes £0.5m
loss from discontinued operations in 2014.

** As previously reported in the 2013 Annual
Report and Financial Statement; includes £0.5m
loss from discontinued operations in 2014.

Net Cash
£m

Return on Average Capital Employed
(ROCE)
%
3.8

30.3

138%
Increase

165%
Increase

1.6
1.1

2013

7.6

2014

2015

Definition/Relevance
Net cash is used to monitor the cash generation
of the Group and how successful it is at
managing it’s working capital.
The Group’s objective is to maintain a net
cash position.
Progress
Strong cash generation from operations has
contributed to an increase in net cash of 138%
in the year.

2013*

11.4

2014

2.0
100%
Increase
1.0

2014

2015

Definition/Relevance
ROCE is a key metric used to monitor
progress against our key objective of increasing
shareholder return. It is calculated as adjusted
operating profit divided by total equity
less goodwill and net cash.

Definition/Relevance
A distribution of after-tax profits divided by the
number of ordinary shares in issue. Dividends
give shareholders a financial reward that is a
key element in achieving our key objective of
increasing shareholder return.

Progress
We have exceeded our target of achieving
a Return on Average Capital Employed of 20%
by 30 June 2016.

Progress
Dividend per share doubled in 2015 reflecting
increased earnings and strong cash performance.

* As previously reported in the 2013 Annual
Report and Financial Statement; includes £0.5m
loss from discontinued operations in 2014.
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Dividend per share
Pence

2013

To enable it to deliver value to all stakeholders, the Board looks for ways to mitigate these risks where possible. In order to achieve its business
objectives, the Group must respond effectively to the associated risks. In light of the guidance provided within the updated UK Corporate
Governance Code 2014 (Refer to the Corporate Governance Report on page 66), management have updated their risk management procedures to
ensure compliance with the updated Code by June 2016.
In compliance with the new guidance, during the year the principal operating companies and Group functional areas performed a robust
assessment of the principal risks affecting their businesses and functional areas, the potential consequences of these risks and the methods by
which these risks are monitored, managed and mitigated. The Group CFO consolidated the risks submitted by the functional areas and businesses
to compile the Group’s strategic risk register.
The Board reviewed the results of the assessments and strategic risk register. The strategic risk register is reviewed and updated monthly by
Executive management and reviewed by the Board at its monthly meetings.
The Board recognises it is not possible to fully mitigate all risks that the Group encounters.
The principal risks for the Group, their potential impacts and mitigation strategies are set out in the following table:

Risk

Impact

Mitigation

Reduced demand for our services can result
in project cancellation, payment default and
client failure.

Our strategy is to reduce risk by providing
a limited range of professional services
to high quality clients in the UK (89% of
revenue in FY2015) together with selected
overseas markets. We aim to ensure that
debtor exposure to individual clients is limited
appropriately.

Economic Outlook
Economic guide
Changes to economic and market conditions,
as part of the economic cycle, will impact
upon expenditure on construction projects
from both public sector and private sector
clients.

0.5

2015

The Board seeks to understand, explore and manage risk in order to deliver its strategy. It recognises that every activity that the Group engages in
must uphold and promote its reputation, for it is our reputation that matters most to us.

Demand for our services will be affected and
resources will need to be adjusted to align
with changing demand for our services.

Increased demand for our services can result
in shortage of staff resources and pressure on
working capital.
Profit margins will come under pressure when
demand and prices fall or when demand
increases and staff resources become scarce
leading to increased staff costs to enable staff
retention.

We focus attention on sectors and markets
with attractive growth prospects, where we
can make acceptable returns on capital
employed and on clients with stable finances.
We align resources to meet actual and
projected levels of demand.
We seek to utilise resources around the Group
to meet demand in growth markets and
sectors to enhance the Group’s agility and
staff utilisation.
We aim to invoice clients promptly for services
rendered and secure payment at the earliest
opportunity. By doing this, we minimise the
risk of payment failure and reduce the level of
working capital employed on projects.
In recent years we have withdrawn from
certain overseas markets where the risk
of non-payment or delayed payment was
unacceptably high for our risk appetite.
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Risk

Impact

Mitigation

Risk

Impact

Mitigation

The Group must comply with the laws
and regulations of the countries in which it
operates.

Breaches of laws or regulations can result in
fines, imprisonment and reputational damage.

Compliance with Health and Safety laws
and environmental legislation is of particular
concern during the planning, design and
construction phases of a project.

Shortcomings in our service delivery
could result in a health and safety or
environmental incident leading to injury, loss
of life or damage to a development and our
commercial reputation.

The Group has effective policies and
procedures in place setting out its
approach to regulatory and legal matters.
In house specialists regularly update our
documentation and external advisers audit
our compliance with written policies and
procedures. Project checking and peer
reviews are ongoing.

Economic Outlook

Regulations, Systems and Control

Dependence on key clients

Regulatory and legal

Too great an exposure to one of our key
clients can lead to an over dependence on
those clients.

In the event that any major client ceases to
procure services from the Group, this may
have a material adverse effect on revenue,
profit and cash flow.

The Group has over 1,700 fee paying clients.
In FY2015,
• Our top client represented 7% of
Group revenue
• Our top five clients represented 19% of
Group revenue
• Our top ten clients represented 26% of
Group revenue
We continue to target new clients to maintain
the diversity of clients throughout the Group
and reduce the over dependence on any one
client.

Reputation and staff

Systems and IT

Reputation

In common with most businesses, the
Group must provide and maintain effective
operational and IT systems for the protection
of its intellectual property, service delivery and
provision of reliable information to its clients
and management.

The Group’s reputation is key to its success.
Meeting clients’ expectations to deliver a high
quality service at a competitive price and to
time is essential and encourages clients to
regularly appoint Waterman for substantial
and high profile projects and commissions.

A serious project failure would damage
our reputation for technical excellence and
affect our growth prospects and financial
performance.

Our good reputation and ability to secure
the most exciting and challenging projects
underpins our ability to recruit the best staff
available.

In all offices, the Group uses reliable and
tested design software with effective staff
training to develop innovative solutions to
design issues and client needs. Robust
quality control systems ensure that all work is
thoroughly checked before issue. We currently
hold accreditation to various quality standards
including ISO 9001 (Quality Management),
ISO 14001 (Environmental Management) and
OHSAS 18001 (Occupational Health and
Safety Management).
The integrated enterprise resource planning
system operated by all our UK businesses
enables project costs and performance to be
effectively managed and reported directly into
the financial systems.
Our policies and procedures reinforce the
importance of high ethical standards.
To maintain the highest standards of service,
we continue to invest in ongoing staff training
at all levels.

The Group remains vigilant regarding any
changes to laws and regulations in each of
the countries in which it operates. External
advice is sought from lawyers or consultants
to minimise the risk of a failure to comply.

The Data Protection Act imposes an obligation
on employers to deal with sensitive data
responsibly.

System failures may result in staff downtime,
data loss, failure to meet project deadlines
and poor quality or untimely information for
business management.

All our UK businesses operate on a common
set of IT platforms for service delivery and
management reporting which are backed up
daily.
A business continuity plan is in place to
minimise disruption if an office becomes
unusable.

Effective security over sensitive commercial
information and confidential personal data on
our employees must be maintained.

Overseas offices arrange system backups and
business continuity arrangements with local
providers.

Business continuity
A significant one-off event such as fire, flood
or terrorism affecting a key business location,
a key project or the Group’s integrated IT
systems.

This could interrupt service delivery, threaten
life and/or cause reputational damage to the
business.

Systems data is backed up daily to off-site
facilities. IT hardware would be replaced
quickly under contingency arrangements with
existing suppliers.
Contingency plans are in place to enable
management to respond promptly and
effectively to a crisis event.
Staff would be asked to relocate to other
offices or to work from home until new office
premises were made available.

Staff recruitment, retention and quality
Recruitment and retention of the highest
quality staff is essential to enable the Group
to respond to technical challenges with
innovative solutions on a timely basis.

Failure to meet quality standards or provide
effective solutions to technical challenges will
adversely affect our reputation and ability to
win high quality new work.

We aim to recruit and retain the best quality
staff by paying competitive salaries, offering
exciting project challenges and providing
comfortable working conditions.
The Board regularly reviews a number of
data metrics including headcount, leaver
information and staff attrition rates.
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Risk

Impact

Mitigation

Failure to maintain adequate levels of liquidity
could result in the Group’s inability to exploit
opportunities for growth.

Executive management continuously monitor
the adequacy of the Group’s liquidity.
Company budgets and forecasts will indicate
when additional funding is expected to be
required.

Financial
Financial constraints
The principal financial risk relates to liquidity
and compliance with bank covenants.
Adequate funding is essential to ensure the
Group’s continuance and future growth.
Bank covenants are tested for compliance at
least every six months.

Insufficient funds could result in a going
concern qualification and/or a withdrawal of
support by our banks.

Bank facilities are re-negotiated annually and
reports are submitted to our banks periodically
for their review.
Group facilities unused as at 30 June 2015
were £7.3million. In August 2015, the facility
limits of our Confidential Invoice Discounting
Facility were increased from £2.5million to
£6million, increasing the Group facilities to
£12.5million.

Foreign exchange
The exchange rate assumptions used to
forecast the expected revenue and costs
for a project change beyond the assumed
parameters.
The exchange rate assumptions used to
translate the financial performance of a
subsidiary which trades in a currency which
is not the Group’s reporting currency (GB
pounds) changes beyond the assumed
parameters.

A transaction gain or loss will arise which will
be recognised in the Income Statement.

Wherever possible, revenues and costs will be
matched in the same currency.

A translation gain or loss will arise which may
be recognised in the Income Statement or
taken to Reserves.

For large exposures, the Group aims to
provide natural hedges against foreign
exchange translation risk. The Group also
implements hedging procedures to form a
net investment hedge for instance, where a
material exposure is identified.
Our withdrawal in recent years from some
overseas markets has reduced our exposure
to foreign exchange movements.

Projects
The Group enters into a number of complex
long-term contracts, which can span a
number of reporting periods, together with a
large number of individually small contracts.

Poor management of projects could lead
to client dissatisfaction, damage to our
reputation for technical excellence and
a deterioration in the Group’s financial
performance.

Levels of financial authorisation operate
to ensure that all major bids are properly
reviewed to ensure that pricing levels,
payment terms and profit margins are
adequate before commissions are accepted.
The need to control project variations and
scope creep is monitored to ensure that
potential problems are identified and actioned
promptly in order to preserve the planned
financial outcome.

Keynsham
Civic Centre
Keynsham

Image courtesy of AHR Architects
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Board of Directors
Michael Baker

Nicholas Taylor

Michael Baker is a chartered surveyor with over 40 years’
experience in the London property market. He was previously
Chief Executive of Baker Harris Saunders Plc, which was the first
surveying firm to float on the London Stock Exchange. He was
also a Non-Executive Director of property company Halladale
Group PLC throughout its time as a quoted company.

Nicholas was appointed to the Board in January 2003 as an
Executive Director and was appointed Chief Executive in July
2007. Nicholas joined Waterman as a graduate engineer in 1982
following two years’ previous construction experience with Taylor
Woodrow. His career progressed with Waterman and by 2000
he was joint Managing Director of Waterman Structures with
promotion to Chairman of this business in 2005. Nicholas is a
chartered engineer, a Member of the Institution of Civil Engineers
and a graduate of INSEAD’s Advanced Management Programme.

Ric Piper

Alex Steele

Ric was appointed to the Board in January 2013. He is a
Chartered Accountant and a member of the Financial Reporting
Review Panel. Ric was Group Finance Director of WS Atkins
plc from 1993 to 2002. He is a NED of a number of other
businesses. In addition, he has been a partner with Restoration
Partners Limited, which advises technology businesses,
since 2006.

Alex was appointed to the Board as Group Finance Director in
February 2010. Alex qualified as a Chartered Accountant in
1997. She trained with PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) working
in the United States, mainland Europe, Australia and the United
Kingdom, specialising in the audit of listed companies. During
her time with PwC, she also advised upon several buy side due
diligences. Alex joined Waterman in March 2008, as Group
Divisional Director of Finance. In 2014, she became Chief
Financial Officer.

Geoffrey Wright

Craig Beresford

Geoff was appointed to the Board in June 2007. Prior to joining
Waterman, Geoff was a Director of Hammerson UK Properties
Plc where he was responsible for the construction and project
management of the development programme. He is a past
President of The Chartered Institute of Building.

Craig was appointed to the Board in January 2003. Craig
joined Waterman in 1984 following several years involved
in construction for specialist contractors. He was appointed
Managing Director of Waterman Structures in 2008 having
previously been joint Managing Director of this business.
In 2013, Craig was appointed Chief Operating Officer of the
Property Board within Waterman. Craig is a chartered engineer
and a Member of the Institution of Civil Engineers.

Non-Executive Chairman

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Independant Non-Executive Director
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Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Executive Director
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Human Resources

The secret to our success
is our people!

Our Staff

This year has seen significant growth within our employee numbers, as we continue to attract talent to service our growing workload. We recognise
that our staff are key to our continued success and in support of this, we are dedicated to continual investment in their professional and personal
training.
Our technical experts continue to demonstrate their creativity and innovation, with our projects winning significant industry awards including the RIBA
Stirling Prize for the Everyman Theatre in October 2014. This innovation enhances our reputation within our business sector and provides us with the
opportunity to attract and retain a highly skilled and talented workforce.
We acknowledge that within our working environment, equality of opportunity for all staff is important in meeting the aspirations of our stakeholders.
Our strong brand and culture has strengthened our aim to be the ‘Go to Consultant’ for our employees. To retain this valued reputation, we
continually seek ways in which we can enhance our employees’ experiences with us by rewarding and celebrating their successes.

Recruitment

In response to the increased demand for our services on major national and international projects staff numbers have increased during the year
by 14% to 1,259 (2014: 1,108). Waterman has invested in its in-house recruitment team to increase our direct hire capability and ensure that we
continue to recruit the highest calibre engineers, consultants and support staff to service our business.

Engagement

Waterman recognises the value of regular communications with its staff. We have carried out employee surveys over the year to engage with staff
and promote inclusivity when developing our brand and our values. We have listened to their views and opinions on topics such as the effectiveness
of central services’ support and our flexible benefits scheme. We listen to their ideas to continually improve our overall employment package.
Our Group intranet is the main communications channel within the company. It is used to circulate information from management on a number of
topics such as strategy, new commissions secured, high profile tenders, employee achievements, promotions and social news. It also allows staff to
network internally, connect with colleagues with relevant expertise within the Group and share skills and project information.
In addition to the intranet, the Group newsletter, Waterman Times, is available to all employees, shareholders and clients.
Our board holds its monthly Board meetings both in London and its regional offices, and takes the opportunity to meet with and gain feedback from
staff in each of its offices.

Investment in our People

Waterman recognises that its staff are its most important asset. It places great importance on its ability to attract and retain staff of the highest
calibre by offering competitive salaries and benefits, effective training and career development opportunities. Waterman is committed to
employment policies which follow best practice, based on equal opportunities for all employees, irrespective of sex, race, colour, diversity or marital
status. It gives full and fair consideration to employment applications from disabled persons, having regard to their particular abilities and aptitudes.
Appropriate arrangements are made for the continued employment and training, career development and promotion of disabled persons employed
by the Group. If members of staff become disabled, the Group will continue to employ that person either in the same or an alternative position, with
appropriate retraining being given if necessary.
Waterman recognises that the professional development of its staff is central to our delivery of quality and excellence in engineering and
environmental consultancy services. The Company therefore provides for individual development via staff training programmes. A performance
appraisal scheme is used to monitor career development and progression and supports our long term succession planning strategy. Our
commitment to vocational training has supported the company’s growth by attracting high calibre candidates and reinforcing technical excellence
on our projects.
We are committed to providing alternative development routes towards becoming an engineer, environmental consultant or technician and an
apprenticeship programme is delivered across all of our engineering disciplines. In the next financial year and in line with Waterman’s membership
of the Technician Apprenticeship Consortium (TAC), we anticipate that further apprentices will be recruited via the National Apprenticeship Service
(NAS) and South Thames College in London. The programme enables engineering technician apprentices to study for an Advanced Level 3
Apprenticeship in Construction & the Built Environment.
As part of our overall commitment to attracting and retaining staff at all levels, we are also sponsoring 13 UK undergraduates through their
university studies. We are dedicated to sponsoring new students each year, particularly via our links with Bristol and Surrey Universities. As well
as sponsorship, each student has the opportunity to complete an eight week work placement during the summer months and, for certain degree
programmes, students may also undertake a one year placement. Upon completion of their studies, sponsored students will have the opportunity to
secure a permanent graduate position within the Company.

In the last 12 months we have attracted over
150 additional engineers and consultants, many in specialist
job roles, reaffirming us as one of the UK’s leading
engineering & environmental consultants.
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In addition to our sponsorship schemes, Waterman also provides summer work placements to Advanced Level students and undergraduates
from colleges and universities throughout the UK and overseas. We offered 11 placements during the last year to non-sponsored undergraduate
students.
Waterman offers work experience placements during the school holidays to students aged between 14 and 16. During the past year, 23 placements
were made around the UK and overseas, each lasting one to two weeks. These opportunities allowed students to gain experience from both
practical and theory based projects and helped them to make informed career choices for the future.
Waterman currently employs a total of 77 graduates and together with our apprentices they represent 7% of our workforce (2014: 5%). All of our
graduates are part of a professional training programme and supported by a mentor and coach. They also have access to an in-house support
forum which allows them to gain specialist technical advice and solutions as well as share information with their colleagues.
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Rewards

In December 2014, a new Share Incentive Plan was created for the benefit of all qualifying employees (see note 23). An award of free shares at the
rate of 200 free shares for each full time employee was made to all employees who had been in employment throughout the 2013-14 financial year.
A pro-rata award was made to part time employees. In total, 95,427 free shares were awarded to 498 staff at a cost to the Company of £53,440.
These shares will be held in trust for each recipient until the shares vest or an employee leaves the Group’s employment.
On 1 April 2015, the Company invited all UK employees to purchase shares in the Company by entering into a partnership share agreement. Under
this agreement, employees may purchase Waterman shares up to a market value of £1,800 within the tax year from their monthly gross salary.
We have extended the options within our flexible benefits scheme, which has proved very popular and well received by all employees. The benefits
can be selected from a combination of an employee’s flexible benefits allowance (a percentage of gross salary) and salary sacrifice. By enhancing
the choices for our staff year on year we are able to continue to support both employee and family wellbeing, as well as being able to cater for
employee lifestyle changes during the year.
As well as cycle for work, private health, dental, childcare and personal pensions contributions, we enhanced this year’s selection with the following
new benefit choices:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Cancer screening
Health Cash Plan
Will writing
Gym membership
Mobile phones
Car parking
Gourmet Society (provides discounts on local restaurants and cinemas)

During the year we carried out a detailed review of our flexible benefits scheme and its affordability for staff. In order to ensure that our staff can
maximise their selections.

Human Rights

In line with the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights, Waterman is committed to following a high standard of ethical conduct
across the Group. We work with clients, suppliers and sub-consultants who support our ethical standards and act lawfully and ethically in the
public’s interests. In promoting ethical business practices we ensure fair treatment of all employees. This includes equal opportunities for all and the
creation of an inclusive, collaborative culture that is free from bullying, discrimination and harassment and in which everyone is treated with respect
and dignity.

Diversity

Financial Review
Performance Summary

During the prior year the Group withdrew from UAE and Russia which resulted in a loss from discontinued operations of £3.8m in the year to 30 June
2014. There has been no impact from these discontinued operations on the profit in the year to 30 June 2015.
Group revenue from continuing operations increased by £15.1m (22%) to £83.9m (2014: £68.8m). In the UK (which in 2015 accounted for 89% of
the Group’s revenue), revenue increased by £14.8m (25%) to £74.6m (2014: £59.8m). Revenue from our International businesses increased by
£0.4m (4%) to £9.4m (2014: £9.0m), as a result of increased revenue of £0.6m (29%) in Europe (Ireland and Poland), offset by a decrease of £0.2m
(4%) in revenue in Australia.
Reported profit before tax was £2.4m (2014: £0.8m), after charging exceptional items of £0.4m (2014: £0.5m). The Board believes that a more
representative measure is adjusted profit before tax, which was £2.7m (2014: £1.4m).
Reported operating profit was £2.4m (2014: £0.9m). Excluding exceptional items and the amortisation of acquired intangibles of £0.4m (2014:
£0.5m), adjusted operating profit was £2.8m (2014: £1.4m) and adjusted operating margin of 3.3% (2014: 2.1%).
The exceptional items of £0.4m (2014: £0.5m) mainly relate to costs of restructuring our Civils and Transportation Consulting business in the UK.
Further information is provided in Note 5 Exceptional items in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Key Performance Indicators

The Board uses a number of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to monitor financial performance of the business segments. These include revenue,
adjusted operating profit and profit before tax, working capital days and return on operating capital employed. These KPIs are monitored against
budget and targets.
The financial performance by segment is reported in both Note 2 Segmental Reporting to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Business
Review on page 12.
As a result of ongoing corrective actions, the Civils and Transportation Consulting segment’s performance has improved with adjusted operating
losses reducing by £1.7m (59%) to £1.2m (2014:£2.9m). A further significant improvement in performance is targeted for the coming financial year.
The three year trend of the Group’s KPIs is reported on page 46.
The Group’s primary management measure of Return on Average Capital Employed was 30.3% (2014: 11.4%), exceeding our targeted return of
20% by 30 June 2016, as set out below:

Waterman values the differences, needs and contributions of a diverse workforce and recognises the positive benefits that the implementation of
its Diversity Policy has created. The aim of the policy is to ensure that all employees and potential employees are treated fairly and equitably at all
times.
Gender equality of opportunity is a key focus for Waterman. In the last year we have recruited more women and achieved a more representative
workforce. This is supported by our flexible working practices which help our employees to achieve a healthy work-life balance.
At 30 June 2015, our total workforce comprised of 272 female (22%) and 987 male (78%) employees. Within our management structure there are 27
female (14%,) and 170 male (86%) employees. 3 females (14%) and 18 males (86%) are on the legal company boards.

2015
£’000
Adjusted Operating Profit
Capital Employed comprises:
Total Equity
Net Cash
Goodwill

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2,809
27,477
(3,765)
(15,683)
8,029

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

1,452
28,371
(1,615)
(16,229)
10,527

32,786
(1,116)
(16,713)
14,957

In the next year we aim to review the provision of more specific training and development opportunities for increasing the number of female staff and
managers within Waterman.

Average capital employed

9,278

12,742

Waterman recognises that its employees have different personal and professional needs both within and outside of work. They are fully supported
by our flexible working, sabbatical and enhanced maternity, paternity and shared parental leave policies.

Return on average capital employed (%)

30.3%

11.4%

Taxation

The tax charge for the year was £0.6m (2014: £0.2m), representing an effective tax rate of 25.6% (2014: 25.4%). This rate is higher than the UK
corporation tax rate of 20.75% mainly due to the impact of the higher Australian tax rate, losses not utilised, and non-deductible expenses, offset by
prior year adjustments.
The prior year adjustments relate mainly to Research and Development tax credits where the claims were finalised after completion of the 2014
Consolidated Financial Statements. Adding back the prior year adjustments, the tax charge would increase to £0.8m, representing an effective tax
rate of 33.5%.
Further information, including a reconciliation of the effective tax rate, is provided in Note 7 Taxation in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Earnings per Share (EPS)

Working Capital, Cash Flow and Net Funds

Basic EPS was 4.4p (2014: loss of 11.8p). Adjusted EPS was 5.4p (2014: 2.0p).
Adjusted EPS is calculated as follows:

Attributable to Owners of the Parent:
Profit after taxation
Amortisation on acquired intangibles after taxation
Exceptional items after taxation
Adjusted profit after taxation
Weighted average number of shares (thousand)
Adjusted earnings per share (pence)

Working Capital
Year ended
30 June 2015*
£’000

Year ended
30 June 2014*
£’000

1,361
284
1,645

197
5
418
620

30,722

30,648

5.4

2.0

* Results from continuing operations

Dividends

Reflecting its confidence in the outlook for the Group, the Board proposes an increased final dividend of 1.2 p per share (2014: 0.6 p), which, if
approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on Friday 11 December 2015, will be payable on 8 January 2016 to those
shareholders on the share register on 11 December 2015.
When added to the interim dividend of 0.8 p per share (2014: 0.4p), the total dividend for the year will double to 2.0 p per share (2014: 1.0 p), giving
dividend cover on adjusted earnings per share of 2.7 times.

Group Consolidated Balance Sheet

At 30 June 2015 the Group had net assets of £27.5m (2014: £28.4m), with 30.8m fully paid ordinary shares in issue (2014: 30.8m).

Capital Expenditure, Tangible Assets and Goodwill

Capital expenditure in the year was £1.0m (2014: £0.7m).The Group continues to invest in improvements within our offices and high specification
computers to run the latest design software.
Property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2015 of £3.1m (2014: £2.7m) consist of a freehold property in Leeds with a net book value of £1.4m, office
equipment and furniture, leasehold improvements, motor vehicles and computer equipment.
Net tangible assets at 30 June 2015 were £11.7m (2014: £12.0m), equivalent to 38p (2014: 39p) per share.
Goodwill of £15.7m (2014: £16.2m) was held at 30 June 2015. The reduction from the prior year is mainly due to the effect of movements in foreign
exchange. Goodwill was reviewed for impairment at 30 June 2015. The Group undertakes impairment reviews on an annual basis and when there
are any indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Following an impairment review, the Board was satisfied that no provision for
impairment was considered necessary at 30 June 2015. Further details of the review are included in Note 11 Goodwill to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Acquisition of non-controlling interest in Australia

Of the £1.0m of adjusted operating profit made by the Australian operations, £0.5m was attributable to Waterman shareholders
In April, 2015, the Group invested AUD 1.6m (equivalent to approximately £0.82m at 1.94 AUD: GBP) before transaction costs to increase
its ownership of our Sydney business to 100% (previously: 80%) and of our Melbourne business to 51% (previously: 41%). As a result of the
transaction, an additional £50,000 of adjusted operating profit has been attributed to Waterman shareholders in the three months to 30 June 2015.
The book value of the assets acquired was £0.57m. The difference between the purchase price and the book value of net assets acquired has been
deducted from equity.
The purchase was funded by a four year AUD 1.6m term loan from HSBC Bank plc.
Further details on the acquisition of non controlling interest are included in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Net trade receivables
Accrued Income
Trade payables
Amounts due from customers on long term contracts
Fees invoiced in advance
Net work in progress
Total

30 June 2015
£’000

30 June 2014
£’000

20,737
319
(3,206)

18,548
66
(2,901)

7,639
(14,204)
(6,565)

8,201
(10,247)
(2,046)

11,285

13,667

At 30 June 2015, debtor days outstanding were 67 days, as compared to 69 days at 30 June 2014, a 3% improvement. Working capital days
outstanding were 32 days, an improvement of 18 days (36%).
The Group’s net cash from operating activities was an inflow of £5.1m (2014: £2.0m), an increase of £3.1m (155%).
Despite investing £1.0m in capital expenditure and £0.9m to increase the ownership of our Australian businesses, net funds at 30 June 2015
increased by £2.2m (138%) to £3.8m (2014: £1.6m). Net funds consist of cash and cash equivalents of £5.3m (2014: £2.9m) less term loans of
£1.6m (2014: £1.2m). At 30 June 2015, £1.2m (2014: £2.0m) of the cash and cash equivalents was held in subsidiaries not wholly owned by the
Group, of which £0.6m (2014: £0.9m) was attributable to the non-controlling interest.

Bank Facilities

At 30 June 2015, the Group’s principal banking facilities were a £4.0m overdraft facility and two term loans, totalling £1.6m with HSBC PLC, and a
£2.5m confidential invoice discounting facility from Close Invoice Finance Limited (‘Close’). The term loans are repayable by quarterly instalments
until 2017 and 2019.
At 30 June 2015, the overdraft was not used, and the balance on the confidential invoice discounting facility was £0.1m.
In August 2015, the terms and conditions of the Close facility were revised. Significant revisions included an increase in the facility limit to £6m, and
a reduction in interest margin from 2.75% to 2.25%.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Statement of Significant Accounting Policies is set out in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements. They affect
the application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and relevant factors including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
The Board considers that the estimates, judgments and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are:
• Contract Accounting: Revenue recognition, the valuation of trade receivables and amounts recoverable on contracts and the assessment of
the percentage of completion achieved. The Group assesses contract progress and determines the proportion of contract work completed
at the balance sheet date in relation to the total contract works. This policy requires forecasts to be made on the projected outcomes of projects.
These forecasts require assessments and judgements to be made on matters including changes in work scope, changes in costs and costs to
completion. While the assumptions made are based on professional judgements, subsequent events may mean that estimates calculated prove
to be inaccurate, with a consequent effect on the reporting results;
• Insurance Claims: Provision in respect of potential liability insurance claims;
• Goodwill: The annual impairment testing of goodwill; and
• Deferred Tax: As set out in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, deferred tax is accounted for on temporary differences
using the liability method, with deferred tax liabilities being provided for in full and deferred tax assets being recognised only to the extent that it is
judged probable that future taxable profit will arise against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

59

Group Financial Risk Management

Corporate Responsibility

The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing financial risks.
The Group’s finance team is responsible for managing investment and funding requirements including banking and cash flow monitoring. It seeks
to ensure that adequate liquidity exists at all times in order to meet its cash requirements.

Corporate Responsibility is a key part of Waterman’s ethos. This commitment to our clients, suppliers, employees and the communities in which we
work is embodied in our Mission Statement:

The Group’s strategy is to finance its operations through a mixture of cash generated from operations and where necessary, equity finance and
borrowings by way of bank facilities and working capital finance.

“To develop innovative, economic and sustainable solutions that successfully meet the needs of our clients, whilst adding value and a better quality
of life for all. In doing so, we aim to provide an exciting and rewarding work environment for our employees and a successful, dynamic Group,
meeting the aspirations of all our stakeholders.”

The Group’s financial instruments comprise borrowings, cash and various items, such as trade receivables and trade payables that arise from
its operations. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group does not trade in financial
instruments.

Governance

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are described below.

Waterman has a structure of governance that is key to ensuring that it delivers on all its goals and aspirations for sustainability. The Plc Executive
Committee cascades information to the Management Boards which are in turn responsible for feeding important strategic information to our
company boards, directors, team leaders, and ultimately every member of our staff.

Liquidity and Interest Rate Risk

Management Systems

As reported above, the Group had net funds of £3.8m at the year end, comprising £5.4m of cash less £1.6m of debt. The Group’s exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans, overdraft and sales financing facility debt obligations. Bank
interest is charged on a floating rate basis.

Credit Risk

Credit checks are performed on all potential customers. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group, with no single debtor accounting for more than 7% (2014: 6%) of total receivables balances at 30 June
2015.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group has exposure to currency risk on business transactions where revenues and costs are in different currencies, and on translation of assets
and liabilities from local currency into sterling. Revenues and costs in the same currency are matched to form natural hedges wherever possible.
The Group also implements hedging procedures or would purchase currency hedges where a material exposure is identified.

Alex Steele
Chief Financial Officer
30 October 2015

Waterman has maintained quality, environmental and Health & Safety management systems certified to ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and BS OHSAS 18001
in order to ensure continued high standards of service delivery and environmental and Health and Safety management. During the year, our UKAS
accredited certification body conducted two assessments at our head office in London and assessed seven of our regional offices. All assessments
were successful and continued registration to the standards was recommended and secured.
Our principal environmental achievements over the last 12 months have been:
• Our designers promote sustainable design solutions. An example is our ingenious design to use of natural ventilation to provide cooling for the
Everyman Theatre in Liverpool which won the RIBA Stirling Prize in 2014.
• High standards of health and safety and environmental compliance have operated and there have be no enforcement notices, prosecutions or
fines received from external agencies with regards to health and safety or environmental pollution caused by our business activities.
• The introduction of more energy efficient computer equipment and the increased use of new technology to facilitate home working, results in
reduced business travel and an improved work-life balance for our employees.
• A reduction in the number of smaller regional offices has resulted in lower energy and water usage, and carbon emissions from travel
between offices.
• The company car fleet has been rationalised to encourage the adoption of fuel efficient vehicles with lower emissions.
• We have continued to promote alternative modes of transport such as the Bike 2 Work Scheme and use of rail travel. As a result, Waterman’s use
of air and road travel is reducing in the UK with the benefit of reduced CO2 emissions.
• Continued promotion of recycling has resulted in higher volumes of materials being recycled within our offices.

Energy Performance from UK Operations
Water Use (m3/head)
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Energy Use

The Group aims to minimise its energy consumption within the operational limitations imposed by the consultancy services it provides. Its energy
consumption arises from the operation of its offices and the travelling undertaken by its staff. The Group’s operations are principally conducted
from office premises and energy is used in all offices for heating and lighting and for the operation of IT and other office equipment. During FY2014,
we closed offices in Russia and the UAE resulting in substantially lower energy emissions during the current year. In Australia, our data capture
methodology has improved and lower emissions are reported for the current year. We continue to look for ways in which to reduce our carbon
emissions and have introduced energy saving measures wherever possible. We have carried out energy audits of our UK based offices in order to
monitor usage with a view to maximising energy efficiency and reducing carbon emissions through staff training, good housekeeping and actively
managing control systems.
Travel to and from the workplace and to attend meetings is an essential requirement when providing our services. Wherever feasible, public
transport is used however this is not always practical or efficient. Video conferencing has been introduced to most UK and overseas offices with the
benefit of reduced time and travel costs and lower energy consumption.

Health & Safety

The Group places the highest priority on the protection of its employees, construction industry workers not in its employment and individuals
affected by its activities. The Group’s health & safety management system and safe working procedures aim to prevent accidents, incidents and ill
health by providing and maintaining adequate control of risks arising from all work activities within its offices or at associated site locations. These
were reviewed and updated during the year and made available to all employees through the Group’s intranet. The current health & safety policy
was approved August in 2015. The health and safety system continues to be registered to and meet the requirements of the UK H&S management
standard OHSAS 18001 by a UKAS accredited certification body.
Waterman aim to maintain safe systems of work and healthy working environments by providing regular information, instruction, training and
supervision to all employees in order to enable them to undertake their work safely. Fire drills are held regularly, selected staff are trained to
handle dangerous substances safely, manage emergency situations and provide first aid assistance. All new staff are issued with a health and
safety handbook to reinforce induction and other training sessions. Any staff member that carries out site related work must attend specific health
and safety refresher courses every three years or as dictated by the task risk assessment. Waterman aims to provide and maintain safe working
environments, safe plant and equipment and ensure safe handling and use of substances.

In accordance with the new Part 7 disclosures concerning greenhouse gas emissions, our CO2 equivalent emissions by scope and by region are
reported in the table below. Emissions data has been captured from sources including supplier invoices, meter readings and staff travel records
and then converted to CO2 equivalents using industry standard conversion factors. More accurate energy consumption data has been secured this
year where previously data was unavailable and certain assumptions had to be made. Our systems to capture and report this data will continue to
improve with further accuracy expected in future years.

Waterman’s senior management continues to commit the Group and its operating companies to operate high standards of health and safety. Funds
and resources are provided to enable correct implementation of the policy, whilst meeting the expectations of stakeholders. Management seeks to
ensure that health and safety is not compromised by other business objectives.

Year ended 30 June 2015

The Group’s Environmental Health Safety and Quality (“EHSQ”) teams provide advice on workplace health and safety and staff wellbeing. Advice
from these teams allows the System Director to fulfil the role of health and safety advisor to all operating companies within Waterman Group. Under
the direction of the System Director both teams support the development of the Group’s health and safety policy and procedures, advise on new
and impending changes to legislation, and provide training to staff on site hazards and risk assessment techniques, on the Construction (Design &
Management) Regulations 2015 and on fire and emergency related matters.

Region

Scope 1
Gas
Tonnes

Scope 2
Road
Tonnes

Electricity
Tonnes

Scope 3

Region total

Rail
Tonnes

Air
Tonnes

Tonnes

UK
Europe
Asia Pacific

226
-

256
9
20

528
32
114

115
1
3

33
8
36

1,158
50
173

Middle East
Energy Source Totals

226

0
285

0
674

0
119

00
77

0
1,381

The Group operates a health and safety consultative committee in each office comprising staff representatives. These committees meet every 3-6
months, depending on the number of issues arising. Employees are invited to raise matters of concern affecting workplace health and safety to their
local representatives which will be considered and addressed by senior management. Each office has a named office health & safety manager with
responsibility for managing health and safety issues in that office. All of the managers receive regular health and safety information and advice from
Group EHSQ and Health & Safety teams.
All UK legal directors and other senior executives have received training on their duties and responsibilities regarding UK health and safety
legislation.

Scope 1

Year ended 30 June 2014
Region
UK
Europe
Asia Pacific
Middle East
Energy Source Totals

Scope 2

Gas
Tonnes

Road
Tonnes

238
238

318
16
23
3
360

Electricity
Tonnes
598
143
364
47
1,152

Scope 3

Region total

Rail
Tonnes

Air
Tonnes

86
6
2
1
95

40
7
75
10
132

Tonnes
1,280
172
464
61
1,977

Scope 1 emissions relate to energy directly consumed from combustion and operation of any facility. For Waterman, this comprises gas burned to
heat our offices and vehicle fuel used on company business. Energy consumed has been converted into CO2 equivalent tonnes.
Scope 2 emissions arise from indirect or purchased sources. We have reported the CO2 emissions arising from electricity used to heat our offices.
Scope 3 emissions relate to emissions from the use of rail and air transport. We have collected travel data for our staff and converted this into CO2
equivalents.
Based on the average number of staff employed of 1,208 (FY 2014:935), the CO2 equivalent emissions were 1.2 tonnes per employee in FY2015
(FY2014: 1.9 tonnes). As shown on the charts above, our total energy consumption and energy consumption per head of staff has fallen
substantially in the last year. Waterman Group will continue to explore ways in which emissions can be further reduced.
Water Use
Our principal use of water is in kitchen and washroom facilities in office premises. Where premises are leased, we are unable to materially influence
the type of supply equipment provided by our landlord and its sustainability. Our water consumption is low and is not considered to have a
significant environmental impact.
Travel and Transport
We operate a sustainable travel policy for the promotion of a more environmentally sustainable mode of transport. This includes:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Promoting public transport as the preferred option for our staff when travelling on business, rather than travelling by car or taxi;
Encouraging the use of video conferencing for on-line meetings thereby avoiding the need to travel to business meetings;
IT systems to allow flexible and home working, reducing the need for journeys into our offices;
Providing shower facilities and cycle racks at our offices where feasible, to encourage staff to cycle to work;
Interest free season ticket loans for our staff to enable their use of public transport;
Relocating new offices within walking distance of a train station, wherever practicable;
Providing visitors to our offices with detailed maps showing public transport options for reaching us.
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Waterman Group maintains membership of various health and safety organisations and assessment systems under the Safety Schemes In
Procurement (SSIP), including CHAS (Construction Health & Safety Assessment Scheme) and SafeContractor. An annual internal health and safety
audit of each office and operating company is undertaken to review the Group’s overall health and safety performance and its compliance with the
Group’s health and safety system, existing legislation and good practice. These audits as well as regular external audits by our third party UKAS
accredited certification body and certain suppliers have confirmed that the health and safety systems are being maintained to a high standard.
Health & Safety training is now provided to the majority of staff by face to face meetings with competent in-house trainers. Waterman Aspen, whose
staff are located in client offices, continue to use an e-learning platform for H&S training. Face to face training is provided by Waterman’s Health
& Safety team and includes new site risk assessment training, revised Construction Design & Management (CDM 2015) awareness and specific
Principal Designer role training and senior executive’s H&S liability awareness. Over 75% of Waterman employees received health and safety training
during the last year.
Asbestos Awareness training was provided by an external company for those employees who are likely to come into contact with asbestos during
the course of their work. An in-house asbestos awareness course has been designed and is awaiting approval by UKATA certification body.
During the year, Waterman had one RIDDOR reportable incident but no follow up action from an enforcement body was necessary or taken.
These types of incidents are highly unusual for Waterman but a full internal investigation was undertaken, lessons learnt were disseminated to
senior management and improvements made to the management system and quality of training and internal communication. There have been no
breaches of H&S legislation resulting in prosecutions of individuals, enforcement notices, or fines during the last three years.
Our principal H&S achievements over the last 12 months have been:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

No enforcement notices, prosecutions or fines as a result of our business activities.
Continued registration to OHSAS 18001 following regular independent third party certification assessments.
Improved H&S culture and over 75% of staff have attended training.
More effective H&S training and staff communication.
Increased staff awareness of site work dangers and increased knowledge and understanding of risk assessment principles.
New employee H&S handbook to reinforce induction and other H&S training sessions.
CDM 2015 market leading and strategic training prepared and delivered internally and externally to clients.
Improved H&S capability on construction projects due to selected employees trained to fulfil new Principal Designer role under CDM 2015.
The H&S audits have been amalgamated into the IMS surveillance audit visits making the process more efficient.

Sustainability Policy

Waterman Group is committed to achieving a high level of awareness of the ethical and commercial importance of sustainability to the organisation
and wherever practicable, to integrating sustainable and responsible practice into its day-to-day operations.
Sustainable development is the means of ensuring a better quality of life for all, now and in the future. It means effective conservation of the
environment and prudent use of resources. It means equality of social progress and the maintenance of high stable levels of economic growth
through working towards achieving more with less resource. It means more efficient use of energy to help reduce greenhouse gases and climate
change impact.
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Within its working practices Waterman Group will:
(a) Clarify to all companies and staff the aims of sustainability
(b) Preferentially select contractors and suppliers on the basis of shared values and standards of sustainable practice and who support and use
Fairtrade products and can demonstrate an ethical sourcing strategy
(c) Work in partnership with clients, contractors, architects and other consultants to achieve the aims of sustainability so as to:
• Protect and enhance the natural and built environment wherever possible
• Encourage the sustainable use of resources at all times
• Reduce waste generation and dispose of waste responsibly
• Reduce consumption of energy in construction and use
• Promote the use of sustainable modes of transport
• Assist in the creation of sustainable communities
• Follow best international practice on environmental legislation and standards
• Promote sustainable design, development and construction practices
(d) Seek continual improvement in the sustainability performance of all aspects of our business and report our performance for the benefit of all
stakeholders
Within the operation and management of its affairs, Waterman Group will strive to:
• Adopt an holistic approach to business planning and practice, to include non-financial measures of success
• Implement quality, health and safety and environmental management systems to maintain continual improvement in these areas
• Provide a high standard of working environment for all employees and promote the adoption of a healthy work-life balance
• Promote efficiency in energy and water usage and paper and consumables recycling in all its places of business
• Support and encourage wherever possible staff members’ participation in charitable or community activities
• Promote travel plans for all offices
• Support all professional and administrative activities with appropriate training, coaching and advice
• Conduct its business with the highest standards of professional and personal integrity and honesty

Environmental Policy

Waterman Group provides engineering and environmental consultancy services and is committed to achieving a high standard of environmental
awareness at all levels within the organisation and to promoting environmentally responsible practice both within the work place and beyond.
The Group believes that everyone has a part to play in safeguarding and enhancing the environment.
The management system meets the requirements of BS EN ISO 14001:2004 and, in this respect, shall be applied in full to all the companies in
the Group
The guiding principles of the Group’s environmental policy are that we will strive to:
• Reduce our carbon footprint.
• Prevent pollution and contamination and protect and enhance the natural environment wherever possible.
• Regularly set, and monitor the achievement of, objectives and targets to promote the continual improvement in environmental performance of all
aspects of our business.
• Reduce waste generation through re-use and recycling wherever practicable and dispose of all waste responsibly and safely.
• Comply with relevant environmental legislation and adopt internal standards based on international best practice.
• Encourage all staff to adopt energy, water and resource efficiency and conservation measures.
• Promote awareness of environmental issues amongst staff, clients and other interested parties.
• Select contractors and suppliers and materials that have acceptable environmental standards.
• Promote environmentally sympathetic design and construction practices wherever possible.
• Document, implement, maintain and communicate this policy to all employees (Group Intranet)
The Group aims to develop and refine its environmental policy by remaining abreast of current and future best practice developments and
corporate environmental standards. To this end, it supports the work of the organisations such as the Environment Council, CIRIA, the Chartered
Institute of Waste Management, the British Urban Regeneration Council and is a corporate Member of the Institute of Environmental Management
and Assessment.

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have prepared the Group
Financial Statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and the Parent
Company Financial Statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law). Under Company law the directors must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.
In preparing these Financial Statements, the directors are required to:
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
• make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the Group and Parent Company Financial Statements respectively;
• prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in business.
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the Financial
Statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group Financial Statements, Article 4
of the IAS Regulation. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of Financial Statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
The directors consider that the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
necessary information for shareholders to assess a Company’s performance, business model and strategy.
Each of the directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:
• the Group Financial Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the Group; and
• the Directors’ Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Group, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.

By Order of the Board

Nicholas J Taylor
Chief Executive
30 October 2015

Community

During the year we have continued to support Better Bankside (a Business Improvement District) on a number of community initiatives. This year,
our staff have worked on local gardening projects within the community, such as the renovation of Winchester Palace Gardens, Southwark, London
and a community gardening project in Canada Water, London Docklands. Our overall commitment to this community will continue with our annual
contribution towards Christmas gifts for the pupils of Beormund Special Community School in Southwark and, together with our staff, the donation of
gifts in support of the homeless within the community.
Constructionarium has been sponsored by Waterman for eight years now, providing students and young professionals studying civil engineering,
with the opportunity to join an annual week long exercise at the National Construction College in Norfolk. During this period, they gain practical
insights to engineering as well as opportunities to establish networks with potential future employers. The initiative brought political interest this year
with a visit by the Cabinet Secretary for Training, Youth and Women’s Employment to emphasise the importance of giving the students practical
training opportunities in combination with academic skills.
Throughout the year our employees are involved in a number of charity and sponsorship events, locally, within the regions across the UK and
overseas. Waterman has sponsored a number of events in the year, such as ‘The Christie charity’, one of the largest hospital charities in the UK
with two members of the Building Services team taking part in the sponsored Manchester to Blackpool bike ride. Our Sydney team took part in
‘Australia’s Biggest Morning Tea’, which is a country-wide event encouraging Australians to get together and raise money in support of the fight
against cancer.
WatermanAid continues to be a major fundraising initiative with the company, which targets raising £20,000 over a two year period for the Maji
Programme in Tanzania.
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Corporate Governance Report

The disclosures that follow describe how it has complied with the five sections of the Code: Leadership, Effectiveness, Accountability, Remuneration
and Relations with Shareholders.

Letter from the Chairman

Leadership

I am pleased to present the Board’s annual report on Corporate Governance. This describes the work which has been performed in this area during
the last year.
The Board is responsible for ensuring the long term success of the Company. In discharging this responsibility, the Board balances its time between
forward looking matters such as strategy, business development and opportunities for growth and improvement, and oversight matters such as
financial performance, risk management, compliance and monitoring.
The Board remains committed to ensuring that a strong governance framework operates throughout the Group since this provides an essential
foundation on which to build the future success of the Group.

The Board is responsible for delivering the sustainable success of the Group for its shareholders and stakeholders. It aims to achieve this by setting
strategic objectives to deliver optimal success within a framework of legal compliance and robust internal controls. Executive management is
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) who has been given delegated responsibility within pre-set limits of authority. He is empowered to
delegate various responsibilities and limits of authority to others within the Group including the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) and Chief Operating
Officers (“COO”) for the Property and Infrastructure & Environment teams.
The Board currently comprises three Executive and three Non-Executive Directors as set out on page 52. The Board considers that collectively they
have the appropriate balance of skills, experience and knowledge to discharge the Board’s duties and responsibilities effectively and that the overall
composition of the Board remains well balanced and appropriate to meet its shareholder responsibilities and corporate governance obligations.

The following report together with the reports from the Audit and Risk, Nominations and Remuneration Committees describes the governance
framework and the key matters addressed by the Board and its Committees during the year.

All Directors act in a manner which they consider to be in the best interests of the Company, consistent with their statutory duties as set out in the
Companies Act 2006. Each director is required to declare any matters that may create a conflict of interest both on appointment and as they arise. If
and when such conflicts arise, the board is empowered to review and resolve these on behalf of the Company.

The Board currently comprises three executive directors and three non-executive directors. The directors currently in office are listed on pages 52
to 53. At the AGM on 5 December 2014, your former Chairman, Roger Fidgen, retired after 10 years on the Board and its committees. On the same
date, the Board appointed me as a director and Chairman of the Board. I have also been appointed as a member of the Group’s three standing
committees including chairing the Nomination Committee. There have been no other changes to the composition of the Board or its Committees
during the year.

The three Executive Directors have a wide range of experience. Nicholas Taylor, a civil and structural engineer was appointed CEO in July 2007. In
February 2010, Alex Steele, a Chartered Accountant, was appointed to the Board as CFO. Craig Beresford, a structural engineer was appointed to
the Board in 2003 and has responsibility as COO of the Property team, comprising structural engineering and building services disciplines. All three
Executive Directors have served throughout the year.

Strong corporate governance requires an effective and active team of high calibre directors who bring their experience to all matters affecting the
Group. Board meetings address a wide range of subjects affecting our business including political and economic developments in the UK and
worldwide, and the challenges and opportunities that these present to the markets in which we operate.
At each Board meeting, our Chief Executive Officer reports upon the key issues, strategy and investor relations. The Chief Financial Officer reports
upon financial performance, future projections and risk related matters. The Chief Operating Officer of the Property segment is also an executive
director and he reviews business progress, prospects and opportunities in the Property segment. By invitation, the Chief Operating Officer of the
Infrastructure and Environment segment attends board meetings and reviews business progress, prospects and opportunities for this segment. In
addition, written reports are submitted from each engineering or environmental discipline on a monthly basis. This approach allows all directors to
review board papers in advance and focus on key matters requiring their attention at board meetings.
Each year, a formal performance evaluation of the Board, its committees and each director is undertaken against criteria derived from the UK
Corporate Governance Code and elsewhere. This process is intended to assess the effectiveness of the Board and its members, and aims to
identify any skills gaps and training needs. No director has a service contract for a term exceeding one year.
The following pages describe how the Company complies with the UK Corporate Governance Code. I hope you will find these and the entire Annual
Report to be both useful and informative.

The three Non-Executive Directors are all considered to be independent and have wide-ranging experience developed over many years in business.
Michael Baker, a Chartered Surveyor, joined the Board in December 2014 following the retirement of Roger Fidgen. He was immediately appointed
as Chairman of the Board. Ric Piper (Senior Independent Director) and Geoff Wright have served on the Board throughout the year. The contribution
of the Non-Executive Directors to the running of the business has been both influential and effective. They have demonstrated their independence
of character and judgment by constructively challenging the proposals and recommendations tabled by the Executive Directors. None of the NonExecutive Directors has been an employee of the Company, has a material business relationship with the Company, has close family ties to the
Company or its advisers, holds a material shareholding or has any conflict of interest which has not been disclosed to the Board.
The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and there is a clear division of responsibility between each position. The NonExecutive Chairman is responsible for leadership and effectiveness of the Board and for its governance. This includes setting the Board’s agenda,
ensuring that adequate time is available for discussion of all agenda items, ensuring that Directors regularly update their skills and knowledge
and ensuring that the Board receives accurate, timely and clear information. The Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for implementing the
Group’s strategy, directing its business operations towards profitability, ensuring that the Group’s assets are sufficient and well managed, and giving
leadership and direction to the Group.
The main duties of the Board are to:

Michael Baker
Chairman

•
•
•
•
•
•

Statement Of Compliance With The UK Corporate Governance Code

•
•

Waterman Group plc (“Waterman”) and its subsidiaries are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. As a listed Company,
Waterman is required to explain how it complies with The UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”) published by the Financial Reporting
Council and to confirm whether or not it has complied with the Code’s provisions.

•
•

This year, we are measuring our compliance against the Code issued in September 2012 and next year, we will report upon our compliance with the
updated Code issued in September 2014. This report, together with the Remuneration Report on pages 76 to 81 describes how the Company has
applied the principles of the 2012 Code and complied with the associated provisions during the year.
The Board seeks to ensure that the governance framework operated by the Company is sufficiently robust and effective to enable it to comply with
best practice principles as set out in the Code. The Directors consider that, throughout the year ended 30 June 2015, the Company has complied
with all of the principles of the Code which apply to a company which is outside the FTSE 350.

Set the Company’s standards values and aims to ensure that it meets its obligations to its stakeholders and others;
Agree and set the strategic aims for the business, ensuring resources are adequate to meet its objectives;
Agree objectives, policies and strategies to enable the business to grow;
Monitor the progress and development of the business taking account of the economic, political and social environments in which it operates;
Monitor and control the financial health of the business and the performance of the executive management;
Approve the financial statements, shareholder communications and major transactions including for capital expenditure, premises, acquisitions,
disposals and investments in new markets or joint ventures;
Approve the dividend policy and interim dividends;
Ensure that effective policies for risk management, health and safety and corporate governance are in place and applied throughout the Group,
and meet the required standards of regulatory compliance;
Ensure that the risk management and internal control systems and procedures are adequate and operating effectively; and
Ensure that remuneration arrangements and succession planning arrangements are adequate and appropriate.

There is a formal schedule of matters reserved for decision by the Board or its Committees which include strategy, corporate governance, approval
of annual budgets, approval of financial statements, major capital expenditures, investment strategy, internal controls and risk management, senior
management appointments, acquisitions, disposals and significant financing matters.
The Board has a regular schedule of monthly meetings to consider matters reserved for its decision and other matters of significance to the
business. An agenda with appropriate supporting papers is issued in advance of each Board meeting to enable Directors to be made aware of
matters to be discussed. Minutes of each Board meeting are issued after each meeting and approved by Directors at the following meeting.
The Company arranges a programme for the Board to visit the Group’s UK and European regional offices, to meet by video link with the Group’s
Australian operations and to receive briefings and updates when required from professional advisors on legal, commercial, regulatory and health
and safety matters. Directors are encouraged to maintain and refresh their skills, continuing professional development (CPD) and knowledge of the
Group and its markets on a regular basis.
The advice and services of the Company Secretary are available to all Directors. In addition, Directors may take independent legal or professional
advice on corporate matters at the Company’s expense. The Company Secretary also assists the Audit and Risk Committee when reviewing the
effectiveness of internal controls and risk management and assists the Chairman on legal, compliance and corporate governance matters.
In accordance with Company’s Articles of Association, Directors are required to retire after three years or earlier and may submit themselves for
re-appointment. In addition, newly appointed Directors will stand for election by shareholders at the first Annual General Meeting following their
appointment.
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The Company provides insurance cover against the legal costs of defending Directors and Officers against civil proceedings taken against them by
third parties and in respect of damages resulting from an unsuccessful defence.

Committees of the Board

Certain matters are delegated to Committees of the Board and their duties are described in the Terms of Reference summarised below. The Terms of
Reference for these Committees are set by the Board and reviewed annually. They are available from the Company Secretary at the registered office.
These Committees exclusively comprise of Non-Executive Directors, with the exception of the Nomination Committee of which the CEO is also a
member. Executive Directors, auditors and the Company Secretary attend some Committee meetings by invitation.
The Board’s Committees meet sufficiently regularly to enable them to discharge their governance responsibilities. Minutes of all Committee
meetings are circulated to and reviewed by the Board.

The Audit and Risk Committee

The Committee operates to monitor the reliability of the financial statements and the integrity of the financial reporting, to liaise with the Company’s
auditors and ensure their independence, and to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
During the financial year, the Committee met on three occasions. All Committee members attended all meetings. The Committee is comprised
exclusively of Non-Executive Directors and is chaired by Ric Piper, a Chartered Accountant.

The performance of the Board was measured against the principles and provisions set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code 2012. The Board
considered that the use of an external third party adviser to assist with this process was not necessary this year. The results of the performance
evaluation of the Board reassured the directors that the Board continued to operate effectively and to fulfil its corporate governance responsibilities.
No significant shortcomings were identified.
The criteria used for the performance evaluation of the Board’s three Committees were based upon the Terms of Reference for each Committee and
the principles and provisions set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code. Each Committee has operated effectively, maintaining high standards
of governance and responding to best practice developments.
Individual performance evaluations were undertaken against a checklist of tailored criteria and objectives. The Chairman confirms that all the
Directors continue to perform effectively and to meet the requirements of their positions. The Senior Independent Director confirms that the
Chairman, who joined the Board as Chairman part way through the year in December 2014 performed effectively. Where individual performance
weaknesses have been identified, programmes for improvement have been prepared for action during the next year.
During the year all directors, including the independent non-executive directors, committed a significant amount of time to the Company in line with
the requirements of their position as set out in their Letters of Appointment.
Upon joining the Board, new directors receive a formal induction on matters including the history of the Group, significant board decisions affecting
company strategy, information on board processes and governance and board materials. As noted above, the Board regularly visits UK and
European regional offices to meet with local management and staff and to listen to their comments and concerns.

A review of the duties and work performed by this Committee is set out in the Report from the Audit and Risk Committee on page 72.

The Remuneration Committee

This Committee met on six occasions during the financial year to review the remuneration arrangements for the Directors and senior management
of the Group. Together with external advisors, the Committee set the performance criteria and determined the value of incentive awards to directors
and senior management for the new Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) which was approved by shareholders at the AGM in December 2014. It also set
the framework for the new Share incentive Plan (SIP) which was introduced in December 2014. The Committee is comprised exclusively of NonExecutive Directors and is chaired by Geoff Wright.
A review of the duties and work performed by this Committee are set out in the Report from the Remuneration Committee on page 76.

The Nominations Committee

This Committee is responsible for nominating candidates to the Board, taking account of the skills, knowledge and experience required of the
Board members. During 2014, the Committee obtained independent advice when searching for a suitable replacement for retiring Chairman Roger
Fidgen. Throughout the year, this Committee has comprised all of the Non-Executive Directors together with the Chief Executive, Nicholas Taylor.
Roger Fidgen chaired this Committee until his retirement on 5 December 2014. Geoff Wright chaired meetings of this Committee when the selection
of a new Chairman to replace Roger Fidgen was being discussed. Michael Baker has chaired meetings of the Committee since his appointment in
December 2014.
The Committee met on five occasions during the financial year.
The membership of the Board and its Committees during the year is shown in the table below together with a summary of their attendance.

Board

Audit and Risk

Remuneration

Nomination

Scheduled Meetings

11

3

6

5

Chairman
R S Fidgen (retired December 2014)
M P Baker (appointed December 2014)

5
6

1
2

5
1

3
1

Executive directors
N J Taylor CEO)
A A Steele (CFO)
C W Beresford

11
11
10

3*
3*
2*

6*
-

5
-

Independent non-executive directors
R J Piper **
G H Wright

11
11

3
3

6
6

4
5

* N J Taylor, A A Steele and C W Beresford attended meetings of the Remuneration and Audit and Risk Committees by invitation since they are not
Committee members.
** R J Piper is the Senior Independent Director

Effectiveness

The Board recognises the need to maintain high standards of governance and to ensure its continuing effectiveness. It aims to achieve this by
providing relevant training and development opportunities to individual directors, and by ensuring that all significant business matters requiring a
Board decision are adequately described in the Board papers and constructively debated.

The Company Secretary provides regular updates on legal, regulatory and governance developments, particularly those which are expected to have
an impact on the Board or the Company. He arranges external training opportunities for attendance by directors and in house training courses for
directors as and when required.

Accountability

The Board is responsible for establishing, reviewing and maintaining the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance framework. The
governance framework is the system by which the Group is directed and controlled. It comprises the laws, regulations and controls within which
the management of the Group must operate. It also sets out which decisions must be made by the Board and the values to be upheld by all
stakeholders.
The Board is responsible for setting the Company’s standards and values, for implementing effective risk management policies and for ensuring
that the internal control systems and procedures operated by the Group enable effective management of business risks. It is the responsibility of
management at all levels to ensure that the internal controls and procedures are followed and that any risk or control issues are promptly brought to
the Board’s attention and addressed.
In light of the Guidance on Risk management and internal control provided by the updates to the UK Corporate Governance code issued in
September 2014, management have determined a revised risk management and internal control procedure which will be implemented throughout
2016 to ensure compliance with the updated code by June 2016. Refer to the Principal Risks and Uncertainties report on page 47 for details of the
revised procedures.
The Board confirms that a system of procedures and controls in operation for identifying, evaluating and managing risks has operated throughout
the year under review. Any system can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board
continuously strives to manage and control operational and financial risks and to enhance the control environment in all operating companies within
the Group.
The key features of the system of internal control operated by the Group throughout the year are as follows:
• The Group publishes its mission statement, culture and values on its website. The Mission Statement emphasises the Group values of client
focus, sustainability, staff care, technical excellence, teamwork and corporate development;
• The Board regularly discusses matters such as corporate governance, risk management, strategic planning and financial reporting;
• The Group purchases insurance with limits of indemnity which are reviewed each year to provide adequate limits of indemnity against losses
arising from project liability and other operational risks;
• A clearly defined organisational structure exists with levels of authority and division of responsibility;
• The Board approves the annual capital expenditure budget and authorises major capital and revenue expenditure commitments;
• An executive director also sits on the board of each principal operating company. He reports upon significant risks to business performance or
governance to the board each month;
• Group strategy is reviewed annually by the Board. Ongoing monitoring is conducted at monthly Board meetings;
• Budgets are prepared annually by operating companies and approved by the Board. The financial performance of each principal operating
company is monitored each month against budget and forecasts. Reforecasting of financial projections is performed quarterly with three year
forecasts updated annually;
• Reviews of key performance indicators for each operating company are performed each month. The Finance Director provides monthly reports
to the Board on actual results achieved by the Group and updated forecasts. The Chief Executive reviews the Group’s operational performance
and future prospects;
• Project managers can monitor the financial progress of each ongoing project at any time. Profits are only recognised when the ultimate outcome
of a project can be foreseen with reasonable certainty and anticipated losses are written off as soon as they are identified;
• Fee proposals for large projects are reviewed and approved by two or more Directors. Material changes to costs or revenues or unexpected
events which occur during the course of a project are reported to the operating company board and, where appropriate, to the Group Board;
• Authority, within clearly prescribed limits, is delegated to operating company boards who make operational and financial decisions in relation
to their business. During 2014, two new management boards were created to manage the operational and financial performance of the Group’s
interests in the Property sector and the Infrastructure & Environment sectors. The management boards have responsibility for ensuring that
operating companies achieve or exceed their budgets or targets and deliver consistently high standards of service;

In August 2015, the Board conducted a formal evaluation its own performance, its Committees and its directors. The evaluation was led by the
Chairman and Chief Executive and its results were published to and reviewed by the Board.
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• The Group employs experienced managers who are responsible for the operation of effective financial systems and controls and for managing
treasury risk;
• Effective procedures are in place to protect the security and resilience of data held on the Group’s IT systems, and to ensure that its systems can
be restored quickly in the event of a major system failure;
• The Group operates quality monitoring and validation processes to minimise the risk of errors, mistakes or delays which may lead to liability
insurance claims; and
• The Group provides detailed policy guidance and relevant training to staff on health and safety matters. A meeting to review health and safety
matters takes place each quarter and key matters are referred to management and board meetings.
During the year, the Group undertook a number of internal audit reviews of its operational activities as part of its internal management system.
Certain specialist work was undertaken in order to maintain the Group’s accreditation to international quality standards ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 In
view of this, the Audit and Risk Committee which has responsibility for reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of internal financial controls and
systems and ensuring that the procedures for the assessment and management of risks are effective, are satisfied that systems and controls are
operating satisfactorily and that there would not be a net financial benefit from an internal audit function at this time. However this will continue to be
reviewed at least annually.

Remuneration

Report from the Nomination Committee
Dear Shareholder,
I am pleased to present the report from the Nomination Committee for the year ended 30 June 2015. Following the retirement of my predecessor,
Roger Fidgen, I was appointed to Chair this Committee from 5 December 2014.
Throughout the year, this Committee has comprised the non-executive Chairman, two non-executive directors and the CEO. Whilst recruiting for a
replacement for the outgoing Chairman, Geoff Wright chaired all meetings of this Committee.
Prior to my appointment, the Committee met on four occasions to approve the Terms of Reference and remuneration for the role of non-executive
Chairman, to meet with the shortlisted candidates and to invite me to become your new Chairman. After accepting the invitation, I took on the
role of Chairman of the Company and Chairman of the Nomination Committee from the end of the previous AGM on 5 December 2014. Since my
appointment, the Committee has met on one occasion at which time the Terms of Reference for this Committee were reviewed and approved. No
significant changes were required.

Designing effective and affordable remuneration packages which attract, retain and motivate directors to run the Company successfully is essential.
This challenge rests with the Remuneration Committee and details of their work and the remuneration packages of directors can be found in the
Remuneration Report on pages 76 to 81.

The Committee has met on five occasions during the year. Geoff Wright and Nick Taylor attended all meetings, Ric Piper attended four meetings,
Roger Fidgen attended three meetings and I have attended one meeting.

Relations with Shareholders

The Board currently comprises three executive directors, a non-executive Chairman and two independent non-executive directors which is
considered to offer an effective and adequate measure of management oversight.

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining effective communication with its shareholders. This is achieved by attendance at meetings and
by the issue of reports and newsletters. The Group discloses its activities, financial performance, risks and future prospects in its Annual and Interim
reports. These are made available to stakeholders in paper and electronic formats. The Group also issues newsletters to illustrate projects in which it
has been involved and other matters of interest.
All shareholders are invited to attend the Annual General Meeting at which the Group’s Annual Report and Financial Statement are tabled for
approval and when directors will be present to respond to questions on the Group’s performance during the year and the work performed by the
Board and its three Committees.
The Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer meet with the Company’s principal shareholders, brokers, analysts and the media following
the announcement of the full year and interim results and on other occasions as required. Feedback reports from institutional shareholders are
compiled by the Company’s broker and issued to the Board to ensure that all directors are made aware of the range of views expressed by current
and potential shareholders. The Chairman and Senior Independent Director also make themselves available to meet with principal shareholders as
and when required.

Regarding gender diversity, the board includes one female member, Alex Steele who is the Chief Financial Officer.
The Committee ensured that the performance evaluation for the board, its committees and its individual directors was rigorously undertaken against
pre-determined performance criteria.

Michael P Baker
Chairman

Role of the Committee
The principal role of the Nomination Committee is to evaluate and ensure that the skills of the Board’s Directors meet the management needs of
the Company and its shareholders. The executive management must demonstrate the entrepreneurial skills to effectively manage and grow the
business whilst the non-executive directors must ensure that effective governance and oversight operates to protect shareholder’s interests. When
a director fails to satisfy these objectives, or when a director resigns or retires, the Committee will take responsibility for appointing a suitable
replacement or rearranging the roles of the board members. When a new appointment occurs, the Committee will ensure that an effective induction
takes place. The Committee will also assess the Board’s succession planning requirements.
Diversity policy
The Nomination Committee and the Board recognises the importance of ethnic and gender diversity on its board. The Committee’s policy is to
ensure that all suitable candidates, regardless of ethnic origin, race or gender, are considered when board vacancies arise. The Committee is keen
to ensure that the strongest and most effective candidates are appointed to the Board. All appointments are on merit against objective criteria. The
Board is supportive of the Davies Report recommendations in relation to board diversity and is pleased to report that its Chief Financial Officer is
female. Female representation on the board is 17%.
Company structure – executive management
Nick Taylor is CEO with principal responsibility for implementing Group strategy and delivering operational performance.
Alex Steele is CFO with responsibility for all aspects of financial management.
Craig Beresford, an executive director, is also COO of the Property segment with principal responsibility for the structures and building services
teams in the UK and overseas.
Neil Humphrey is not on the Board. He attends board meetings by invitation and is COO of the Infrastructure & Environment segment with
responsibility for the Civil and Transportation consulting team, the Highways and Transportation outsourcing team and the Environmental team.
Succession Planning
The Committee has worked with the executive management to identify the key individuals and their deputies who demonstrate the talent and skills to
help the board to achieve its strategic goals over the medium term.
Performance evaluations
An annual performance evaluation of the board, its committees and its individual directors has been performed. The evaluation process was
conducted by the Committee with assistance from the CEO. No outside agencies have assisted in the process. The process revealed that all
directors are effectively meeting the criteria for their roles.
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Report from the Audit and Risk Committee 2015

Significant Issues

The Committee reviewed the key judgements applied to a number of significant issues in the preparation of the Financial Statements. The review
included consideration of the following:

I am pleased to present the Committee’s annual report on its activities for the year ended 30 June 2015, my third since becoming the Committee
Chairman in 2013.

Membership of the Committee

Issue

How the Committee Addressed it

Roger Fidgen, a member since 2005, stepped down from the Committee in December 2014 upon his retirement as Chairman of the Company. The
Committee thanks Roger for his valuable advice and contribution over many years.

Contract accounting, revenue
recognition, recoverability of work in
progress, contract receivables and
professional indemnity provisions

The Group enters into a number of complex long-term contracts, which can span a number of
reporting periods, together with a large number of individually small contracts. Significant judgments
may be required to forecast how each contract will perform over its lifetime.

The Audit and Risk Committee currently comprises Geoff Wright (a member since 2007), Ric Piper (a member since 2013) and Michael Baker (who
became a member during the year in December 2014). All three are independent non-executives.

As more fully explained in Note 1 to the Financial Statements, the majority of the Group’s activities
are undertaken via long-term contracts and these contracts are accounted for in accordance with
IAS 11, which requires estimates to be made for contract costs and revenues. These costs and
revenues may be affected by a number of uncertainties that depend on the outcome of future events
and may need to be revised as events unfold and uncertainties are resolved. Management bases
its judgments of costs and revenues and its assessment of the expected outcome of each longterm contractual obligation using detailed contract valuations and forecast of the costs to complete.
Management assesses the recoverability of contract receivables based upon their judgment of the
likelihood of payment from the client.

Ric Piper is a Chartered Accountant and is a current member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel (FRRP). The Board considers that he has
recent and relevant financial experience.

The Committee’s Key Responsibilities & Meetings

Each year the Committee works to a planned programme of activities which are focused on key events in the annual financial reporting cycle and
other matters that are considered in accordance with its Terms of Reference. It provides oversight and guidance to contribute to the ongoing good
governance of the business, particularly by providing assurance that shareholders’ interests are being properly protected by appropriate financial
management, reporting and internal controls.

As set out in Note 21 to the Financial Statements, the Group has provisions for professional liability
insurance claims. The most significant claims relate to perceived deficiencies in work performed by
the Group. The size of the provision held against any particular claim is determined by management,
based on its knowledge of the specifics of the claim and the level of insurance cover in place, and
therefore is inherently judgemental and may change over time as new information comes to light.

The Committee’s key responsibilities are:
• Monitoring the integrity of the half yearly and annual Financial Statements and formal announcements relating to the Group’s financial
performance. From the year ended 30 June 2014, this includes advising the Board that the Annual Report taken as a whole is fair, balanced and
understandable;
• Reviewing significant financial reporting issues and accounting policies and disclosures in financial reports;
• Reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control procedures and risk management systems;
• Making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of the Group’s independent auditors;
• A review of the independent auditors audit strategy and implementation plan and its findings in relation to the Annual Report and half-year report;
• Overseeing the Board’s relationship with the independent auditors including their continuing independence and, where appropriate, the selection
of new independent auditors;
• Considering how the Group’s internal audit requirements shall be satisfied and making recommendations to the Board; and
• Ensuring that an effective whistle blowing procedure is in place.

Given the Group’s extensive portfolio of contracts, the Board and the Committee spends
considerable time during the year reviewing the positions and judgments taken by management
on a number of material contracts and provisions across the Group, through discussions with
management and the Independent Auditors.
On the basis of these reviews, the Committee concluded that it was content with the judgments that
had been made.

The Committee met three times during the financial year (2014: four). The Executive Directors are routinely invited to Committee meetings.
During the year the Committee met privately with the independent auditors and also with a number of senior members of the Finance team. The
Committee Chairman also met privately with the Senior Statutory Auditor (Simon O’Brien) outside of the Committee meetings.

Going concern: Cash flow forecasts

The Group continues to prepare its Financial Statements on a Going Concern basis, as set out in
Note 1 to the Financial Statements.

Operation of the Committee

Management produce working capital forecasts, on a regular basis, together with half yearly
covenant forecasts. The forecasts are reviewed by the Board, particularly ahead of the publication of
Interim and Annual results.

The main activities of the Committee during the year were as follows:

Having reviewed the forecasts as at 30 June 2015, the Committee concluded that it was appropriate
for the Group to continue to prepare its Financial Statements on a Going Concern basis.

The Committee’s Terms of Reference were reviewed and updated in February 2015 to conform to current best practice. No significant changes were
deemed necessary. They are available on request from the Company Secretary at the Company’s Registered office.

• Financial Statements: The Committee reviewed the interim and full year Financial Statements. Presentations were made by management and the
independent auditors about the key technical and judgmental matters relevant to the Financial Statements. Further information on significant
issues in the Financial Statements is provided below.
Goodwill impairment
• Fair, Balanced and Understandable: The content and disclosures made in the Annual Report are subject to a verification exercise by management
to ensure that no statement is misleading in the form and context in which it is included, no material facts are omitted which may make any
statement of fact or opinion misleading and implications which might be reasonably drawn from the statements are true. The Committee was
satisfied that it was appropriate for the Board to approve the Financial Statements and that the Annual Report taken as a whole is fair, balanced
and understandable such that it allows shareholders to assess the Group’s performance against the Group’s strategy and business model.

Based on the calculation as at 30 June 2015, the Committee agreed with management’s
recommendation that no impairment charge should be made

• Internal financial control systems: The Committee reviewed the recommendations made by the independent auditors and management’s
responses and actions. The Committee was satisfied that it was appropriate for the Board to make the statements regarding internal controls
included in the Corporate Governance Report. The report on Principal Risks and Uncertainties on page 47 describes the revised risk
management and internal control procedures introduced by management during the financial year commencing 1 July 2015.
• Internal audit: During the year the Group undertook a number of internal audit reviews of operational activities as part of its internal management
system. This included audits to verify the Group’s project related activities (client appointment, planning, design, reporting and advising, client
follow up and servicing) for compliance with the Group’s standard procedures. Certain specialist internal audit work was undertaken by external
organisations in order to maintain the Group’s accreditation to quality management standard ISO 9001 and environmental management standard
ISO 14001.
The Chairman of the Committee reported to the Board on the Committee’s activities after each meeting, identifying relevant matters requiring
communication to the Board and recommendations on the steps to be taken.
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As set out in Note 11 to the Financial Statements, the Group has significant goodwill. A goodwill
impairment calculation (including assumptions about future performance, particularly the Board’s
priority that the Waterman Infrastructure & Environment business will return to profit and cash
generation, and about sensitivities) is undertaken at least annually by management and reviewed by
the Board and the Committee.

Taxation

The completeness and valuation of provisions to cover the range of potential final determinations by
the tax authorities of the Group’s tax positions are the subject of judgment. In particular, judgment
is required in relation to deferred tax assets, current tax deductions and ongoing tax audits. Further
information is set out in Notes 7 and 27 to the Financial Statements.
The provisions held by the Group were reviewed by management as at 30 June 2015. The Committee
agreed with management’s assessment of the Group’s tax provisions.
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This year the Committee also considered a number of other matters, including the accounting for and disclosure of:
• Exceptional items (see Note 5 to the Financial Statements);
• The Group’s investment to increase its % ownership of its Australian businesses by acquiring the non-controlling interest in Waterman
International (Asia) Pty Limited (see Note 15 to the Financial Statements); and
• In conjunction with the Remuneration Committee, the new long term incentive plan (see Note 23 to the Financial Statements) which was approved
by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting in December 2014.
Last year the Committee also considered the accounting for and disclosure of Discontinued Operations, as set out on Note 8 to the Financial
Statements.
Shareholders’ attention is drawn to the section titled “The scope of our audit and our areas of focus” in the Report from the Independent Auditors
on pages 84 to 90 about specific areas as reported by the independent auditors in order to provide their opinion on the Financial Statements as
a whole.

Independent Auditors: Re-Appointment & Audit Tender Policy

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were appointed as the Company’s independent auditors in 1988. Mr. Simon O’Brien became the Company’s Senior
Statutory Auditor for the year ended 30 June 2012. In compliance with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP’s policies and UK Ethical Standards, Mr
O’Brien’s fifth and final year as the Company’s Senior Statutory Auditor will be for the year ending 30 June 2016.

Independent Auditors: Services, Independence & Fees (continued)

The Committee regularly reviews all fees for non-audit work paid to the independent auditors. Details of these fees can be found in Note 4 to the
Financial Statements. The Committee concluded that the level of non-audit fees which represent 0% (2014:8%) of the audit fees of the Group did not
have a negative impact on PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP’s independence. Further, the Committee seeks positive evidence of the independence of
the independent auditors through its challenge to management, both in written reports and at Committee meetings. The Committee also regulates
the appointment of former employees of the independent auditors to positions in the Group.
The independent auditor also operates procedures to safeguard their objectivity and independence. These include periodic rotation of the Senior
Statutory Partner (last rotated in 2012), use of independent concurring partners, use of a technical review panel (where appropriate) and annual
independence confirmations by all staff. The independent auditors report to the Committee on matters including independence and non-audit work
on an annual basis.

Evaluation Of The Committee

During the year the Committee evaluated its performance, including input from the independent auditors.

Approval

This report was approved by the Committee on behalf of the Board on the date shown below and signed on its behalf by:

The appointment of the independent auditors is approved by shareholders annually. The independent auditors audit of the Financial Statements is
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, ISA (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
There are no contractual obligations that act to restrict the Committee’s choice of independent auditors. In December 2014, the Board proposed
and shareholders approved the reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s registered independent auditor for the financial
year ended 30 June 2015.

Ric Piper
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee
30 October 2015

The Committee has kept under review the Company’s Audit Tender policy. As reported last year, in September 2012 the UK Governance Code (the
Code) was amended to include, among other changes, a requirement for FTSE 350 companies to put the independent audit contract out to tender
at least once every 10 years.
The UK’s Competition and Markets authority (CMA) has issued its final order dealing with audit firm tendering requirements for FTSE 350 companies
and the EU has approved a directive and regulation setting out new EU wide audit legislation for all public interest entities. Work is now underway on
the UK implementation of the EU legislation, and both the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) and the Financial Reporting Council
are consulting on implementation decisions.
It is not yet clear what impact the EU changes will have on the CMA recommendations and on the Code or how the various requirements will
interact. However, the Committee anticipates that under the EU legislation, the Group will be required to rotate to new independent auditors no later
than for the audit of the 30 June 2021 Financial Statements.
Accordingly the Committee will continue to monitor developments and will make proposals to the Board to put in place a formal audit tender policy
when the position has become firm. In the meantime the reappointment of the independent auditors will continue to be the subject of rigorous review
each year.
This year, having considered the effectiveness and performance of the independent auditors, the Committee has recommended to the Board the
reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as independent auditors of the Company for the next financial year.

Independent Auditors: Services, Independence & Fees
The independent auditors provide the following services:

• A report to the Committee giving an overview of the results, significant contracts and judgments and observations on the control environment;
• An opinion on the truth and fairness of the Group and Company Financial Statements;
• An internal control report, following its audit, highlighting to management any areas of weakness or concern. No significant weaknesses have
been noted during the audit.
The Committee monitors the cost effectiveness of audit and non-audit work performed by the independent auditors and also considers the potential
impact if any of this work on independence. It recognises that certain work of a non-audit nature may be best undertaken by the independent
auditors as a result of its unique position and knowledge of key areas of the Company.
Approval is required prior to the independent auditors commencing any material non-audit work in accordance with a Group policy approved by the
Committee. Certain work, such as providing book-keeping services, is prohibited.
The Committee will continue to keep the area of non-audit work under close review, particularly in the context of developing best practice on auditors
independence.
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Annual Statement from the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee

Annual Report on Implementation of the Directors Remuneration Policy
This section sets out how the Director’s remuneration policy of the Company has been applied in the year and how the Committee intends to apply
the policy in future years. An advisory shareholder resolution to approve this report will be proposed at the 2015 Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Dear Shareholder,
I am pleased to present our 2015 Annual Report on Remuneration which has been prepared by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the
Board.

Results and Context of Remuneration for 2015

The Group is ahead of its three year plan to triple adjusted profit before tax by 2016 to £3.3m, with adjusted profit before tax increasing to £2.7m
(2014: £1.4m). Return on Average Capital Employed has improved significantly to 30.3% (2014: 11.4%), exceeding our previously stated target to
achieve 20% by June 2016. Net funds have increased by 138% to £3.8m aided by a significant reduction in working capital days to 32 days (2014:
50 days).

Key Responsibilities

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee is to determine and agree with the Board, the framework and policy for the remuneration of the
Executive Directors, the Chairman and certain senior managers within the Group. It sets appropriately stretching but achievable targets for the
incentive schemes in order to motivate Executive Directors to deliver high levels of performance for shareholders, clients and employees.
The Committee’s Terms of Reference were reviewed and updated in January 2015 to conform to current best practice. No significant changes were
deemed necessary.

Remuneration Policy

Throughout the year, the Remuneration Committee comprised two Non-Executive Director’s and the Chairman of the Company. The Chief Executive
Officer, Nicholas Taylor, attended the meetings by invitation only. No individual is present when his or her remuneration is being determined. There
were six scheduled meetings of the Committee throughout the year. Attendance of Committee members at meetings was as follows:

We are not proposing to make any changes to our Directors’ Remuneration Policy this year. In the interests of succinct reporting we have not
reproduced the policy report within the Directors’ remuneration report. The approved Directors Remuneration Policy can be found within the 2014
Annual Report on pages 76 to 81 or in the Investors section of our website www.watermangroup.com/investors. A hard copy can be obtained from
the Company’s registered office.

Name

Last year we put our Directors’ Remuneration Policy to a binding shareholder vote for the first time. It was approved at the 2014 AGM with 99.4% of
votes cast in favour. The Committee was delighted with the level of support shown by shareholders and we continue to welcome feedback.

Alignment with long term success

The Committee believes that our remuneration philosophy and incentive policy is aligned with the long-term success of the Company. Our longterm incentive plan, introduced during the year, has time horizons extending up to December 2019. Awards will only be realised at the end of the
performance period if targets, based upon the Group’s share price, have been achieved.

In conjunction with external advisors BDO, the preparation and implementation of a new Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for senior management
was approved by shareholders at the AGM on 5 December 2014. Under the LTIP, Executive Directors were granted conditional share awards on 9
December 2014 as follows:

Nicholas Taylor
Alex Steele
Craig Beresford

Geoff Wright (Chairman)
Ric Piper
Roger Fidgen (resigned 5 December 2014)
Michael Baker (appointed 5 December 2014)

6
6
5
1

Total Remuneration in 2015

Summary of the Key Decisions of the Committee During 2015

Name

No of meetings attended

Number of shares awarded

Vesting period

640,000
320,000
320,000

9/12/17 to 8/12/19
9/12/17 to 8/12/19
9/12/17 to 8/12/19

The shares can vest after three years dependent upon the achievement of performance targets based upon the Group’s share price. Awards may
not be exercised until at least one year after a particular share price target has been reached. To the extent that the performance conditions have not
been met after five years, the awards will lapse.
A salary increase for the Executive Directors of between 7.1% to 7.5% was awarded with effect from 1st January 2015.The annual bonus awarded to
the Executive Directors for the year ended 30 June 2014 was between 8.4% to 13.8% of their base salary for the year in recognition of the Group’s
financial performance for the year ended 30 June 2014.
No changes have been made to the performance measures for the annual bonus.

Annual General Meeting

In May 2015, the company car and car allowances for the Executive Directors were due for review and renewal. Contract hire vehicle rental costs
have increased considerably since the company car policy was last reviewed in 2007 and the maximum allowance for each director’s car of £10,000
per annum provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Policy is no longer sufficient to provide a car suitable for an Executive Director. At the 2015 AGM,
shareholders will be asked to approve payments of up to £5,000 per annum outside the Directors’ Remuneration Policy to supplement the maximum
car benefits approved under the Directors’ Remuneration Policy. Further details are provided in the Notice of Annual General Meeting.
The Annual Statement from the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and the Annual Report on Implementation of the Directors Remuneration
Policy will be proposed for approval at our 2015 Annual General Meeting. We look forward to receiving your views and support.

Geoff Wright
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Single Figure Table (Audited)

Salary or fees paid

Benefits

Bonus

Pension

Total

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

249
169
208
-

233
159
190
85
80

24
18
16
-

23
16
14
7
7

75
37
37

32
16
16
-

25
17
21
-

23
16
19
9
8

373
241
282
-

311
207
239
101
95

Chairman
Roger Fidgen (resigned 5 December 2015)
Michael Baker (appointed 5 December 2014)

18
24

41
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

18
24

41
-

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ric Piper
Geoff Wright

36
35

35
34

-

-

-

-

-

-

36
35

35
34

739

857

58

67

149

64

63

75

1,009

1,063

Name
Executive Directors
Nicholas Taylor
Alex Steele
Craig Beresford
John Waiting (resigned 20 Dec 2013)
Simon Harden (resigned 20 Dec 2013)

Total

-

Notes to Single Figure (audited)
These figures have been calculated as follows:
• Base salary: amount earned for the year
• Benefits: for company cars the higher of the cash allowance or cost of the lease, for all other benefits, the taxable value of the annual benefits
received in the year
• Pension: the value of the Company’s contribution during the year
• Annual bonus: cash received for 2014 annual bonus and estimated to be receivable for 2015 annual bonus.
• No LTIP awards have vested in the year or in the prior year.

Compliance Statement

This is the Directors’ Remuneration Report of the Company which has been produced pursuant to, and in accordance with, the Listing Rules,
Schedule 8 to the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013. The Company has
also followed the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2012.
This report contains both auditable and non-auditable information as indicated.
A copy of our shareholder approved Directors’ Remuneration Policy can be found on the Company’s website at www.watermangroup.com.
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Directors’ Remuneration and Incentives

The shares can vest after three years dependent upon the achievement of performance targets. Awards may not be exercised until at least one year
after a particular share price target has been reached. The performance targets are based on the Company’s share price over the performance
period as detailed below:

The current salaries for Executive Directors, which took effect from 1 January 2015, are set out below:

Share price target

Salaries of Executive Directors and other staff are reviewed annually in light of the competitive market practice, including reference to comparable
data from companies of a similar size and companies in the consultancy sector. When determining salaries for Executive Directors, the Committee
takes account of pay and employment conditions in the Company as a whole.

Name

Salary from 1st January 2015
£’000

Salary from 1st January 2014
£’000

% change

257
175
215

240
163
200

+7.1%
+7.4%
+7.5%

Nicholas Taylor
Alex Steele
Craig Beresford

100p
115p
125p
140p
150p

25%
40%
50%
80%
100%

Statement of implementation of policy in following year
Annual bonus
The maximum award for the executive directors in 2015 was 100 per cent of salary. This will remain unchanged for 2016. The financial bonus metrics
will remain unchanged in 2016.

On the date of this report, the Executive Directors salaries and the Non-Executive Directors fees remain at the same level as those at
1 January 2015.

Benefits (audited)

The main benefits are travel allowance, life assurance, permanent health insurance, private medical insurance and Company car or cash allowance
and fuel.
Company car and car allowances were reviewed in 2015. As contract hire vehicle rental costs have increased considerably since 2007 when the
company car policy was last reviewed and the maximum allowance for each director’s car of £10,000 provided in the Directors’ Remuneration
Policy is no longer sufficient to provide a car suitable for an executive director, payments conditional upon shareholders’ approval at the AGM on 11
December 2015 have been made outside the Directors’ Remuneration Policy to the Executive Directors as follows:

Chief Executive Pay Increase in Relation to all Employees
The table below compares the percentage increase in base salary; benefits and annual bonus of the Chief Executive with all UK based employees
who have remained in employment during the year.
Percentage change in remuneration from 30 June 2014 to 30 June 2015:

Name
Nicholas Taylor
Alex Steele
Craig Beresford

% of award vesting

£11,500
£11,500
£11,500

Chief Executive
UK employees

These payments are included in the totals shown in the single figure table. If the payments are not approved by shareholders at the AGM, the
executive directors will reimburse the Company for any amounts which exceed the maximum benefit which may be provided to executive directors
under the approved Directors’ Remuneration Policy.
Company pension contributions for Executive Directors are 10% of base salary. There are no accrued benefits outstanding under legacy pension
schemes.

Annual bonus (audited)

% change in benefits

% change in bonus

7.0%
6.9%

3.9%
14.9%

134%
93%*

* The 2015 bonus pool is estimated to increase by 93% over 2014 in line with the increase in Group Adjusted Profit before Tax which is the main
metric on which staff bonuses are calculated.
Relative importance of spend on pay
The table below sets out the relative importance of spend on pay in the financial year and the previous financial year compared with other
disbursements from profit.

Financial bonus metrics of adjusted profit before tax (PBT) and net cash performance against target were set.

Name

The annual bonus awarded to Executive Directors for the year ended 30 June 2014 was between 8.4% and 13.8% of their base salary for that year in
recognition of the Group’s financial performance for the year.

Total Employees Remuneration

For the year ended 30 June 2015, an estimated cash bonus for Executive Directors ranging from 18.1% to 30.1% of base salary for the year has
been approved by the Committee. The bonus will be paid to each Executive Director in December 2015. No bonuses were paid in Company shares
and no bonus awards will be deferred. and no bonus awards will be deferred.

% change in salary

Profit distributed by way of dividend to Owners of the Parent

Disbursements
from profit 2015
£’000

Disbursements
from profit 2014
£’000

% change

47,206

41,694

13.2%

429

213

101%

The bonus targets have not been disclosed because the Committee believe them to be commercially sensitive.

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) (audited)

At the last AGM on 5 December 2014, shareholders approved the creation of a new Long-Term Incentive Plan for the benefit of executive directors
and senior management. Under the new plan, the Executive Directors were granted the following conditional awards of shares on 9 December 2014:

Name
Nicholas Taylor
Alex Steele
Craig Beresford
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Number of conditional
shares awarded

Vesting period

640,000
320,000
320,000

9/12/17 – 8/12/19
9/12/17 – 8/12/19
9/12/17 – 8/12/19
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Chief Executive Historic Remuneration

The following graph shows the Total Shareholder Return for Waterman Group for the five years ended 30 June 2015 compared to the FTSE Fledgling
Index which measures the financial performance of listed companies with a market capitalisation of under £100m.

Details of Executive Directors’ Service Contracts
Executive Directors have rolling service contracts with notice periods in line with Company policy where notice period is set to be no longer than 12
months from either party. None of the existing service contracts contains any provision for termination payments other than for payment of salary
and benefits in lieu of notice.
The Executive Director’s service contracts include provisions relating to salary, employer pension contributions and benefits such as car or car
allowance, fuel, travel allowance, life assurance, private medical insurance for the Director and his/her family, permanent health insurance, sick pay,
holiday allowance and reimbursement of reasonable out of pocket expenses incurred by the Executive Director while on Company business.
The following service contracts in respect of Executive Directors are rolling service contracts and therefore have no end date:
Name

Date Of Commencement
Of Contract

Notice period

6 January 2003
19 February 2010
6 January 2003

12 months
12 months
6 months

Nicholas Taylor
Alex Steele
Craig Beresford

Details of Non-Executive Directors’ Letters of Appointment
The following table sets out the dates of appointment and notice periods for the Non-Executive Directors:
Name
Michael Baker
Ric Piper

The table below sets out the aggregate remuneration of the Chief Executive over the last five years:

Name
Chief Executive
Single figure of total remuneration
Annual bonus paid/payable as percentage of maximum (%)
LTIP’s vesting in year

Date Of Appointment

Notice period

5 December 2014
15 January 2013

One month
One month

1 June 2007

None

Geoff Wright

2011
£’000

2012
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

254
-

278
-

283
5.3%
-

311
13.8%
-

373
30.1%
-

Michael Baker was appointed for an initial term of one year, subject to annual renewal thereafter.
Geoff Wright was appointed for an initial term of three years, subject to renewal thereafter.
Ric Piper was appointed for an initial term of one year, subject to annual renewal thereafter.
Non-Executive Directors receive no benefits from their office other than fees and reimbursements of expenses incurred in performance of their
duties, including any tax on expenses. They are not eligible to participate in the Group pension arrangements.
Director’s letters of appointment and service contracts are available for inspection at the Company’s registered office.

Shareholding and Share Interests (audited)

Shareholder Approval
At the 2014 AGM, shareholder proxy votes on the resolution to accept the 2014 Directors Remuneration Report were as follows:

There are no minimum shareholding requirements for directors or senior management. The table below shows the directors interests in the
Company’s ordinary shares.

Name
Executive Directors
Nicholas Taylor
Alex Steele
Craig Beresford
Non-Executive Directors
Michael Baker
Ric Piper
Geoff Wright

30 June 2015

30 June 2014

Name
2014 Directors Remuneration Report

174,747
200
118,175

174,128
97,123

26,000
50,000

50,000

On 19 December 2014, 200 ordinary shares were each awarded to Nicholas Taylor, Alex Steele and Craig Beresford for no consideration under the
Company’s Share Incentive Plan (note 23).
On 10 March 2015, Craig Beresford purchased 20,852 ordinary shares at 71.5p each.
On 18 June 2015, Michael Baker purchased 26,000 ordinary shares at 73.4p each.
In April 2015, the Company launched a Partnership Share Scheme as part of its Share Incentive Plan. Under the scheme, Nicholas Taylor purchased
419 ordinary shares at prices ranging between 70.63p and 72.3p before 30 June 2015. Since the year end, Nicholas Taylor has purchased a further
795 ordinary shares at prices ranging between 69.99p and 86.15p and Alex Steele has purchased 388 ordinary shares at prices ranging from
69.99p and 86.15p under the Partnership Share Scheme.

For

Against

Withheld

18,893,250 (99.4%)

114,426 (0.6%)

110

Other Public or Listed Company Directorships
Executive Directors are not encouraged to hold external directorships unless the Chairman determines that such appointment is in the Group’s
interest and does not cause any conflict of interest. No Executive Directors have held any external directorships during the year.
Ric Piper (NED) is a Non-Executive Director of Matchtech plc and Turbo Power Systems Inc, both listed on AIM. Michael Baker and Geoff Wright do
not hold directorships in any other public or listed companies.
Payments made in the Year for Loss of Office (audited)
There were no payments made to directors for loss of office during the year.
Payments to Former Directors (audited)
There were no payments made to former directors during the year.
Advisers to the Committee.
During the year, the Committee continued to engage BDO LLP. BDO LLP complies with the code of conduct of the Remuneration Consultants’
Group, which sets out guidelines to ensure that its advice is independent and free of undue influence, and the Committee was satisfied that the
advice received was objective and independent. Fees paid to BDO LLP in respect of these services in the year ended 30 June 2015 were £34,350.
BDO LLP provided no additional services to the Company or Group during the year.
The Committee also makes use of various published surveys to help determine appropriate levels of director remuneration.

Geoff Wright
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
30 October 2015
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Directors’ Report
The directors present their report, together with the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015.
Principal Activities and Review of Business Operations
he principal activity of Waterman Group plc is that of a holding company. The principal activity of its subsidiary undertakings is the provision of
design services and advice in the fields of civil, structural, mechanical and electrical engineering together with environmental and health and safety
consultancy.
The Chairman’s Statement together with the Business Review and the Financial Review provide a detailed commentary on the Group’s performance
and activities during the year, the risks to which it is exposed and its current activities and proposed developments. The Key Performance Indicators
are reported in the Financial Review on page 55 and the environmental performance data is reported in the Corporate Responsibility Report on page
59.
Results and Dividends
The profit for the year, after taxation, was £1,774,000 (2014: loss of £3,209,000). The profit attributable to the owners of the parent was £1,361,000
(2014: loss of £3,616,000).
Subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, the final dividend for 2015 of 1.2p per ordinary share will be paid on 8 January 2016
to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 11 December 2015. With the interim dividend of 0.8p per ordinary share paid in April
2015, the total distribution for 2015 will be 2.0p (2014: 1.0p) per ordinary share.
Directors and their Interests
The Directors of the Company at the date of this report are set out in the Remuneration Report on page 77. Roger Fidgen retired from the Board
after ten years of service following the Annual General Meeting on 5 December 2014 and Michael Baker was appointed by the Board as his
replacement on the same day. As a newly appointed director, Michael Baker will offer himself for election by shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.
A short biography for Michael Baker is set out in a separate circular to shareholders accompanying the Annual Report and Financial Statement. All
other directors served on the Board throughout the year.

Going Concern
The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are set out in the
Chairman’s Statement. The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities are described in the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes. The directors have prepared a cash flow forecast and a forecast for covenant compliance to 30 June 2017. The
financial covenants allow for a sensible tolerance in trading performance in relation to the forecasts. The directors are confident that the underlying
forecasts are reasonable.
The Group is reliant on the ability of customers to pay debts and on the timing of new projects coming on line. In adverse trading circumstances
the Board has a number of mitigating actions it could take to ensure compliance with its covenants to banks and other institutions. The Group has
considerable financial resources together with long term contracts and relationships with a number of customers and suppliers across different
geographic areas and industries. An analysis of the Group’s borrowing facilities is disclosed in note 20 ‘Financial liabilities-borrowings’. As a
consequence, the directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully in the future.
The Directors have assessed, in the light of current and anticipated economic conditions, the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
Directors confirm that they have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis for preparing the Financial Statement.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Information relating to the book value of the Group’s land and freehold property is disclosed in the Financial Review on page 57 and note 13.
Annual General Meeting
The AGM will be held at 10 30 am on 11 December 2015 at Glaziers Hall, 9 Montague Close, London Bridge, London SE1 9DD. Formal notice and
details of the meeting are set out on a separate circular to shareholders accompanying the Annual Report and Financial Statement.
Auditors and Disclosure of Information to Auditors
A resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, who have indicated their willingness to continue in office as auditors, and
authorising the Directors to determine their remuneration will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.
For each of the persons who were Directors at the time this report was prepared, each Director confirms that:

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association which require that all directors retire after three years or sooner, Geoff Wright and Alex
Steele will retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Short biographies for Geoff Wright and Alex Steele are
set out in a separate circular to shareholders accompanying the Annual Report and Financial Statements.

• so far as he/she is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Companies’ auditors are unaware; and
• he/she has taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

The Board considers that the performance of each Director continues to be effective and that each Director demonstrates a strong commitment to
their role.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Company maintains Directors and Officers Liability Insurance which gives appropriate cover for any legal action brought against its Directors.
None of the Directors held any interest, either during or at the end of the financial year, in any material contract or arrangement with the Company or
any subsidiary undertaking. Details of Directors’ service contracts and Directors’ interests in shares are shown in the Remuneration Report on page
75.
Substantial Interests in Shares
Other than Directors’ interests, as at 8 October 2015, the Company had been notified, in accordance with chapter 5 of the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules, of the following interests of over 3% of its issued ordinary share capital:

Ruffer
AB Traction
F Clampitt Esq.
River and Mercantile Asset Management
City Financial
Executors of A G Thomson deceased

Number of shares held

%

5,484,448
3,300,000
1,691,995
1,500,000
1,050,000
1,050,000

17.8
10.7
5.5
4.9
3.4
3.4

By Order of the Board
Graham Hiscocks
Company Secretary
30 October 2015
Company number: 2188844

Share Capital
As at the date of this report, the Company’s share capital consists of 30,758,824 issued and fully paid ordinary shares each with a nominal value of
10p listed on the London Stock Exchange. Shares may be held in certificated or uncertificated form. Further details of the Company’s issued share
capital, including changes during the year, are disclosed in note 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Information relating to treasury shares
held at 30 June 2015 is set out in note 30 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Employment Policy
The Group’s employment policy is set out in the Human Resources Report on page 55.
Corporate Governance and Corporate Responsibility
The Group’s corporate governance and corporate responsibility principles and compliance are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on page
66 and Corporate Responsibility Report on page 61.
Financial Risk Management Policies
The Group’s approach to financial risk management is set out in note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The principal financial risks are
set out in the Principal Risks and Uncertainties Report on page 47.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Waterman Group plc
Report on the group financial statements
Our opinion
In our opinion, Waterman Group plc’s group financial statements (the “financial statements”):
• give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at 30 June 2015 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as adopted by the European Union; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.
What we have audited
The financial statements comprise:
• the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2015;
• the Consolidated Income Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;
• the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended;
• the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and
• the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Certain disclosures have been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report, rather than in the notes to the Financial Statements. These are cross
referenced from the financial statements and are identified as audited.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union.

Materiality:

• Overall group materiality: £537,000 which represents 0.65% of total revenues.

Audit scope:

• We assessed the risks of material misstatement to the group financial statements and
performed audit work on the group’s 8 principal businesses.
• When auditing the group’s overseas operations, we worked with teams who are located in
and have knowledge of the legal and business environments in which the group operates.
• We worked closely with our overseas team in Australia.
• The businesses where we performed work accounted for approximately 97% of group
revenue and 99% of group operating profit.

Area of focus:

Our assessment of the risk of material misstatement also informed our views on the areas of
particular focus for our work which are listed below.
• Complexities and judgments on long term contracts.
• Goodwill impairment assessment, particularly in relation to the Civil and Transportation
consulting (CTC) and AHW Pty Limited (AHW) CGUs.
• Going concern in respect of the forecast compliance with financial covenants and
future liquidity.
• Recoverability of WIP balances principally in relation to the CTC component.
• Accurate and complete recording of professional indemnity (PI) provisions.
• Disclosure of discontinued operations.

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Complexities and judgements on long term contracts
Please refer to page 73 of the audit and risk committee report, critical
accounting policies section (page 96), Accounting Policy Note 1
(page 95).
We focused on this area because the timing of revenue recognition
and forecasts of costs to complete are material to the business and
have inherent complexities in design and engineering industries.
The group enters into a large number of contracts, many of which
are complex and can span over a number of reporting periods.
IFRSs as endorsed by the EU require revenue to be recognised in
accordance with the percentage completion approach, or if a project
is loss making, the full loss to be recognised. The timing of revenue
recognition is subject to judgments surrounding how complete
the project is and the costs expected to be incurred in completing
the work. There is also an opportunity to misstate the amount of
variations that are expected to be recovered.
Given the degree of subjectivity involved, there is scope for error in
the calculation of revenue and opportunity to misstate the allocation
of revenue between reporting periods.
Therefore, there is a risk that contract revenue is not recognised
in the correct period or that revenue and associated profit are
misstated.

We selected a sample of contracts to test, using a risk based criteria
which included individual contracts with:
•
•
•
•

significant revenue recognised in the year;
forecast losses;
large unbilled work in progress (WIP) balances; or
small profit margins.

We obtained an understanding of management’s own process
for reviewing long term contracts (including the process for
identifying loss-making and/or higher risk contracts) and gained an
understanding of the key judgments involved and background to the
specific contract selected in our sample. We also tested the internal
controls over review and approval of revenue invoicing. Based on the
results of this evaluation and assessment, we placed some reliance
on controls for the purposes of our testing of revenue and designed
further audit procedures accordingly.
We then tested the key judgments adopted by management in
relation to the revenue recognition, and in particular, judgments with
respect to the percentage completion by obtaining an understanding
from the project managers of how they estimated these costs,
challenging the assumptions (for example by comparing forecast
hours with historical and current data underpinning those estimates),
evaluating the outturn of previous estimates and agreeing the actual
cost incurred post year-end to the forecast costs for the period was
appropriate and in line with manager’s accounting policy.
As costs drive the amount of revenue recognised, we tested the
allocation of costs by contract through timesheet authorisation and
manual journals testing, where we checked there were no material
transfers of WIP between contract codes.
To test the total anticipated revenue for the contract, which also
determined the amount of revenue recognised during the year, we
traced total anticipated revenue to supporting documentation such
as original contract, amendments to contracts (where applicable e.g.
due to agreed variations) and checked that contractual milestones
had been reached. Further to this, we traced a sample of revenue
transactions during the year to invoice raised and subsequent cash
receipt.
We considered the judgments made by the Directors concerning
the recognition of contract revenue to be appropriate in light of the
evidence available.

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland)”).
We designed our audit by determining materiality and assessing the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements. In particular, we
looked at where the Directors made subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits we also addressed the risk of management override
of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due to
fraud.
The risks of material misstatement that had the greatest effect on our audit, including the allocation of our resources and effort, are identified as
“areas of focus” in the table below. We have also set out how we tailored our audit to address these specific areas in order to provide an opinion
on the financial statements as a whole, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures should be read in this context. This is not a
complete list of all risks identified by our audit.
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Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Area of focus

Goodwill impairment assessment

Going concern and liquidity

Please refer to page 73 of the audit and risk committee report, critical
accounting policies section (page 96), Accounting Policy Note 1
(page 95) and Note 11 to the Financial Statement.

We evaluated the Directors’ future cash flow forecasts for the group
including comparing them to the latest Board approved budgets and
testing the integrity of the underlying calculations. We particularly
focused on the CTC and AHW CGUs. We challenged the Directors’
key assumptions for:

We focused on this area because the Directors’ determination of
whether or not an impairment charge is needed requires significant
judgment, including forecasting the future results of the business by
estimating future cash flows, profit margins and inflation rates and
determining the discount rates for the calculations. No impairment
charge has been recognised in the year.

• The future revenue growth and the margins by comparing them
to historical results, reading the future business plans by CGU and
assessing the likelihood that these can be achieved by evaluating
the future prospects for the business and the industry.
• The discount rate, by assessing the WACC for all CGUs and
comparing the group’s key inputs to externally derived data.

This was due to variability in the group’s performance in recent
years, as well as the condition of the engineering industry and
the economy in general. Although we noted that the net cash and
covenant positions have improved in recent years, we continued to
focus on this area given its pervasive nature.

We particularly focused on the goodwill held in respect of the AHW
cash generating unit (CGU) (£2.0 million) as this CGU has historically
had the least headroom and the Civil and Transportation consulting
(CTC) CGU as this historically has not been performing to forecast
levels.

We compared the current year actual results to the forecasts for
the financial year ended 30 June 2015 included in the prior year
impairment model to consider whether any forecasts included
assumptions that, with hindsight, had been over-optimistic. Actual
performance in the CTC CGU was lower than expected, so we
challenged the Directors over the ability to achieve future forecasts
by comparing these to industry averages and challenged the
classification of ‘one off’ costs incurred during the current year by
considering their nature and the likelihood of these being repeated in
future years.

The key judgments involved were average growth rate for the first five
years, post five year growth rate and weighted average pre-tax cost
of capital (WACC) as set out in Note 11.
IFRSs require complex and often detailed disclosure in the
financial statements about goodwill and impairment. In addition to
considering the need for any impairment charge, we focused on
these disclosures because they form a valuable communication,
enabling the users of the financial statements to understand
the basis for the Directors’ determination of whether or not an
impairment was needed.

The Directors’ conclusion that it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements is based on
future cash flow forecasts, which have shown a history of fluctuation.

We particularly focused on assessing the banking covenants held
within the group and the level of head room associated with these.
Whilst we had not noted any breaches of covenants in the previous
year, an additional loan has been taken out to fund the purchase of
the non-controlling interest in Australia so new covenants are in place
which, if breached, could impede management’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

This included identifying how much each of these key drivers needed
to change either individually or collectively to cause an impairment
trigger and assessing the likelihood of such movement in those key
assumptions arising.
We found that the discount rates applied by Directors in the forecasts
for the Sydney and CTC CGUs were within an acceptable range
based on the cost of capital for the Australian and UK businesses
respectively and the profit margins and growth rates were in line with
those of the relevant markets.
We considered the related disclosures in note 11 to the financial
statements by checking they were compliant with IFRSs and that
their presentation was consistent with our understanding of the key
issues in this area. We found that they appropriately describe the
inherent degree of subjectivity in the estimates, including specific
disclosures on the key assumptions most sensitive to change.

We obtained the Directors’ forecast of the group’s funding
requirements for a period covering 20 months from the date of
approval of these financial statements and focused on our work
on 12 months from the date of approval, we compared them to
the latest Board approved budgets and tested the integrity of the
underlying calculations.
The key judgemental areas within the profit growth assumptions were
tested through the work performed on the carrying value of goodwill
(see above).
We obtained copies of the loan agreements in place, including
any variations in terms, and read the relevant Board minutes and
correspondence with the banks, which confirmed the accuracy of the
loan balance and the inputs used by management in their covenant
workings. We re-performed management’s calculations of the
covenants at each test point and concurred with their conclusion that
no breaches had occurred during the year.
We performed sensitivity analysis around these and the cash flow
forecasts including adjusting future profit growth to industry average
forecast levels. We noted from our testing that EBITDA would have to
reduce by 89% for breach to occur in the covenant with the tightest
headroom. Our conclusion on going concern is below.

For the Sydney and CTC CGUs, we also performed sensitivity
analysis around the key drivers of the cash flow forecasts, which
were:
• the discount rate;
• achievement of forecast revenues and margins; and
• long term growth rate

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Work in progress (WIP) recoverability
Please refer to page 73 of the audit committee report, note 1
accounting policies (page 95 and note 16 to the financial statements.

We selected a sample of WIP to test using the following criteria:

We focused on this area because the Directors’ assessment of the
recoverability of contract WIP balances include subjective judgments
around the level of write-offs to take on a project by project basis.
They are also influenced by assumptions about the likelihood of the
client to agree to future invoicing and ultimately to settle payment.

• Balances associated with our contracts selection above;
• Balances with customers with large balances are held at the year
end where an element of WIP has been written off during the year;
• Balances with customers who have significantly aged debt (as this
could indicate a dispute); and
• A smaller, random sample of WIP balances across the contract
population for unpredictability.

As engineering consultants, Waterman usually perform their work
during the early stages of a project well in advance of their client
generating revenue on the project. Even when there is a contractual
right to payment under the contract / agreement there can still
be doubt over recoverability particularly in the construction and
engineering industry as it has historically been significantly impacted
by the recession. As projects slow down or are shelved the risk
that the client will not or cannot pay increases. It was noted that
these industry characteristics were particularly prevalent on the CTC
component given its financial performance therefore we treated this
division as an area of focus.

We obtained an understanding of management’s own process
for reviewing WIP balances on a quarterly basis. We tested the
Directors’ assessment of the recoverability of WIP balances including
challenging them on the recoverability of balances by discussing
the relationship with the client with the local project managers and
corroborating this by viewing correspondence between the two
parties, assessing the level of invoicing (and subsequent cash
receipt) after the year end and agreeing unbilled amounts to client
fee schedules or milestone payment agreements.
For the WIP balances selected, we did not identify evidence that
would suggest further material provision was required.
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Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Accurate and complete recording of Professional indemnity (PI) provisions.
Please refer to page 73 of the audit and risk committee report and
note 21 to the financial statements.
The nature of the engineering industry gives rise to disputes in the
ordinary course of business, which may result in claims. Waterman
Group Plc has insurance in place to cover these and, at the year
end, held a provision of [£1.8m (2014: £1.5m)] with regards to the
excess payable on current claims.
We focused on this area given the significant judgment involved in
assessing the claims for which a provision is needed and the amount
of the necessary provision in respect of each of those claims.

We obtained the group’s schedule of PI claims and checked it
was complete by comparing it to Board minutes and reading
correspondence for all PI provisions that were new or had been
released during the year. We obtained third party confirmations from
the group’s lawyers for material provisions held at 30 June 2015.
This provided evidence that the list of claims was complete and
that the fact patterns agreed to the group’s latest understanding as
communicated to us.
We discussed with the Directors their rationale behind each
individual PI provision and read correspondence between the group,
its lawyers and insurers and the claimants / claimants’ lawyers, in
respect of all PI claims, whether or not a provision was made in
respect of them. From this correspondence we were able to assess
management’s judgment as to whether a provision was required
and, if so, whether the amount provided was appropriate.
Based on the procedures performed we consider the judgments
made by the Directors supportable consistent with the evidence
available.

Disclosure of discontinued operations
Please refer to page 73 of the audit and risk committee report and
note 8 to the financial statements.
During 2014 the Board discontinued operations in the UAE and
Russia. Because of the nature of legislation in these territories
there are still legal procedures to complete in order to fully close
these entities. Therefore management established a provision for
discontinued operations in the previous year.
The area of focus this year is around the subsequent unwind of
the provision, the continuing valuation of the provision and the
presentation and disclosure of the costs incurred. The recognition
of the provision requires judgment to estimate the value and timing
of the net economic outflows and the extent to which the group
is externally committed to them. The presentation of subsequent
charges or credits relating to the discontinued operations in the
financial statements also requires consideration.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Overall group materiality

£537,000 (2014: £447,000).

How we determined it

0.65% of total revenues.

Rationale for benchmark applied

We used revenue as the basis for materiality due to the low margins in recent years and to avoid the
volatility that would result from a profit-based calculation. We applied a threshold of 0.65% as we
considered that this led to a level of materiality that was appropriate for our audit and is at a consistent
threshold to previous years.

We agreed with the Audit and Risk Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £26,800 (2014:
£22,000) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.
Going concern
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’ statement, set out on page 65, in relation to going concern. We have nothing to
report having performed our review.
As noted in the Directors’ statement, the Directors have concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements using the going concern
basis of accounting. The going concern basis presumes that the group has adequate resources to remain in operation, and that the Directors intend
it to do so, for at least one year from the date the financial statements were signed. As part of our audit we have concluded that the Directors’ use of
the going concern basis is appropriate.
However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, these statements are not a guarantee as to the group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

We assessed the completeness of the provisions connected with
the discontinued operations using our knowledge of the business,
inquiries with management and by comparing the wind-up forecasts
against the current rate of expenses incurred by the group to close
the operations. We also independently considered expenses that are
typically connected with exit and disposal activities and confirmed
that they had been considered by the group and provided for
where appropriate. Based on this, we did not identify any material
omissions.
We tested the unwinding of the provision through sample testing
the costs incurred during the year, tracing the costs to third party
documentation to check that the cost related to an item that had
been provided for. We also tested the completeness and appropriate
recognition of income received in relation to debtors and WIP
balances on contracts that were written off in the previous year in
order to ensure they are appropriately classified as exceptional to
match the original classification.
Based on the work performed we consider the disclosure
appropriate.

How we tailored the audit scope
We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a whole,
taking into account the geographic structure of the group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the group operates.
The group is structured into two segments (Property and Infrastructure & Environmental). The segments are further subdivided into eight
components, comprising the group’s operating businesses for the purpose of financial reporting. In our view, due to their significance and/ or
risk characteristics, six of the eight components required an audit of their complete financial information. For the Australian component, we used
component auditors from PwC Australia who are familiar with local laws and regulations to perform the audit work. We issued instructions to our
overseas team which included guidance on our areas of focus for the audit; we then had regular communication with them and a senior member
of the group team also attended the clearance meeting. Where the work was performed by component auditors, we determined the level of
involvement we needed to have in the audit work at those components to be able to conclude whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence had
been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the group financial statements as a whole. For the remaining two components (Other international and
Europe) we performed analytical procedures.

Other required reporting

Consistency of other information
Companies Act 2006 opinions
In our opinion:
• the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and
• the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement set out on page 66 with respect to internal control and risk management systems
and about share capital structures is consistent with the financial statements.
ISAs (UK & Ireland) reporting
Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

• information in the Annual Report is:
- materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements; or
- apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge
of the group acquired in the course of performing our audit; or
- otherwise misleading.

We have no exceptions
to report arising from this
responsibility.

• the statement given by the Directors on page 65, in accordance with provision C.1.1 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”), that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole to be fair, balanced
and understandable and provides the information necessary for members to assess the group’s
performance, business model and strategy is materially inconsistent with our knowledge of the group
acquired in the course of performing our audit.

We have no exceptions
to report arising from this
responsibility.

• the section of the Annual Report on page 72, as required by provision C.3.8 of the Code, describing the work
of the Audit and Risk Committee does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the Audit
and Risk Committee.

We have no exceptions
to report arising from this
responsibility.

The group consolidation, financial statement disclosure and a number of complex items were audited by the group engagement team at the head
office. These included taxation, goodwill, going concern, PI provision and discontinued operations.
Taken together, the group reporting entities where we performed work accounted for 97% of group revenues and 74% of group profit before tax.
Materiality
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These, together with
qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate
the effect of misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whole.
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Adequacy of information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2015

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from these responsibilities.
Corporate governance statement
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, a corporate governance statement has not been prepared by the
parent company. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the
Corporate Governance Statement relating to the parent company’s compliance with ten provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code. We have
nothing to report having performed our review.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Our responsibilities and those of the Directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 65, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and ISAs (UK & Ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or
to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
What an audit of financial statements involves
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
• whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed;
• the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors; and
• the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Directors’ judgments against available evidence, forming our own judgments, and
evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements.
We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to provide a reasonable basis
for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report & Financial Statements (the “Annual Report”) to identify
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

note

Revenue
Employee benefits expense
Other operating charges
Operating expenses
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (EBITDA)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Operating profit
Finance costs
Finance income
Profit before taxation
Taxation
Profit after taxation from Continuing operations
Loss for the period from Discontinued operations
Profit / (loss) for the financial year
Profit / (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Parent
Non - Controlling interests
Earnings per share from Continuing operations
Basic and diluted earnings per share
Earnings / (loss) per share from Continuing and
Discontinued operations
Basic and diluted earnings per share

Pre-exceptional
items
£’000

Exceptional
items
(note 5)
£’000

Year ended
30 June 2015
£’000

Pre-exceptional
items
(restated)
£’000

Exceptional
items
(note 5)
£000

Year ended
30 June 2014
(restated)
£’000

83,938
(46,851)
(33,710)
(80,561)

(355)
(5)
(360)

83,938
(47,206)
(33,715)
(80,921)

68,840
(40,941)
(25,991)
(66,932)

(753)
213
(540)

68,840
(41,694)
(25,778)
(67,472)

3,377
(500)
(68)
2,809
(105)
39
2,743
(688)
2,055
2,055

(360)
(360)
(360)
79
(281)
(281)

3,017
(500)
(68)
2,449
(105)
39
2,383
(609)
1,774
1,774

1,908
(396)
(67)
1,445
(140)
45
1,350
(328)
1,022
(3,813)
(2,791)

(540)
(540)
(540)
122
(418)
(418)

1,368
(396)
(67)
905
(140)
45
810
(206)
604
(3,813)
(3,209)

1,645
410
2,055

(284)
3
(281)

1,361
413
1,774

(3,198)
407
(2,791)

(418)
(418)

(3,616)
407
(3,209)

2
3
4

13
12
6

7
8

9

4.4p

0.6p

9

4.4p

(11.8p)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2015

Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Waterman Group plc for the year ended 30 June 2015 and on the
information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.

Simon O’Brien (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London
30 October 2015

Year ended
30 June 2015
£’000

Year ended
30 June 2014
£’000

Profit / (loss) for the financial year (see above)
Other comprehensive (expense) / income :
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Currency translation adjustments
Employee Benefit Trust profit
Change in valuation of own shares held by Employee Benefit Trust
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
Total of items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

1,774

(3,209)

(982)
18
(18)
(874)
(1,856)

(693)
7
(7)
(693)

Other comprehensive (expense) for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive (expense) for the year

(1,856)
(82)

(693)
(3,902)

412
(494)
(82)

(4,056)
154
(3,902)

412
412

(243)
(3,813)
(4,056)

Total comprehensive profit / (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income / (expense) attributable to Owners of the
Parent arising from:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

The notes on pages 95 to 120 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Consolidated Balance Sheet

for the year ended 30 June 2014

as at 30 June 2015

note

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Loan and receivables
Deferred taxation asset
Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Current tax asset
Cash at bank

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

11
12
13
14
27

15,683
73
3,107
10
1,405
20,278

16,229
100
2,671
10
1,387
20,397

17

31,458
5,419
36,877
57,155

29,208
153
3,019
32,380
52,777

18

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Financial liabilities – borrowings

19
20

(26,075)
(715)
(26,790)

(21,453)
(603)
(22,056)

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities – borrowings
Provisions

20
21

(939)
(1,949)
(2,888)
(29,678)

(801)
(1,549)
(2,350)
(24,406)

Total liabilities
Net assets
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF THE PARENT
Share capital
Share premium reserve
Merger reserve
Revaluation reserve
Retained earnings

27,477

28,371

3,076
11,881
3,144
598
8,161
26,860

3,076
11,881
3,144
598
8,178
26,877

617
27,477

1,494
28,371

Year ended
30 June 2014
£’ 000

5,719
(105)
(447)
(114)
5,053

3,658
(140)
(197)
(1,400)
1,921

(1,010)
39
3
(874)
(1,842)

(721)
45
3
(18)
(691)

(488)
825
(429)
(383)
(475)

(428)
(213)
(299)
(940)

26
26
26

2,736
2,858
(248)
5,346

290
2,788
(220)
2,858

note

Year ended
30 June 2015
£’ 000

Year ended
30 June 2014
£’ 000

1,774
609
105
(39)
68
500
-

604
206
140
(45)
67
396
(4)

552
1,656
400
94
5,719

(1,690)
3,921
63
3,658

note

Cash flows from operating activities
Continuing operations:
Cash generated from continuing operations (see below)
Interest paid
Tax paid
Discontinued operations
Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (PPE)
and other intangible assets
Interest received
Proceeds from sale of PPE and other intangible assets
Acquisition of non-controlling stake (MI)
Discontinued operations
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowing
Drawdown of loan facility
Equity dividends paid - Owners of the parent
Equity dividends paid - Non-controlling interest
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

10

22
24

Non-controlling interest
Total equity

The Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 91 to 120 were approved by the Board on 30 October 2015 and signed on its behalf by:-

Michael Baker					Nicholas Taylor
Chairman						Chief Executive

The notes on pages 95 to 120 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year ended
30 June 2015
£’ 000

Reconciliation of Profit for the financial year
to cash generated from operations
Profit for the financial year from Continuing operations
Taxation charge
Interest payable
Interest receivable
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of PPE and other intangible assets
Changes in working capital
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in provisions
Foreign exchange
Cash generated from continuing operations (see above)

7
6
12
13

The notes on pages 95 to 120 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2015

1 Accounting Policies

Attributable to the owners of the parent
Share
capital
£’000

Share
premium
reserve
£’000

3,076

11,881

3,144

598

12,447

31,146

1,640

32,786

-

-

-

-

(440)
(7)
7
(440)
(3,616)
(4,056)
(213)

(440)
(7)
7
(440)
(3,616)
(4,056)
(213)

(253)
(253)
407
154
(300)

(693)
(7)
7
(693)
(3,209)
(3,902)
(513)

3,076

11,881

3,144

598

8,178

26,877

1,494

28,371

Currency translation adjustments
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
Change in valuation of own shares held by Employee Benefit Trust
Employee Benefit Trust profit
Other comprehensive expense

-

-

-

-

(645)
(304)
(18)
18
(949)

(645)
(304)
(18)
18
(949)

(337)
(570)
(907)

(982)
(874)
(18)
18
(1,856)

Profit for the financial year
Total comprehensive income / (expense)
Dividend

-

-

-

-

1,361
412
(429)

1,361
412
(429)

413
(494)
(383)

1,774
(82)
(812)

Balance at 1 July 2013
Currency translation adjustments
Change in valuation of own shares held by Employee Benefit Trust
Employee Benefit Trust profit
Other comprehensive expense
(Loss) for the financial year
Total comprehensive (expense) / income
Dividend
Balance at 30 June 2014

Balance at 30 June 2015

3,076

11,881

Merger Revaluation
reserve
reserve
£’000
£’000

3,144

598

Retained
earnings
£’000

8,161

Noncontrolling
Total
interest
£’000
£’000

26,860

617

Total
equity
£’000

Accounting Convention
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with EU endorsed International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and IFRIC interpretations and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The Company is a public
limited company, which is listed on the London Stock Exchange and incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The principal accounting policies which
have been consistently applied to the prior year, unless otherwise stated, in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements are set out
below.
Basis Of Preparation
The Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014 have been prepared in accordance with the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority, in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, and in accordance with those parts of
the Companies Act 2006 related to reporting under IFRS that the board expects to be applicable as at 30 June 2015. IFRS is subject to amendment
or interpretation by the International Accounting Standards Board and there is an ongoing process of review and endorsement by the EU. For these
reasons, it is possible that the information presented in this report may be subject to change.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reported year. Although these estimates are based on the Board’s best knowledge of the amount, events or actions, actual
results ultimately may differ from those estimates.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention with the exception of land and freehold
property which have been modified to fair value at the date of transition to IFRS and separately identifiable intangibles acquired on business
combinations which have been measured at fair value.
Restatement
The amounts due from customers on long term contracts and the amounts due to customers on long term contracts for the prior year have been
restated from work order level to contract level to ensure a consistent method of calculation to the current year. The effect of the restatement is
shown below:
30 June 2014 Increase / (decrease)
£000’s

27,477
Amounts due:

From customers on long term contracts
To customers on long term contracts
Impact on net assets

(2,335)
2,335
-

New and Amended Standards Adopted by the Group
The following standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for the first time in the current financial year but have had no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to existing standards
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 cycle (effective 1 July 2014).
New and amended standards not yet adopted
IFRS 9 Financial instruments replaces part of IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition (effective from 1 January 2018)
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers will replace IAS 18 and IAS 11 (effective from 1 January 2017)
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle (effective from 1 January 2016).
There has been no impact due to the implementation of new accounting standards during the year. All of the accounting policies adopted are
consistent with those of the audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 as described in those Financial Statements.
Basis of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements consist of the financial statements of Waterman Group plc and all of its subsidiaries (together ‘the
Group’) as at 30 June each year. Subsidiaries are those entities over which the Group has the power to govern financial and operating policies,
generally accompanying a shareholding that confers more than half of the voting rights. The results of the subsidiary undertakings acquired have
been included from the date of acquisition being the date when control passed. Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Business Combinations
The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition by acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The notes on pages 95 to 120 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. All intra-group transactions and
balances are eliminated on consolidation.
Transactions and Non-Controlling Interests
The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity. Translation costs incurred in relation to a
transaction with a non-controlling interest that does not result in a change in control are deducted from equity.
Foreign Currency Translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and any exchange differences are taken to
the consolidated income statement.
On consolidation, income statements and cash flows of foreign subsidiaries are translated from their functional currency into the Group’s functional
currency of pounds sterling using average rates that existed during the accounting period. The balance sheets of foreign subsidiaries and goodwill
arising on consolidation are translated into pounds sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses on the
translation of opening and closing net assets are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and cumulatively in the
Group’s reserves.
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of the financial statements requires the Group to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The Directors base their estimates on historical
experience and various other assumptions that they believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgements about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The estimates and assumptions that have the most significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are addressed in the paragraph below.
Critical Judgments
The Board considers that the estimates, judgments and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are:
• Contract Accounting: Revenue recognition, the valuation of trade receivables and amounts recoverable on contracts and the assessment of
the percentage of completion achieved. The Group assesses contract progress and determines the proportion of contract work completed at the
balance sheet date in relation to the total contract works. This policy requires forecasts to be made on the projected outcomes of projects. These
forecasts require assessments and judgments to be made on matters including changes in work scope, changes in costs and costs to
completion. While the assumptions made are based on professional judgments, subsequent events may mean that estimates calculated prove to
be inaccurate, with a consequent effect on the reporting results;
• Insurance Claims: Provisions in respect of potential liability insurance claims require assessments and judgments to be made of the likelihood of
a claim succeeding and an estimate of the quantum. While the assumptions made are based on professional judgments, subsequent events may
mean that estimates calculated prove to be inaccurate, with a consequent effect on the reporting results;
• Goodwill is subject to impairment review both annually and when there are indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The
carrying value is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Determining whether
goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of CGU’s to which the goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires an estimate to be made of the timing and amount of future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and the application of a suitable
discount rate to calculate the present value. The discount rates used are based on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital adjusted to
reflect the specific economic environment of the relevant CGU (refer to note 11); and
• Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is accounted for on temporary differences using the liability method. Deferred tax assets are only recognised as
recoverable if it is judged probable that a future taxable profit will arise against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax
liabilities will be provided for in full.
Segmental Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker. The Chief
Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Board.

Invoice Discounting Facility
The terms of this arrangement are judged to be such that the risk and rewards of ownership of the trade receivables do not pass to the finance
provider. As a result, the receivables are not derecognised when funds are drawn against this facility. This facility is recognised as a liability for the
amount drawn.
Employee Benefits
a) Pension Obligations
The Group maintains a number of defined contribution schemes, including a stakeholder pension scheme, which are available to all qualifying staff.
Company contributions to these schemes are charged to the Consolidated Income Statement in the year to which they relate.
b) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)
The Group launched a new Share Incentive Plan (SIP) in December 2014. The SIP enables free shares to be awarded and employees to purchase
Company shares or partnership shares out of pre-tax salary. The expense in relation to the free shares is recorded as employee remuneration and
measured at fair value of the shares.
The Group holds Waterman shares that were purchased to meet the requirements of an earlier SIP which has now expired. These shares held by the
Employee Benefit Trust at the balance sheet date are disclosed as a deduction from total shareholders’ equity.
c) Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
A new LTIP was introduced in December 2014 following shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting (AGM). When performance targets are
achieved, awards will be settled by the issue of new ordinary shares.
In accordance with IFRS2, Share-based payments, the cost of share based payments is charged to the income statement over the vesting periods.
The cost is based on the fair value of the awards made at the date of grant, adjusted for the number of awards expected to vest. The credit
associated with the amounts charged to the income statement is in retained earnings/accumulated losses until the awards are exercised. Where
awards are settled by the new issue of shares, any proceeds received in respect of share awards are credited to share capital and share premium.
Exceptional Items
Exceptional items are those that the directors consider are of such unusual size or nature that they are required to be separately disclosed to allow
the user of the financial statements to understand the underlying performance of the Group. They are disclosed within their relevant business
segment within note 2, Segmental Information and note 5, Exceptional Items. They typically include restructuring costs, property provisions and
certain work in progress and trade receivable provisions.
Finance Costs
Interest expense is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement as it is accrued.
Goodwill
Goodwill recognised under UK GAAP prior to 1 July 2004 (and subsequent to 1 July 1998), the date of transition to IFRS, is stated at net book
value as at this date and has been frozen in accordance with IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’. Goodwill on business combinations recognised
subsequent to 1 July 2004 is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of acquisition paid over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for impairment testing which is performed annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The recoverable amount of goodwill has been based on value in use as represented by
the net present value of future cash flows discounted using the group’s weighted average pre-tax real cost of capital.
Other Intangible Assets
Computer software licences acquired are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use specific software. Intangible
assets identified in a business combination are capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, the carrying amount
of an intangible asset is its cost or fair value less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed on acquisition and amortisation is charged as appropriate on a straight line basis. The annual amortisation rates applicable are
as follows:
Computer software
		
Customer relationships arising on business combinations

20%-33%
17%

Unallocated assets principally comprise of cash and cash equivalents, other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment that are controlled
by the parent company. Unallocated liabilities are primarily trade payables and accruals controlled by the Parent Company.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Depreciation
PPE is stated at cost or fair value when acquired, less depreciation and when appropriate, provision for impairment. Cost includes the original
purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Freehold property has been
revalued to its fair value as at the date of transition to IFRS and is now held at deemed cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant amount in
the Revaluation reserve is transferred to Retained Earnings.

Revenue
Revenue is stated net of VAT and is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can
be reliably measured. For short term contracts, the amount of revenue recognised reflects the work completed.

Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost or fair value of PPE by equal annual instalments over their expected useful lives,
having regard to their residual values, and is subject to an impairment review. Land is not depreciated. The annual depreciation rates applicable are
as follows:

The Group has a number of long term contracts that span more than one financial period. In calculating revenue, the percentage of completion
method is used, based on a review of contract progress and the proportion of contract work completed in relation to the total contract works. Profits
are only recognised where they can be reliably measured, which is normally after the contract has reached 40% completion. Full provision is made
for all known or anticipated losses on each contract immediately such losses are identified. Contract costs comprise direct labour, direct expenses
and attributable overheads. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included in the contract revenue to the extent that they
have been agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured.

Freehold buildings					2%
Plant, equipment and motor vehicles			
15% - 33%
Freehold land is not depreciated

Gross amounts due from customers are stated at the value of the costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) where they exceed
progress billings. Progress billings not yet paid by customers are included within trade and other receivables. To the extent that progress billings
exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) they are included in trade and other payables as amounts due to customers
on long term contracts.
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Income Statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the Income Statement.
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Impairment Of Non-Financial Assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life - for example, Goodwill or Intangible assets not ready to use - are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the investment. The Group’s financial assets and liabilities are recorded at fair value or amortised cost, apart from the net assets and
liabilities of overseas subsidiary undertakings which are translated into pounds sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. They
are classified as current or non-current according to when the receipt or payment falls due. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities of the
Group are considered to be materially equivalent to their book value.
Net Investment Hedges
Gains and losses on those hedging instruments designated as hedges of net investments in foreign operations are recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income to the extent that the hedging relationship is effective. Gains and losses accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve are included in the Income Statement when the foreign operation is disposed of.
Financial Assets
The Group classifies its financial assets depending on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determined this
classification at initial recognition as detailed below:
Loan And Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities that are greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise Trade and other receivables and Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet.
Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment
of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments (more than 90 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Consolidated
Income Statement within Other operating charges. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against Other operating charges in the Consolidated Income
Statement.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement include cash and bank balances, short term deposits and invoice discounting
facilities (included in Financial liabilities-borrowings in the Consolidated Balance Sheet).
Trade and Other Payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Trade
payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable
are classified as Current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as Non-current liabilities.
Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.
Leases
Finance lease agreements, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are
capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Finance costs are charged to the Consolidated Income Statement over the period of the agreement. Obligations under finance leases are included
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet in Financial Liabilities – Borrowings, net of finance costs allocated to future periods. Capitalised leased assets
are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated life of the asset or the lease term. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and
benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the consolidated income
statement as incurred on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Current and Deferred Tax
The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date in the countries where
the Group operates and generates taxable income.
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit or loss or taxable profit or loss.

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax relating to items
recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the Consolidated Income Statement.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is likely that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Where the Group
expects all or some of the obligation to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Consolidated Income Statement net of any reimbursement.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date. If material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money.
Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Dividend
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Consolidated Financial Statements when approved. Interim
dividends are recognised when paid.
Financial Risk Management
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing financial risks. These have remained unchanged throughout the year. The Group’s finance
team is responsible for managing investment and funding requirements including banking and cash flow monitoring. It seeks to ensure that
adequate liquidity exists at all times in order to meet its cash requirements.
The Group strategy is to finance its operations through a mixture of cash generated from operations and where necessary, equity finance and
borrowings by way of bank facilities and working capital finance.
The Group’s financial instruments comprise borrowings, cash and various items, such as trade receivables and trade payables that arise from its
operations. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group also has overdraft facilities in place
to optimise the use of its resources. The Group does not trade in financial instruments or derivatives. In accordance with IFRS 7, the Group has
reviewed all contracts for embedded derivatives that are required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet certain requirements. No such
arrangements have been identified.
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are described below.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group cannot meet its obligations if suitable sources of funding for the Group’s business activities are not available.
The Group’s liquidity is managed centrally with operating companies forecasting their cash requirements to the parent company. In managing this
risk, the Group has access to a range of funding at competitive rates through capital markets and banks. The parent company centrally co-ordinates
relationships with banks, borrowing requirements, foreign exchange requirements and cash management. The Group believes that it has access
to sufficient funding by using undrawn committed borrowing facilities to meet foreseeable borrowing requirements together with the use of retained
profits and new equity.
The Group has continued with its policy of ensuring that there are sufficient funds to meet the expected funding requirements of the Group’s
operations and investment opportunities whilst monitoring its liquidity position through budgetary procedures, cash flow analysis and bank covenant
reviews. The Group has a Dun and Bradstreet credit risk rating of 4 which indicates a minimal credit risk.
The Group had net funds of £3.8m at 30 June 2015 comprising £5.4m of cash less £1.6m of debt.
Foreign Currency Risk
The Group has exposure to currency risk on business transactions where revenues and costs are in different currencies, and on translation of assets
and liabilities from local currency into sterling. Revenues and costs in the same currency are matched to form natural hedges wherever possible.
The Group implements hedging procedures or purchase currency hedges where a material exposure is identified.
Interest Rate Risk
Interest expense reflects the cost of the Group’s borrowings. Interest income arises from investment of cash and short term deposits held by the
Group. Interest rate risk is managed by monitoring market rates to ensure that optimal returns are achieved.
The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loan, overdraft and sales financing facility
debt obligations. Bank interest is charged on a floating rate basis.
Credit Risk
Credit checks are performed on all potential customers. Accounts receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group, with no single debtor accounting for more than 7% (2014: 6%) of total receivables balances at 30 June
2015.
Discontinued Operations
Cash flows and operations that relate to a separate major line of business or geographical region that has been disposed of are shown separately
from Continuing operations.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax assets
and unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
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2 Segmental Reporting

2 Segmental Reporting (Continued)

The Board reviews the Group’s internal management accounts in order to analyse performance and allocate resources. Performance was assessed
on the basis of operating profit before exceptional items as disclosed in the Consolidated Income Statement. Revenue was reported and assessed
on a consistent basis with revenue reported in the Consolidated Income Statement. The Board assesses the business from both a business
discipline and geographic perspective.
The losses incurred by the Discontinued operations (note 8) in the prior year were reported separately in the Consolidated Income Statement below
Profit after taxation from Continuing operations. The Group monitors and reports on the performance of its Property and Infrastructure & Environment
(“IE”) business segments. The components of each business segment have been reported in the segmental reporting note (note 2).

Year ended 30 June 2015

Consolidated Income Statement
Revenue - total
Revenue - internal
Revenue
EBITDA before exceptional items
Depreciation and amortisation on computer software
Operating profit / (loss) pre exceptional items
and amortisation on acquired intangible assets
Amortisation on acquired intangible assets
Exceptional items
Operating profit / (loss) post exceptional items
Net finance costs
Profit before taxation
Taxation

Year ended 30 June 2014

Property
£’000

IE
£’000

Total
£’000

Property
£’000

IE
£’000

Total
£’000

49,997
(7,874)
42,123

44,114
(2,299)
41,815

94,111
(10,173)
83,938

38,910
(6,348)
32,562

38,094
(1,816)
36,278

77,004
(8,164)
68,840

2,910
(279)
2,631
(46)
2,585

467
(289)
178
(314)
(136)

3,377
(568)
2,809
(360)
2,449
(66)
2,383
(609)

3,326
(229)
3,097
(7)
(21)
3,069

(1,418)
(227)
(1,645)
(519)
(2,164)

1,908
(456)
1,452
(7)
(540)
905
(95)
810
(206)

Profit after taxation from Continuing operations
Loss for the year from Discontinued operations
Profit / (loss) for the financial year

1,774
1,774

604
(3,813)
(3,209)

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests
Profit / (loss) attributable to the owners of the parent

413
1,361

407
(3,616)

1,774

(3,209)

Consolidated
Balance Sheet
Goodwill
Other segment assets
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Current tax assets
Deferred tax assets
Total assets
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets
Capital expenditure

100

Property
£’000

IE
£’000

Group,
Unallocated
and
consolidation
adjustments
£’000

5,871
38,487
44,358

9,812
6,593
16,405

(5,013)
(5,013)

Total 2015
£’000

Property
£’000

15,683
40,067
55,750

6,417
32,239
38,656

IE
£’000

Group,
Unallocated
and
consolidation
adjustments
£’000

Total 2014
£’000

9,812
7,666
17,478

(4,897)
(4,897)

16,229
35,008
51,237

44,358

16,405

1,405
(3,608)

1,405
57,155

38,656

17,478

153
1,387
(3,357)

153
1,387
52,777

(30,277)

(9,727)

13,523

(26,481)

(30,277)

(9,727)

(1,842)
(1,355)
10,326

(1,842)
(1,355)
(29,678)

(23,547)
(23,547)

(9,741)
(9,741)

11,601
(1,536)
(1,183)
8,882

(21,687)
(1,536)
(1,183)
(24,406)

14,081

6,678

6,718

27,477

15,109

7,737

5,525

28,371

114

25

871

1,010

85

89

547

721

Year ended 30 June
2015
Revenue – total
Revenue- internal
Revenue
EBITDA before
exceptional items
Depreciation and
amortisation
on computer software
Operating profit / (loss)
pre exceptional items
Exceptional items
Operating profit / (loss)
post exceptional items

Year ended 30 June
2014
Revenue – total
Revenue- internal
Revenue
EBITDA before
exceptional items
Depreciation and
amortisation
on computer software
Operating profit / (loss)
pre exceptional items
and amortisation on
acquired intangible
assets
Amortisation on
acquired intangible
assets
Exceptional items
Operating profit / (loss)
post exceptional items

Other
Europe International
£’000
£’000

Total
Property
£’000

Civil and
Civil and
Transportation Transportation
consulting
outsourcing
£’000
£’000

Structures
£’000

Building
Services
£’000

Australia
£’000

27,782
(6,867)
20,915

12,607
(785)
11,822

6,657
(28)
6,629

2,958
(183)
2,775

(7)
(11)
(18)

49,997
(7,874)
42,123

12,418
(601)
11,817

1,269

519

1,053

81

(12)

2,910

(137)

(67)

(38)

(33)

(4)

1,132

452

1,015

48

-

-

(46)

1,132

452

969

Structures
£’000

Building
Services
£’000

Australia
£’000

21,119
(5,736)
15,383

8,462
(331)
8,131

6,900
(16)
6,884

2,331
(183)
2,148

98
(82)
16

38,910
(6,348)
32,562

13,963
(623)
13,340

1,569

625

917

25

190

3,326

(91)

(51)

(58)

(24)

(5)

1,478

574

859

1

(34)

(7)
(14)

(35)

1,444

553

824

Environment
£’000

Total
IE
£’000

20,858
(1,010)
19,848

10,838
(688)
10,150

44,114
(2,299)
41,815

(1,131)

917

681

467

(279)

(78)

(130)

(81)

(289)

(16)

2,631

(1,209)

787

600

178

-

-

(46)

(304)

-

(10)

(314)

48

(16)

2,585

(1,513)

787

590

(136)

Other
Europe International
£’000
£’000

Total
Property
£’000

Civil and
Civil and
Transportation Transportation
consulting
outsourcing
£’000
£’000

Environment
£’000

Total
IE
£’000

15,282
(682)
14,600

8,849
(511)
8,338

38,094
(1,816)
36,278

(2,830)

749

663

(1,418)

(229)

(83)

(79)

(65)

(227)

185

3,097

(2,913)

670

598

(1,645)

62

-

(7)
(21)

(367)

(4)

(148)

(519)

63

185

3,069

(3,280)

666

450

(2,164)

In the prior year, EBITDA (Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation) and profit for Other International include £117,000 from
settlement of a debt previously provided for. A segmental analysis of net finance costs has not been disclosed as the Directors are of the opinion
that its components cannot be meaningfully analysed across regions and classes of business.
Internal revenue is work done on behalf of fellow group undertakings on an arm’s length basis. External revenue reported to the Board is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the Consolidated Income Statement.
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2 Segmental Reporting (continued)

2 Segmental Reporting (Continued)
Consolidated
Balance Sheet
30 June 2015
Goodwill
Other segment assets
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Current tax assets
Deferred tax assets
Total assets
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Financial and other
liabilities
Tax liabilities
Total liabilities
Capital expenditure

Consolidated
Balance Sheet
30 June 2014
(restated)
Goodwill
Other segment assets
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Current tax assets
Deferred tax assets
Total assets
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Financial and other
liabilities
Tax liabilities
Total liabilities
Capital expenditure

Structures
£’000

Building
services
£’000

Australia
£’000

28,687
28,687

680
5,059
5,739

4,019
3,255
7,274

(16,086)

38

(1,990)

-

(943)

25

Structures
£’000

Building
services
£’000

Australia
£’000

22,759
22,759

680
4,640
5,320

4,565
3,325
7,890

(10,702)

15

(1,619)

6

(1,153)

25

Unallocated
Civil and
Civil and
and
Other Transportation Transportation
consolidation
Europe International
consulting outsourcing Environment adjustments
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000

1,172
2,000
3,172

(1,731)

51

4
4

(9,437)

-

2,287
3,250
5,537

(6,437)

-

6,560
5,729
12,289

(1,461)

18

965
817
1,782

(1,225)

7

(8,734)
(8,734)

(1,294)

39

4
4

(8,690)

-

2,287
5,907
8,194

(7,299)

11

6,560
4,530
11,090

(980)

23

965
303
1,268

(1,082)

55

Total
£’000

15,683
40,067
55,750

12,829

1,405
57,155
(26,481)

871

(1,842)
(1,355)
(29,678)
1,010

Unallocated
Civil and
Civil and
and
Other Transportation Transportation
consolidation
Europe International
consulting outsourcing Environment adjustments
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000

1,172
1,800
2,972

Geographical Segmental Analysis
30 June 2015
External revenue – by client location
Segment assets – by location of asset
Capital expenditure

30 June 2014
External revenue – by client location
Segment assets – by location of asset
Capital expenditure

UK
£’000

Australia
£’000

Europe
£’000

Other
International
£’000

Group
£’000

Total
£’000

74,552
54,034
63

6,629
7,274
25

2,775
3,172
51

(18)
4
-

(8,734)
871

83,938
55,750
1,010

UK
£’000

Australia
£’000

Europe
£’000

Other
International
£’000

Group
£’000

Total
£’000

59,792
48,631
110

6,884
7,890
25

2,148
2,972
39

16
4
-

(8,260)
547

68,840
51,237
721

3 Employee Benefits Expense

Staff costs including Executive Directors remuneration amounted to:
Wages and salaries – including £55,000 in respect of share based payments (2014: nil)
Termination benefits – including exceptional items of £355,000 (2014: £753,000)
Social security costs
Other pension costs

Total
£’000

(8,260)
(8,260)

16,229
35,008
51,237

11,132

153
1,387
52,777
(21,687)

547

(1,536)
(1,183)
(24,406)
721

£’000

Year ended 30 June 2014
(restated)
£’000

40,425

35,407

355
4,283
2,143
47,206

753
3,720
1,814
41,694

Number
1,078
130
1,208

Number
778
129
907

Year ended 30 June 2015

The average monthly number of employees including executive directors during the year were as follows:
Technical (excluding Discontinued operations)
Non-technical (excluding Discontinued operations)

The average monthly number of temporary and contract staff during the year was 320 (2014: 200).
Pensions contributions outstanding at 30 June 2015 were £191,577 (2014: £152,726).
An award of 95,427 free Waterman shares was made to 498 staff. The cost of these shares to the company was £55,000 (2014: £nil)

Unallocated and consolidation adjustments consist primarily of intercompany balances which are eliminated on consolidation and balances related
to the Group overdraft facility. The Group has the right to offset the cash and overdraft balances between Group companies and hence includes the
new balance, if any, within Cash and cash equivalents.
In the 2014 segment balance sheet, the liability for Discontinued operations has been restated to exclude £3.52m of liabilities owed to Group
companies which are now included within Unallocated and consolidation adjustments. The segment balance sheet for 2015 has been prepared on
the same basis.
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4 Other Operating Charges

7 Taxation
Year ended 30 June 2015
£’000

Other operating charges / (gains) include:
During the year the Group (including its overseas subsidiary undertakings) obtained
the following services from the Company’s auditors and its associates:
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of parent company and consolidated
financial statements
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and its associates for other services:
-the audit of the parent company’s subsidiary undertakings pursuant to legislation
-other services pursuant to legislation
Operating lease rentals:
- property
- plant and equipment
Loss on foreign exchange
Rents receivable

Year ended 30 June 2014
£’000

95

95

135
-

134
16

1,731
470
37
(24)

2,099
379
27
(24)

5 Exceptional Items
Employee benefits expense
Restructuring costs
Other operating charges
Office closure costs
Work in progress and trade receivable provisions released
Taxation
Total exceptional items

United Kingdom
Corporation tax at 20.75% (2014: 22.5%)
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Foreign
Corporation taxes
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Total current tax
United Kingdom
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Total deferred tax
Taxation

Year ended 30 June 2015
£’000

Year ended 30 June 2014
£’000

(355)

(753)

(5)
(360)
79
(281)

213
(540)
122
(418)

a) Restructuring costs: Costs relate principally to settlement and redundancy costs to former directors and staff arising from the restructuring of
our civil and transportation consulting business (2014: settlement and redundancy costs to former directors and staff following
business restructuring).
b) Work in progress and trade receivable provisions: In 2014 payment was received for two debts which had previously been written off
as exceptional.
c) Taxation: The taxation credit of £79,000 (2014: £122,000 credit) is due to the tax deductibility of the exceptional items.

6 Finance Costs
Interest payable on bank loans and invoice discounting facility
Other interest payable
Interest payable

a) Analysis of Charge in the year

Year ended 30 June 2015
£’000

Year ended 30 June 2014
£’000

50
55
105

101
39
140

Year ended 30 June 2015
£’000

Year ended 30 June 2014
£’000

270
31
301

-

350
(3)
648

277
277

178
(217)
(39)

(155)
84
(71)

609

206

b) Factors Affecting Taxation for the Year
The following table shows a reconciliation from the expected corporation tax charge, using the UK corporation tax rate for 2015 of 20.75% (2014:
22.5%) to the reported tax charge. The reconciling items represent, other than the impact of tax rate differentials and changes, non-taxable income
or non-deductible expenses arising from the difference between the local tax base and the reported financial statements.
The total tax charge in future years will be affected by any changes in the corporation tax rates in force in the countries in which the Group operates
as shown in note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Profit before taxation from Continuing operations
Taxation on profit at standard UK rate of 20.75% (2014: 22.5%)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Adjustments in respect of foreign tax rates
Non-taxable
Losses utilised / (not utilised)
Sub-total
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Change in tax rate
Total taxation charge

Year ended 30 June 2015
£’000

Year ended 30 June 2014
£’000

2,383
494

810
182

109
107
(4)
95
801
(189)
(3)
609

78
(24)
(114)
122
84
206

The UK corporation tax rate will be 20% from 1 April 2015 and this has been reflected in the financial statements. Further changes to the UK
corporation tax rates were announced in the Chancellor’s budget on 8 July 2015. These include reductions to the main rate to 19% from 1 April 2017
and 18% from 1 April 2020. As these changes had not been substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, their effect are not included in these
financial statements.
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8 Discontinued Operations

10 Dividends

In July 2013, the Board decided to discontinue trading in the United Arab Emirates (UAE). In January 2014, the Board decided to discontinue trading
in Russia. By 30 June 2014, all revenue generating operations in the UAE and Russia had ceased and the operations have been classified as
discontinued.
The Consolidated Income Statement and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement report Continuing operations and Discontinued operations separately.
The results for the Discontinued operations, which have been included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, were as follows:

Year ended 30 June 2015
£’000

Year ended 30 June 2014
£’000

-

523
(4,336)
(3,813)
(3,813)

Revenue
Expenses
Loss before tax
Taxation
Loss after tax from Discontinued operations

A net cash outflow (including from Investing activities) of £114,000 (2014: outflow of £1,418,000) resulted from the Discontinued operations during
the year.

Dividends charged to equity in the year
Final dividend paid in January 2015 of 0.6p (2014: 0.3p) per share
Interim dividend paid in April 2015 of 0.8p (2014: 0.4p) per share
Total dividend paid in year of 1.4p (2014: 0.7p) per share
Final dividend proposed for payment in January 2016 of 1.2p (2014: 0.6p) per share

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

184
245
429
367

91
122
213
184

A dividend of £383,000 (2014: £299,000) was paid to the non-controlling interest during the year.
An interim dividend of 0.8p per share was paid on 17 April 2015. Reflecting its confidence in the future performance and prospects for the Group,
the Board is recommending to shareholders an increase of the final dividend to 1.2p per share (2014: 0.6p). If approved by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting to be held on 11 December 2015, the final dividend will be paid on 8 January 2016 to shareholders on the register at close
of business on 11 December 2015.
The Employee Benefit Trust has waived its entitlement to dividends which has reduced the 2015 interim dividend paid by £1,045 (2014: £880) and
the 2014 final dividend paid by £765 (2013: £656).

11 Goodwill
9 Earnings / (Loss) Per Share

Group
£’000

The basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share has been calculated on the earnings / (loss) attributable to the owners of the parent and based
on a weighted average of 30,721,657 (2014: 30,647,574) shares in issue and ranking for dividend during the year. The diluted earnings / (loss) per
share from continuing and discontinued operations is the same as there are no dilutive share options in issue as at 30 June 2015.

Basic earnings / (loss) per share:
Earnings / (loss) attributable to owners of the parent
Effect of dilutive share schemes
Diluted earnings / (loss) per share

2015
Profit
£’000

2015
Weighted average
number of shares
(thousands)

2015
Per share
amount
(pence)

2014
Loss
£’000

2014
Weighted average
number of shares
(thousands)

2014
Per share
amount
(pence)

1,361
1,361

30,722
30,722

4.4
4.4

(3,616)
(3,616)

30,648
30,648

(11.8)
(11.8)

The adjusted earnings / (loss) per share from continuing operations before amortisation of acquired intangible assets and exceptional items is 5.4p
(2014: 2.0p) as set out below.

Earnings from Continuing operations

Profit attributable to the owners of the Parent
Exceptional items after taxation
Amortisation of acquired intangibles after taxation
Earnings for the purposes of adjusted EPS
Basic and diluted EPS
Adjusted and diluted EPS

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

1,361
284
1,645

197
418
5
620

4.4p
5.4p

0.6p
2.0p

The adjusted earnings / (loss) per share from continuing and discontinued operations before amortisation of acquired intangible assets and
exceptional items is 5.4p (2014: 10.4p loss) as set out below.

Earnings / (loss) from Continuing and Discontinued operations
Profit / (loss) attributable to owners of the Parent
Exceptional items after taxation
Amortisation on acquired intangibles after taxation
Earnings / (loss) for the purposes of adjusted EPS

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

1,361
284
1,645

(3,616)
418
5
(3,193)

4.4p
5.4p

(11.8p)
(10.4p)

Cost
1 July 2013
Exchange rate adjustments
Goodwill write off in respect of Discontinued operations in the United Arab Emirates
1 July 2014
Exchange rate adjustments
30 June 2015

17,207
(383)
(101)
16,723
(546)
16,177

Accumulated impairment
1 July 2013, 1 July 2014 and 30 June 2015
Net book amount
30 June 2015
30 June 2014

494

15,683
16,229

Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’ at least annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) in order to carry out impairment tests. A summary of goodwill allocation by CGU
or group of CGU’s is included in note 2. Goodwill of £4.0m within the Australian CGU is attributable to the acquisition of the Group’s Australian
businesses including the acquisition of AHW Pty Limited (“AHW”). The impairment test involves comparing the carrying value of the CGU to which
the goodwill has been allocated to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of all CGU’s has been determined based on value in use
calculations. An impairment loss is recognised immediately the carrying value of those assets exceeds their recoverable amount.
Value in use calculations
The value in use calculations use cash flow projections based on the following financial year’s budget as approved by the Board and strategic plans
of the relevant CGU’s for the remaining four years. The key assumptions in the budget and strategic plans relate to revenue and profit margins and
are based on actual results from previous years, existing committed and contracted workload, management expectations of market developments
and future workload demand, and pricing in each market or country of operation. The projections do not include the impact of future restructuring
projects to which the Group is not yet committed.
Growth rates are based on the economic environment of the country in which the CGU operates. As required by IAS36, cash flows beyond the five
year period are extrapolated based on the long term average growth rate for the primary country in which the CGU operates. The growth rates are
derived from the IMF World Economic Outlook published GDP growth rates.
The cash flows have been discounted using CGU specific pre-tax discount rates. The discount rates have been calculated based on the Group’s
weighted average (pre-tax real) cost of capital using the capital asset pricing model to determine the cost of equity and risks specific to the CGU.
The discount rates are revised annually using updated market information.
The excess of the value in use to the goodwill carrying values for each CGU gives the level of headroom in each CGU.

Basic and diluted EPS
Adjusted and diluted EPS
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11 Goodwill (continued)

13 Property Plant and Equipment

Key Assumptions
The growth rate and discount rate assumptions used for the internal value in use calculations are as follows:

Average revenue growth rate over the first five years
Post five year growth rate
Weighted average pre-tax real cost of capital (discount rate)

Group
30 June 2015

Group
30 June 2014

4.0% – 14.0%
2.194% - 2.993%
9.5% - 10.0%

(16.0%) – 31.0%
2.39% - 2.93%
9.8% - 10.7%

This range of assumptions has been used for the analysis of each CGU or group of CGUs within the Group’s operating segments.
Sensitivity Analysis
Sensitivity analysis has been performed on the goodwill in relation to each CGU by changing the key assumptions applicable to each CGU.
Given the lower headroom derived by the value in use calculations for the AHW CGU, and the current year loss from Civil and Transportation
Consulting (CTC), more detailed sensitivity analysis has been performed upon the CTC and AHW CGU’s. The assumption to which the calculations
are more sensitive is the pre-tax discount rate. Specific sensitivity analysis with regards to this assumption shows that the rate would need to
increase from 10.0% to 19.8% before any impairment would be triggered for CTC, and increase from 10.0% to 13.8% before any impairment would
be triggered for AHW. Total forecast cash flow would need to reduce by 77% before any impairment would be triggered for CTC, and decrease by
36% before any impairment would be triggered for AHW. For the other CGU’s, the analysis has indicated that no reasonably possible changes in the
individual key assumptions would cause the carrying amount of the goodwill in the business unit to exceed its recoverable amount.
The value of goodwill in use for the AHW CGU exceeds its carrying value by £5.0m. The value of goodwill in use for the CTC CGU exceeds its
carrying value by £7.7m.
Conclusion
Based on these internal valuations, the recoverable value of goodwill as at 30 June 2015 requires no impairment

12 Other Intangible Assets
Computer software Customer relationships
£’000
£’000

Order book
£’000

Total
£’000

Cost
1 July 2013
Additions
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments
1 July 2014
Additions
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments
30 June 2015

2,306
54
(18)
2,342
40
(43)
2,339

2,770
2,770
2,770

204
204
204

5,280
54
(18)
5,316
40
(43)
5,313

Accumulated amortisation
1 July 2013
Charge for the year
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments
1 July 2014
Charge for the year
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments
30 June 2015

2,167
60
15
2,242
68
(44)
2,266

2,763
7
2,770
2,770

204
204
204

5,134
67
15
5,216
68
(44)
5,240

73
100

-

-

73
100

Net book amount
30 June 2015
30 June 2014

Cost or valuation
1 July 2013
Additions
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments
1 July 2014
Additions
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments
30 June 2015
Accumulated depreciation
1 July 2013
Charge for the year (including exceptional items)
Charge re: Discontinued operations
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments
1 July 2014
Charge for the year
Charge re: Discontinued operations
Disposals
Exchange rate adjustments
30 June 2015
Net book amount
30 June 2015
30 June 2014

Freehold land &
buildings
£’000

Plant, equipment
& motor vehicles
£’000

Total
£’000

1,499
1,499
1,499

9,509
685
(492)
(130)
9,572
970
(307)
(181)
10,054

11,008
685
(492)
(130)
11,071
970
(307)
(181)
11,553

68
17
85
8
93

8,505
379
29
(488)
(110)
8,315
492
(294)
(160)
8,353

8,573
396
29
(488)
(110)
8,400
500
(294)
(160)
8,446

1,406
1,414

1,701
1,257

3,107
2,671

The Group’s freehold properties were revalued on transition to IFRS as at 1 July 2004 by independent qualified valuers. The valuations were
undertaken in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors by GVA Grimley and BH2, who
are both firms of independent chartered surveyors. The valuations were based on active market prices and reflect the existing value of the properties
concerned.
These valuations have been incorporated into the Consolidated Financial Statements and the resulting revaluation adjustments have been credited
to the revaluation reserve net of deferred tax with this revaluation surplus not being distributable under English law. If the land and freehold property
were carried at cost, the carrying amount would have been £0.7m (2014: £0.7m).
Certain Group assets have been used as security for borrowings as disclosed in note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

There are no intangible assets with indefinite lives.
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14 Investments

16 Long Term Contracts
30 June 2015
£’000

30 June 2014
£’000

10

10

Loan and receivables at net book value

Total costs incurred
Profit recognised as income (less recognised losses)
Work in progress for third parties
Invoicing on account to customers

The following companies are the subsidiary undertakings at 30 June 2015 and all are consolidated:
Class and
percentage
Country of of ordinary
registration / equity and
incorporation votes held
Waterman AHW Pty Limited
Australia
Waterman AHW (Queensland) Pty Limited
Australia
Waterman AHW (Victoria) Pty Limited
Australia
Waterman Aspen Limited
England
Waterman Boreham Limited
England
Waterman Building Services Limited
England
Waterman Consulting Engineers India Private Limited
India
Waterman Environmental Limited
England
Waterman Energy, Environment & Design Limited
England
Waterman International (Asia) Pty Limited
Australia
Waterman International Holdings Limited
England
Waterman International Kazakhstan o.o.o.
Kazakhstan
Waterman International Polska Sp. z o.o.
Poland
Waterman International Limited
England
Waterman International (London) Limited
England
Waterman Middle East Pty Limited
Australia
Waterman Moylan Consulting Engineers Limited
Republic of Ireland
Waterman Structures Limited
England
Waterman (Tianjin) Construction Design Ltd
China
Waterman Infrastructure & Environment Limited
England
Moylan Engineering Limited
Republic of Ireland

100%
100%
51%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Class and
percentage
of ordinary
equity and
votes held
80%
80%
41%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
80%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Nature of Business

Of which work in progress for third parties is disclosed as:
Amounts due from customers on long term contracts (note 17)
Amounts due to customers on long term contracts (note 19)

Mechanical, electrical and structural consultancy*
Mechanical, electrical and structural consultancy*
Mechanical, electrical and structural consultancy
Engineering outsourcing consultancy**
Traffic engineering and transport planning consultancy

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
(Restated)
£’000

88,032
12,927
100,959
(107,524)
(6,565)

114,354
17,574
131,928
(133,974)
(2,046)

7,639
(14,204)
(6,565)

8,201
(10,247)
(2,046)

The amounts due from customers on long term contracts and the amounts due to customers on long term contracts for the prior year have been
restated from work order level to contract level to ensure a consistent method of calculation to the current year. The effect of the restatement is
shown below:

Mechanical and electrical consultancy

30 June 2014
Increase / (decrease)
£000’s

Structural engineering consultancy
Environmental consultancy
Environmental, energy, waste and power engineering consultancy
Intermediate holding company*
Intermediate holding company

Amounts due:

From customers on long term contracts
To customers on long term contracts
Impact on net assets

(2,335)
2,335
-

Multi-discipline consultancy*
Multi-discipline consultancy*
Multi-discipline consultancy*

17 Trade and Other Receivables

Multi-discipline consultancy*
Mechanical, electrical and structural consultancy*
Civil and structural engineering consultancy***
Structural engineering consultancy
Civil and structural engineering consultancy*
Civil engineering consultancy
Intermediate holding company

The equity of these subsidiary undertakings is directly held by the Company except where indicated by asterisks.
* interest held indirectly through Waterman International Holdings Limited
** interest held indirectly through Waterman Infrastructure & Environment Limited
*** interest held indirectly through Moylan Engineering Limited
On 1 April 2015, Waterman International Holdings Limited acquired an additional 20% of Waterman International (Asia) Pty Limited.

Trade receivables
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables
Trade receivables (net)
Amounts due from customers on long term contracts (note 16)
Other receivables
Prepayments and accrued income

Waterman Group now owns 100% of WIA (previously 80%), 100% of Waterman AHW Pty (previously 80%) and 51% of Waterman AHW (Vic) Pty
(previously 40.8%). The share purchase was funded by a AUD1.6m term loan from HSBC Bank plc repayable over 4 years.

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

23,772
(3,035)
20,737
7,639
132
2,950
31,458

21,754
(3,206)
18,548
8,201
255
2,204
29,208

As of 30 June 2015, trade receivables over 30 days from the date of issue of £12.5m (2014: £12.4m) were considered for potential impairment. The
amount provided for these balances was £3.0m (2014: £3.2m).The allocation of the provision according to the date from the issue of invoice is as
follows:

15 Acquisition of Non-Controlling Interest
On 1 April 2015, Waterman International Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Waterman Group plc, purchased an additional 20% of the
issued shares of Waterman International (Asia) Pty Ltd, (“WIA”) from a retiring director, Mr. John North, for the sum of AUD 1.6million (equivalent
to £0.82m) before transaction costs. The book value of net assets acquired at the date of acquisition was £0.57m. The difference between the
purchase price and the book value of net assets acquired has been deducted from equity.

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Less than 30 days
Between 30 and 60 days
Between 60 and 90 days
Between 90 and 120 days
Greater than 120 days

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

23
3,012
3,035

40
1
20
3,145
3,206

In accordance with IFRS 10, transaction costs of £0.044m incurred in relation to a transaction with a non-controlling interest that does not result in a
change in control have been deducted from equity.
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17 Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

18 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement:
Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

3,662
2,286
1,270
2,244
9,462

3,744
1,917
818
2,751
9,230

Less than 30 days
Between 30 and 60 days
Between 60 and 90 days
Between 90 and 120 days
Greater than 120 days

Sterling
Australian dollar
UAE dirham
Russian rouble
Euro
Polish zloty
Indian rupee
Chinese renminbi

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

29,164
1,093
(225)
1,116
137
167
6
31,458

25,636
1,769
(155)
30
1,742
92
89
5
29,208

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

3,206
925
(755)
(302)
(39)
3,035

3,136
1,282
(572)
(610)
(30)
3,206

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

5,419
(73)
5,346

3,019
(161)
2,858

Cash at bank
Drawdown on invoice discounting facility
Cash and cash equivalents

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:
Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

30 June 2015
Floating rate
financial assets
£’000

30 June 2015
Fixed rate
financial assets
£’000

2,147
1,329
123
202
7
2
14
25
144
3,993

879
547
1,426

Sterling
Australian dollar
Euro
UAE dirham
US dollar
Polish zloty
Chinese renminbi
Russian ruble
Indian Rupee

30 June 2015
£’000

30 June 2014
Floating rate
financial assets
£’000

30 June 2014
Fixed rate
financial assets
£’000

30 June 2014
£’000

2,147
2,208
670
202
7
2
14
25
144
5,419

(184)
1,424
156
348
2
89
13
20
128
1,996

558
465
1,023

(184)
1,982
621
348
2
89
13
20
128
3,019

Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

At 1 July
Provision for receivables impairment
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible
Unused amounts reversed / collected
Exchange rate adjustments
At 30 June

The impairment is disclosed within other operating charges in the Consolidated Income Statement. The other classes within Trade and Other
Receivables do not contain any impaired assets.
The Group assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence of impairment of trade receivables. Evidence of impairment may
include that a debtor or group of debtors is experiencing financial difficulty, default in payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, or where observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions which correlate with defaults. Trade receivables which are neither past due nor impaired are assumed to
be of good quality and will be paid.

19 Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables
Amounts due to customers on long term contracts (note 16)
Other taxes and social security
Corporation tax
Other payables
Accruals

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

3,206
14,204
3,416
177
1,006
4,066
26,075

2,901
10,247
3,271
1,459
3,575
21,453

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

73
642
715

161
442
603

939
939

801
801

20 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

Current
Drawdown on invoice discounting facility
Bank loans
Non-current
Bank loans

The Group has one sterling bank loan which is repayable in 2017. This loan is at a floating interest rate of 2.75% (2014: 2.75%) above sterling
base rate as at 30 June 2015. The Group has one Australian dollar bank loan which is repayable in 2019. The loan is at a floating interest rate of
2.5% above Australian LIBOR. Both loans are secured by a fixed and floating charge over certain Group assets and are subject to three financial
covenants which are tested half yearly.
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20 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (continued)

22 Share Capital

The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the Group’s non-current liabilities at 30 June 2015 was as follows:

The share capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares of 10p each. No shares were issued during the current and prior year.

Between one and two years
Between two and five years
In more than five years

2015
Bank loans
£’000

2014
Bank loans
£’000

553
386
939

457
344
801

All of the Group’s liabilities are included in the table below. The carrying amounts of those liabilities are denominated in the following currencies:
30 June 2015
30 June 2015
Floating rate
Fixed rate
financial liabilities financial liabilities
£’000
£’000
Trade and other payables
- Sterling
- Australian dollar
- Euro
- UAE dirham
- Russian rouble
- Polish zloty
- US dollar
- Indian rupee
- Chinese renminbi
Bank loans and invoice
discounting facility
- Sterling
- Australian dollar

30 June 2014
30 June 2014
Floating rate
Fixed rate
30 June 2015 financial liabilities financial liabilities
£’000
£’000
£’000

Issued and fully paid

At 1 July 2014 and 30 June 2015

Number

£’000

30,758,824

3,076

The rights and obligations attaching to the Company’s ordinary shares, in addition to those conferred on their holders by law, are set out in the
Company’s Articles of Association. On a show of hands, every shareholder present in person or by proxy has one vote and, on a poll, every
shareholder present in person or by proxy has one vote for each share which they hold in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.
Under the Company’s Long Term Incentive Plan, new ordinary shares may be granted to directors and senior employees (see note 23).

23 Share Based Payments
30 June 2014
£’000

-

-

23,389
847
789
290
322
3
106
309
20
26,075

-

-

17,852
1,030
1,174
485
654
7
98
143
10
21,453

874
780
1,654

-

874
780
1,654

1,404
1,404

-

1,404
1,404

All trade and other payables and borrowings are disclosed at their contractual undiscounted values since the impact of discounting is insignificant.

a) Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
At the AGM held on 5 December 2014, shareholders approved the creation of a new LTIP for Executive Directors and key employees which are to be
settled in equity. Under the terms of the LTIP, the right to acquire ordinary shares at no cost will be based on the company’s share price as follows:

			
			
Share price target		

% of award vesting		
Executive directors		
and COO’s		

% of award vesting 		
Other employees

100p			25%			50%
115p			40%			65%
125p			50%			75%
140p			80%			90%
150p			100%			100%
The performance conditions may be measured at any time over the five years from the date of grant but awards will not vest until at least three years
after the date of grant. A summary of the awards during the period is as follows:
Award date				
9 December 2014
Scheme maturity				10 years
Maximum term				5 years
Awards outstanding at 30 June 2015		
3,000,000
Awards exercisable at 30 June 2015		
Nil
The Group used the Monte Carlo valuation model to value its LTIP shares using the market price at the date of the grant.

21 Provisions
b) Share Incentive Plan
Liability Insurance
claims
£’000
1 July
Charged to the Consolidated
Income Statement
Utilised
Released to the Consolidated Income
Statement
Exchange rate adjustments
Discount
30 June

Property
provisions
£’000

Group Liability Insurance
30 June 2015
claims
£’000
£’000

Property
provisions
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

1,465

84

1,549

1,367

178

1,545

1,052
(83)

-

1,052
(83)

600
(75)

9
(102)

609
(177)

(532)
15
(10)
1,907

(42)
42

(574)
15
(10)
1,949

(348)
(70)
(9)
1,465

(1)
84

(348)
(70)
(10)
1,549

On 4 December 2014, the Board approved the creation of a new Share Incentive Plan (SIP) for the benefit of all qualifying employees. The aim of the
SIP is to reward employees for past performance and to incentivise future performance. Awards will be settled from shares already in issue.
On 19 December 2014, an award of 200 free shares per person was made to qualifying employees. The shares will be held in trust for five years or
until an employee leaves the Group’s employment.
On 1 April 2015, the Company invited all qualifying UK employees to purchase shares in the Company by entering into a partnership share
agreement. Under this agreement, employees may purchase Waterman shares up to a market value of £1,800 in any tax year from their monthly
gross salary.

Liability insurance claim provisions reflect the Board’s estimate of the likely costs to be incurred by the Group arising from professional liability
claims.
Property provisions relate to rent, rates, service charge and other associated costs relating to office premises that have been wholly or partially
vacated before the end of the lease term or before a break clause can be exercised.
These provisions will be carried forward until the matters to which they relate are resolved and the provisions are utilised or released as appropriate.
No provision has been released or utilised for any purpose other than that for which it is established.
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24 Merger Reserve

27 Deferred Taxation

The merger reserve represents the value received in excess of nominal value on shares issued pursuant to business combinations where company
law prohibits the recording of a premium. Included within the Retained earnings balance brought forward is an amount of £1,133,000 (2014:
£1,133,000) relating to the write off of purchased goodwill prior to the transition to IFRS.

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 20% (2014: 20%) which is the rate announced
in the Finance Bill 2014 which will be applied from 1 April 2015.
Deferred tax asset

25 Reconciliation Of Net Cash Flow To Net Funds
Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Increase in cash balances in the year
Net (increase) / decrease in borrowings
Total increase in net funds resulting from cash flows

2,736
(337)
2,399

50
668
718

Other non-cash changes
Exchange rate adjustments
Total increase in net funds in the year

(248)
2,151

1
(220)
499

Opening net funds
Closing net funds

1,615
3,766

1,116
1,615

26 Analysis Of Net Funds

Cash at bank
Drawdown on invoice discounting facility
Total of cash and cash equivalents
Current
Bank loans
Non-current
Bank loans
Finance leases
Total of bank loans and finance leases
Net funds

Group
1 July 2014
£’000

Cash flow
£’000

Other non-cash
changes
£’000

Exchange
movements
£’000

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

3,019
(161)
2,858

2,648
88
2,736

-

(248)
(248)

5,419
(73)
5,346

(442)

(338)

138

-

(642)

(801)
(1,243)

(338)

(138)
-

-

(939)
(1,581)

1,615

2,398

-

(248)

3,765

At 30 June 2015, £1.2m (2014: £2.0m) of the cash and cash equivalents were held in subsidiaries not wholly owned by the Group, of which £0.6m
(2014: £0.9m) was attributable to the non-controlling interests.

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

1,387
39
(21)
1,405

1,316
71
1,387

At 1 July
Credited to the Consolidated Income Statement
Exchange rate adjustments
At 30 June

An analysis of the deferred tax balances and the movements in temporary differences of deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year (prior to
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction permitted by IAS 12) are shown below:

Property, plant and equipment
Other intangible assets
Provisions
Pensions
Losses carried forward
Asset

Property, plant and equipment
Other intangible assets
Provisions
Pensions
Losses carried forward
Asset

Group
1 July 2014
£’000

Equity
£’000

Income
£’000

Foreign
exchange
£’000

Rate change
£’000

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

22
(14)
329
42

-

(189)
(1)
(46)
(42)

(21)
-

-

(167)
(15)
262
-

1,008
1,387

-

317
39

(21)

-

1,325
1,405

Group
1 July 2013
£’000

Equity
£’000

Income
£’000

Foreign
exchange
£’000

Rate change
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

30
(5)
332
46
913
1,316

-

(8)
(9)
(3)
(4)
95
71

-

-

22
(14)
329
42
1,008
1,387

Partial provision has been made for deferred taxation assets and liabilities which have been offset only to the extent that they relate to the same
taxation regime.
The deferred tax asset at 30 June 2015, taking into consideration the offsetting balances within the same jurisdiction is £1,405,000 (2014:
£1,387,000). The assets and liabilities expected to reverse between one year and five years are £926,000 (2014: £758,000) and more than five years
are £398,000 (2014: £nil). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. No deferred tax has been recognised on gross trading losses of £500,000 (2014: £nil).
Deferred tax has been calculated using estimates based on the current manner of recovery of the assets’ value on property, plant and equipment
not eligible for capital allowances, that is, recovery through continued use in the business unless the asset is held for sale. This method assumes no
tax relief will be available; therefore, no tax base is available for inclusion within the calculation of deferred tax unless the asset’s value is recoverable
through sale rather than continued use.
The key assumptions in the calculation of deferred tax are set out below:
a) Capital expenditure – the percentage of capital expenditure that would quality for tax relief, incurred by each unit, has been estimated based on
prior year’s historical experience of the split between qualifying and non-qualifying expenditure.
b) Depreciation – the depreciation rate for assets that do not qualify for the initial recognition exemption has been estimated based on actual data
for the most recent accounting periods.
c) Overseas tax losses – are not recognised to the extent that the losses cannot be utilised in the foreseeable future based on the latest profit
projections for that territory.
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28 Related Party Transactions

31 Directors’ Emoluments

The directors have identified 20 (2014: 14) key management personnel whose compensation was as follows: -

Short term benefits
Post-employment benefits

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

2,616
225
2,841

1,792
146
1,938

No further related party transactions are required to be disclosed for the year ended 30 June 2015.

29 Financial Commitments

Aggregate emoluments for qualifying services
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes
Three directors have retirement benefits accruing under money purchase pension schemes (2014: 3).
Highest paid director
Aggregate emoluments including gains on exercise of share options
Company contributions to money purchase pension scheme

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

946
63

988
75

348
25

288
23

There was £61,815 of capital expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment contracted but not provided for at the year end (2014: £9,728).

32 Financial Instruments

The Company and certain of its subsidiary undertakings cross guaranteed the bank loans of the Group at 30 June 2015. Invoice discounting
facilities provided to two subsidiary undertakings are secured by a fixed and floating charge over the assets of those companies.

The carrying value of all of the Group’s financial assets approximates to their fair value and they are classified as loans and receivables being the
total of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments of £2,950,000 (2014: £2,204,000)). The carrying value
of all of the Group’s financial liabilities approximates to their fair value and they are classified as Other financial liabilities at amortised cost being
the total of trade and other payables (excluding non-financial liabilities of £3,593,000 (2014: £3,271,000)), current borrowings and non-current
borrowings.

At 30 June 2015 the future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Property

Commitment expiring:
- within one year
- within two to five years
- after five years

Plant and equipment

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

1,440
3,932
938
6,310

1,514
3,574
1,620
6,708

489
537
1,026

69
708
777

30 Employee Benefit Trust (EBT)
Between 2001 and 2008, Waterman Group made awards of free shares to its executives and staff through a Share Incentive Plan (SIP). The awards
were satisfied by issued shares and controlled through the Employee Benefit Trust (EBT). The EBT was able to appropriate SIP shares using funds
provided by the Group to purchase company shares in the open market. Since 2008, no further awards will be made under this SIP which has now
expired.
The distribution of shares through this plan was arranged through Waterman Trustees Limited, a related company formed to administer the EBT.
On 30 June 2015, Waterman Trustees Limited held 94,442 (2014: 94,442) ordinary shares of 10p in the Company. The market value of these shares
at 30 June 2015 was £68,470 (2014: £50,054). Dividends on these shares are payable to Waterman Trustees Limited and set against the costs of
operating the schemes unless waived.
The assets of the EBT at 30 June 2015 have been incorporated into the Group Balance Sheet as follows:

Cash

Represented by:
Income tax payable
Amounts due to Parent Company
Amount receivable from third party
Amounts payable to staff leavers
Retained deficit
Own shares at valuation
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Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

12
12

12
12

2
132
4
(58)
(68)
12

2
132
4
(76)
(50)
12

Financial Risk Management
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of foreign currency exchange rates, liquidity and interest rates. An
explanation of the board’s objectives and strategies for holding and issuing financial instruments is set out in the Financial Review on page 57 with
the relevant accounting policies explained in note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
a) Foreign Currency Risk
The Group operates in a number of international territories and is exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily with respect to the Australian dollar and
Euro. Most trading activity is denominated in the relevant local functional currency thereby matching the revenue flows with the cost base. Foreign
currency risk arises from a proportion of commercial transactions undertaken in currencies other than the local functional currency, from financial
assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the local functional currency and on the Group’s investments in foreign operations.
During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group designated a loan of £830k, which is denominated in Australian dollars (AUD), as the hedging
instrument in a net investment hedge relationship. The hedged risk is the foreign exchange currency risk on the value of the Group’s net investment
of 20% in Waterman International (Asia) Pty. The fair value and carrying amount of the borrowings as at 30 June 2015 was £780,000 (2014: £nil).
The net gain or loss on the translation of the borrowings under this arrangement is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The net effect on
Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2015 was £50,000 (2014: £nil). There was no ineffectiveness to be recorded from net
investments in foreign currency hedges.
Trade receivables, trade payables and bank accounts denominated in currencies other than the local functional currency arising from commercial
transactions are immaterial at 30 June 2015. Inter-company funding balances in currencies other than the local functional currency are hedged
where this is considered to be appropriate.
Floating rate financial assets earn interest based primarily on UK, Euro and Australian base interest rates. The fair value of the financial assets
equates to their book values. All of the Group’s financial assets are due within one year.
At 30 June 2015, if sterling had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the Australian dollar with all other variables held constant, the profit for
the financial year would have been £87,000 (2014: £77,000) higher/lower, principally as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
Australian dollar denominated trade receivables.
At 30 June 2015, if sterling had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the Euro with all other variables held constant, the profit for the financial
year would have been £2,500 (2014: £12,000) higher/lower, principally as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of Euro
denominated trade receivables and borrowings.
b) Interest Rate Risk
The weighted average rate of interest on the floating rate financial liabilities at 30 June 2015 is 3.82% (2014: 3.19%) with a weighted average expiry
of 3 years (2014: 3 years). At 30 June 2015, there were no fixed rate liabilities or finance lease obligations.
At 30 June 2015, if interest rates on UK sterling denominated borrowings had been 50 basis points higher / lower with all other variables held
constant, the profit for the financial year would have been £8,000 (2014: £7,000) lower / higher mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense
on floating rate borrowings.
c) Liquidity Risk
Cash flow forecasting is performed by the operating entities of the Group and aggregated by the Group finance team which monitors rolling
forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure that it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom
on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants on any of its borrowing
facilities. These facilities comprise bank overdraft and invoice discounting facilities and provide short term flexibility in liquid resources. At 30 June
2015, these facilities, where all conditions precedent have been met, were £9.0m (2014: £6.9m) which expire within one year. Cash flow forecasting
takes into consideration the Group’s debt financing plans and covenant compliance.
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32 Financial Instruments (continued)

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Waterman Group Plc

c) Liquidity Risk (Continued)
In August 2015, the terms and conditions of the facility from Close Invoice Finance Limited were revised. Significant revisions included an increase in
the facility limit to £6m (previously £3m) and a reduction in interest margin from 2.75% to 2.25%.

Report on the parent company financial statements

Surplus cash held by the operating entities, above the balance required for short term working capital management, is invested in interest bearing
current accounts, time deposits and overnight money market deposits to earn interest at rates close to the prevailing local base rates. At 30 June
2015 the Group has £5.3m of cash and cash equivalents held in bank accounts (2014: £2.9m) which is immediately available for use.

Our opinion
In our opinion, Waterman Group plc’s parent company financial statements (the “financial statements”):
• give a true and fair view of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 June 2015;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

d) Credit Risk
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the Group’s adherence to its credit risk policy. Management believes
there is no further credit risk provision required in excess of normal provision for doubtful receivables.

What we have audited
The financial statements comprise:

Management assesses credit limits on a project by project basis. Levels of working capital balances are reviewed and acted upon on a monthly
basis by senior management in order to mitigate such credit risk. Credit risk in respect of cash and deposits is limited and mitigated by the
counterparties who are financial institutions with high credit ratings.

• the Company Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2015; and
• the notes to the parent company financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

e) Capital Risk Management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the costs of capital. Close attention is given to the timely
billing of trade receivables and work in progress and conversion into cash in order to minimise the risk of a payment default and level of working
capital carried.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
At 30 June 2015, the Group had net funds of £3.8m (2014: £1.6m). Its return on average capital employed for the financial year was 30.3% (2014:
11.4%).

33 Ultimate Controlling Party
In the opinion of the directors the Company has no controlling party.

Other required reporting

Consistency of other information
Companies Act 2006 opinion
In our opinion, the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
ISAs (UK & Ireland) reporting
Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland)”) we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, information in
the Annual Report is:
• materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements; or
• apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the company acquired in the course of performing our
audit; or
• otherwise misleading.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or
• the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ remuneration report - Companies Act 2006 opinion
In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006.
Other Companies Act 2006 reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Waterman Group Plc
(Continued)
Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Our responsibilities and those of the Directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 65, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and ISAs (UK & Ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or
to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
What an audit of financial statements involves
We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
• whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed;
• the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors; and
• the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Directors’ judgements against available evidence, forming our own judgements, and
evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements.
We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to provide a reasonable basis
for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report & Financial Statements (the “Annual Report”) to identify
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Other Matter

Parent Company Financial Statements
The following parent company Financial Statements are prepared under UK GAAP and relate to the Company and not to the Group. The statement
of accounting policies which have been applied to these financial statements can be found on page 124 and a separate independent auditors’
report on page 121.

Company Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2015
Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investments
Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year)
Net current assets

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

38
39

2,009
19,641
21,650

1,543
19,641
21,184

40

12,042
12,042
(8,139)
3,903

10,758
10,758
(6,255)
4,503

25,553

25,687

(939)

(801)

24,614

24,886

3,076
11,881
3,144
140
6,373
24,614

3,076
11,881
3,144
140
6,645
24,886

note

41

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors (amounts falling due after more than one year)

41

Net assets
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium reserve
Merger reserve
Other reserve
Profit and loss account
Total shareholders’ funds

43
44
44
44
44
45

The Financial Statements which comprise the Company Balance Sheet and related notes were approved by the Board on 30 October 2015 and
signed on its behalf by:

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Waterman Group plc for the year ended 30 June 2015.

Simon O’Brien (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London
30 October 2015
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Michael Baker				Nicholas Taylor
Chairman					Chief Executive

The notes on pages 124 to 127 are an integral part of these Parent Company Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements

36 Directors’ Emoluments

34 Accounting Policies

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention and on a going concern basis in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards and law.
The more significant accounting policies are set out below. They have all been applied consistently throughout the current and preceding year
unless otherwise noted.
Employee Benefits
The Company accounting policy for employee benefits is consistent with the Group employee benefits policy as set out in note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
Tangible Fixed Assets And Depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost when acquired, less accumulated depreciation and when appropriate, provision for impairment. Cost
includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of tangible fixed assets less estimated residual values over the expected useful
economic lives of the assets concerned. The annual rates used are:
Freehold buildings				
Plant, equipment and motor vehicles		
Freehold land is not depreciated

2% per annum straight line or lease period if less
15-33% per annum straight line

Investments
Investments are included in the balance sheet at cost less amounts written off, representing impairment in value.
Borrowings
The Company’s accounting policy for borrowings is consistent with the Group borrowings policy as set out in note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
Leases
The Company’s accounting policy for leases is consistent with the Group leases policy as set out in note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
Deferred Taxation
Deferred taxation is provided in full on an undiscounted basis on all timing differences which result in an obligation at the balance sheet date
to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise based on current tax rates and law.
Timing differences arise from the inclusion of items of income and expenditure in tax computations in periods different from those in which they are
included in the Financial Statements.
A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and is recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more
likely than not that there will be sufficient taxable profits in the foreseeable future from which the reversal of the underlying timing differences can be
deducted.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company policy for managing financial risk is consistent with the Group financial risk management policy as set out in note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Group
30 June 2015
£’000

Group
30 June 2014
£’000

946
63

988
75

348
25

288
23

Land and freehold property
£’000

Plant, equipment and
motor vehicles
£’000

Total
£’000

Cost
1 July 2014
Additions
Disposals
30 June 2015

767
767

6,711
870
(35)
7,546

7,478
870
(35)
8,313

Accumulated depreciation
1 July 2014
Charge for the year
Disposals
30 June 2015

127
8
135

5,808
396
(35)
6,169

5,935
404
(35)
6,304

Net book amount
30 June 2015
30 June 2014

632
640

1,377
903

2,009
1,543

Shares in
Group undertakings
£’000

Long term loan to
Group undertaking
£’000

Total
£’000

17,778

1,863

19,641

Aggregate emoluments for qualifying services
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes
Three directors have retirement benefits accruing under money purchase pension schemes (2014: 3).
Highest paid director
Aggregate emoluments including gains on exercise of share options
Company contributions to money purchase pension scheme

37 Dividends

Dividends proposed and paid in the year are disclosed in note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

38 Tangible Assets

39 Investments

35 Loss / Profit for the year
The Company has not presented its own profit and loss account as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. The Parent Company loss
after tax of £272,099 (2014: profit of £799,588) is after dividends receivable from subsidiaries of £182,475 (2014: £505,324).
The auditors’ remuneration for audit services to the Company was £20,000 (2014: £20,000).
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1 July 2014 and 30 June 2015

The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets. Further details on the Company’s
principal subsidiary undertakings at 30 June 2015 are disclosed in note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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42 Operating Lease Commitments

40 Debtors

Trade debtors
Amounts owed by Group undertakings
Other debtors
Deferred Tax
Corporation tax
Prepayments and accrued income

At 30 June 2015, the Company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:
Company
30 June 2015
£’000

Company
30 June 2014
£’000

24
10,121
24
112
101
1,660
12,042

9,139
237
1,382
10,758

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. The Company’s debtors include £112,000
relating to deferred taxation (2014: £237,000). Further disclosure on deferred taxation is shown below:

Premises

Other

30 June 2015
£’000

30 June 2014
£’000

30 June 2015
£’000

30 June 2014
£’000

20
512
844
1,376

122
86
1,094
1,302

15
15

9
9

Commitment expiring:
within one year
within two to five years
after five years

43 Called Up Share Capital

The detailed breakdown of share capital together with options and awards over the Company’s shares outstanding at 30 June 2015 are set out in
notes 22 and 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The undiscounted deferred tax asset comprises:
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances
Short-term timing differences
Unutilised losses carried forward

Asset at the beginning of the year including deferred tax asset on pension accrual
Amount (charged) / credited to profit and loss reserve
Asset at the end of the year including deferred tax asset on pension accrual

Company
30 June 2015
£’000

Company
30 June 2014
£’000

(68)
2
178
112

168
33
36
237

237
(125)
112

221
16
237

41 Creditors

Bank loans and overdrafts
Trade creditors
Amounts owed to Group undertakings
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income

Share premium
reserve
£’000

Merger
reserve
£’000

Other
reserve
£’000

Profit and loss
account
£’000

11,881
11,881

3,144
3,144

140
140

6,645
(25)
182
(429)
6,373

1 July 2014
Loss for the year
Dividend received from subsidiaries
Dividend paid to shareholders
30 June 2014

The Other non-distributable reserve of £140,000 (2014: £140,000) arose on a group re-organisation in 2003.
Company
30 June 2015
£’000

Compnay
30 June 2014
£’000

5,744
659
728
163
845
8,139

5,190
588
6
286
185
6,255

Company
30 June 2015
£’000

Company
30 June 2014
£’000

553
386
939

457
344
801

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Repayable by instalments:
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
Between five and ten years

44 Reserves

Further disclosure relating to the Company’s bank loans is shown in note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

45 Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds

(Loss) / profit for the year
Dividends (net)
Net (decrease) / increase to shareholders’ funds
Shareholders’ funds as at 1 July
Shareholders’ funds as at 30 June

Company
30 June 2015
£’000

Company
30 June 2014
£’000

(25)
(247)
(272)
24,886
24,614

508
292
800
24,086
24,886

46 Related Party Transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemptions within FRS 8 Related Party Transactions not to disclose transactions between wholly
owned Group companies. Transactions occurred with Waterman AHW Pty Limited in the normal course of business and the year-end balance
is disclosed below;

Waterman AHW Pty Limited

Company
30 June 2015
£’000

Company
30 June 2014
£’000

-

86

Following acquisition of the non-controlling interest on 1 April 2015 (see note 15), Waterman AHW Pty Limited was a wholly owned subsidiary of
Waterman Group plc at 30 June 2015.
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Waterman Presence (UK)

Five Year Results Summary

Revenue
Profit before taxation and discontinued operations
Profit / (loss) attributable to the Owners of the Parent
Basic earnings / (loss) per share

2011
£’000

2012
£’000

2013
Restated
£’000

74,097
612
120
0.4p

68,840
530
(91)
(0.3p)

61,475
865
(111)
(0.4p)

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

68,840
810
(3,616)
(11.8p)

83,938
2,383
1,361
4.4p

The Five Year Results Summary above relates to the Group Consolidated Financial Statements and not those of the Parent Company. The restated
results for 2013 exclude the results from operations in the UAE and Russia which were discontinued during 2014.

Share Dealing Service

A share dealing service is available to existing shareholders to buy or sell the Company’s shares via Capita Share Dealing Services. Online and
telephone dealing facilities provide an easy to access and simple to use service.
For further information on this service, or to buy or sell shares, please contact www.capitadeal.com for online dealing or 0871 664 0454 for telephone
dealing (calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras). Lines are open Monday to Friday from 8 a.m.to 4.30 p.m.

Glasgow

Manchester

5th Floor, 1 Cornwall Street
Birmingham B3 2DX
t: +44 121 212 7700 f: +44 333 344 4501

Third Floor, South Suite, 8 Nelson Mandela Place
Glasgow G2 1BT
t +44 141 418 1900 f +44 333 344 4501

South Central, 11 Peter Street,
Manchester M2 5QR
t +44 161 839 8392 f +44 333 344 4501

Leeds

Nottingham

Bradshaw House, 31 Waterloo Lane, Bramley,
Leeds LS13 2JB
t +44 113 256 3322 f +44 333 344 4501

Halifax House, Halifax Place,
Nottingham NG1 1QN
t +44 115 948 2612 f +44 115 948 2610

2nd Floor, Victoria Wharf 4 The Embankment
Sovereign Street, Leeds LS1 4BA
t: +44 113 256 3322 f: +44 333 344 4501

Perth

Lingfield

Broxden House, Broxden Business Park, Lamberkine Drive
Perth PH1 1RA
t +44 1738 449 801 f +44 3333 444 501

Dippen Hall, Eastbourne Road, Blindley Heath,
Lingfield RH7 6JX
t +44 1342 893800 f +44 333 344 4501

Sheffield

London

Belgrave House, 47 Bank Street,
Sheffield S1 2DR
t +44 114 229 8900 f +44 333 344 4501

Brentwood
Regent House, Hubert Road,
Brentwood, Essex CM14 4JE
t +44 1277 238 100 f +44 333 344 4501

Bristol
Merchants House, Wapping Road,
Bristol BS1 4RW
t +44 117 937 8200 f +44 333 344 4501

Cardiff

% of Trade
Minimum Value

Minimum Charge

Maximum Charge

1.5%
1.0%

£28.50
£21.00

£175.00
£125.00

Telephone
Internet

Birmingham

All charges include a £3.50 compliance charge. An additional £1 PTM Levy is applicable for transactions over £10,000. Stamp Duty applies to all
purchases.

38 Cathedral Road,
Cardiff CF11 9LL
t +44 29 2038 4400 f +44 333 344 4501

Edinburgh
Office 315, 9-10 St Andrews Sqaure,
Edinburgh EH2 2AF
t +44 7860 841368

Pickfords Wharf, Clink Street,
London SE1 9DG
t +44 20 7928 7888 f +44 333 344 4501

Please note that the directors of the Company are not seeking to encourage the shareholders to either buy or sell their shares. Shareholders in
any doubt as to what action to take are recommended to seek financial advice from an independent financial adviser authorised by the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000.

Company Information and Advisers

Waterman Presence (Overseas)

Company Registered Office
Pickfords Wharf Clink Street London SE1 9DG

Australia

Company Registration Number
2188844
Stockbrokers and Financial Advisers
N+1Singer, 1 Bartholomew Lane, London EC2N 2AX
Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 1 Embankment Place London WC2N 6RH
Solicitors
Ashurst, Broadwalk House 5 Appold Street London EC2A 2HA
Principal Bankers
HSBC Bank plc, 8 Victoria Street Westminster London SW1H 0NJ
Registrars and Transfer Office
Capita Registrars, The Registry 34 Beckenham Road Beckenham Kent BR3 4TU

Financial Calendar
10 December 2015		
11 December 2015		
11 December 2015		
8 January 2016		
February 2016 		
April 2016			
October 2016		
December 2016		
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Ordinary shares quoted ex-dividend
Record date for proposed final dividend
Annual General Meeting 2015
Final dividend payable
Interim results announced for the six months to 31 December 2015
Interim dividend payable
Preliminary announcement of results for the year to 30 June 2016
Annual General Meeting 2016

1 Hunter Street
Sydney NSW 2000
t: +61 29 411 9900, f: +61 29 415 1717
60 Park Street, South Melbourne,
Victoria 3205
t +61 39 685 9900 f +61 39 685 9999

India
Seshasaai, 4/606, 1st Main Road, Nehru Nagar,
Kottivakam, Chennai 6000041
t +91 442 454 2929 f +91 442 454 2931

Ireland
Marine House, Clanwilliam Place
Dublin 2
t +353 1 664 8900 f +353 1 661 3618

Poland
ul. Ptasia 4a
00-138 Warsaw
t +48 22 654-26-48
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Pickfords Wharf, Clink Street, London SE1 9DG
t +44 (0)20 7928 7888
www.watermangroup.com
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